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CEO’S
— . Message

Duraid Qureshi
o A T e N

[Dear Shareholders,

Financial year 2023 marks the year we celebrate our resilience and achievements amidst challenging circumstances. Despite the
turbulent economic and political landscape that has gripped Pakistan in recent times, | am humbled to share encouraging results
of your company's perfformance: We have witnessed an impressive growth in gross profits by 28 percent, while achieving record
breaking 58 percent increase in net profits from last year reflecting the trust our business partners have placed in our brand and
the dedication of cur workforce

In 2023, HUM TV not only mainiained its position as one of Pakistan's top TV éentertainment channsals but also ross to becoms
one of the leading News Channels in a short span of time since the launch of HUM Mews. We are committed to perfecting ouwr
content to cater to the everchanging consumer preferences with significant efforts directed towards Key foreign markets of
Europe and Middle East with an aim to further strengthen cur linear viewership share.

The global entertainment industry is undisputedly being shaped by the rise of digital media and over-the-top (OTT) streaming
services: In anficipation of this upward trend, we aspire to cater to the unigue content preferences of diverse audience segments,
postioning ourselves as the premier choice for the digital audience.

HUM Metwork Limited has recently completed the acquisition of a prominent sports channel, Ten Sporis marking a significant
milestone in our strategic growth. This strategic move enables us to axpand our entertainment network portfolio, creating a
well-rounded and comprehensive offering for our valued audience. This acquisition aligns perfectly with our vision to become a
one-stop destination for unparalleled entertainment content, reaffirming our commitment to defivering top-notch programming
and fostering a desper connecticn with our everexpanding audience base

Muorzover, 1o honor the hard work and commitmeant of our employess, we have introduced various smploves madical and
retirement initiatives which were widely appreciated within and outside alike. In-addition to our commitment towards the employ-
ees of HNL, we also honor our sccial responsibilities to create meaningful impact within the communities we serve. During the
y=ar we have made generous donations towards improving public education and wellbeing of our feflow Pakistanis.

Lastly, | would like to extend my heartfalt gratitude to each and every one of you for your unyielding suppert and partnership on
this extraordinarny Journey.

Mr. Duraid Qureshi
Chief Executive Officer

Page 8 HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Notice Of The 19" Annual General Meeting

Motice iz hereby given that the 19th Annual General Meeting of HUM Network Limited will be hetd on Thursday, October 19, 2023
at 3:00 p:m. at Ground Floor, BRA Tower, Hazsan Ali Street, Off. L. Chundrigar Road, Karachi as well as through video conference
facility to transact the following businesses: -

Ordinary Business:

To confirm the minuies of the 18th Annual General Meeting held on October 25, 2022

To receive, constder and adopt Annua! Audited Financial Statements of the Company fogether with the Directors’ and
Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2023 together with the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company and the Auditors' Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Ta appoint Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2024 and to fix their remuneration: The Board of
Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed the name of retifing auditors M/s. EY
Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024.

Special Business:

4- To consider and, if thought fit, o pass with or without modification{s), the following reselutions io enable the Company to
circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements, to the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink,
as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP®) vide its Nofification S.R.0. 389 (12023 dated
March 21, 2023, instead of circulating the same through COVDVIVUSE.

RESOLVED THAT, the Company be and is hereby authorized to cinculate its Annual Audited Financial Stetemsants and reports,
te the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance with S.R.0. 382023 dated March
21, 2023, I=sued by the SECP

FURTHER RESOQIVED THAT. the Company be and iz hersby authorized to discontinue the circulation of annual financial
statements through CO/OVD-

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and
things, take or cause to be taken all necessary action to comply with all legal formalities and requiremants and file necessary
documents, as may be necessary or incidental for the purpose of implementing this resclution.

Any Other Business:

5- To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

Statement under Section 1343) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of special business contained in Agenda lem
Mumber 4 is annexed to the notice being sent to the membsrs.
By Order of the Board
Sdf-
Dated: September 28, 2023 Mohsin Nasem
Place: Karachi Company Sscretary

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 12, 2023 to October 19, 2023 {both days inclusive),
Transfer received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. FD. Regisirar Services (Pvt) Limited. 17th Floor, Saima Trade TowerA, LL
Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on October 11, 2023 will be considarsd in time for any entittement, as
recommended by the Board of Directors and for the purpose of attending the AGM.

2. Participation in AGM through electronic means

i} The Company has made arrangement to provids video-link facility to members who wish to participation in the AGM through
electronic means.

i Toattend the AGM through video-link, Members are reguested to register their following particulars by sending an email at
Mohsin.nasem@num.tv with subject “Video-Link Registration for HUM AGM scheduled on October 19, 2023, along with
valid copy of CNIC (both sides) or passport as may be applicable.

Nt Folio / CDC Mumber of CNIG/ Cell/Mobile Ermnail 1D
Accournt Sharas Held Passport Number
Member (s) Nurmber/ e
CoG
Participant ID

i) The Video ink and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, contaming all the required particulars as
mentioned, are received at the given email address before the close of business hours i.e,; 05:00 p.m. on October 11, 2023,

w} Faorany queries, the Members may please contact at the sforesaid email.

3. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

i} A member aligible to attend, speak and vote at the Mesting may appoint another member as hizfher prexy to attend, and
wote instead of him/her.

il A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is baing provided with the notice sent to members. Further copies of
the instrument of proxy may be cbtained from the registerad office of the Company during normal office hours or can be
downloaded from the Company's websits.

iy A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authorty (if any), under which it is signed ar a
notarized certified copy of such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less than 48
working day hours before the time of the mesting. Attestad copies of valid CNIC or the passpert of the member and the
Prosy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resclution / Power of Attormey with specimen signature shall be
submitted with proxy form.

V) The owners of the physical sharss and the shares registerad in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd.
{CDC) and / or their proxies are required to producs their original Computerized National Identity Card {CNIC) or Passport (in

case of forsign nationals) for identification purpose at the time of attending the mesting

vij CDC account holders will further have to foliow the under mentioned guidslines as laid down in Circular No_ 1, dated January
26, 2000 issued by the Sscurities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

vii) In case of attending mesting by proxy through electronic means ie., video-link facility, Cell Number and Email 1d of proxy,
zhall be provided on the duly signed proxy form.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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A. For Attending the Meeting: B. For Appointing Proxies:

(il In case of individuals, the account holder or il In case of individuals, the account holder or
sub-account holdsr and/ or the person whosse sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their securities are In group account, and their
registration details are uploaded as per the registration details are uploaded ‘as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
showing his original Computerzed MNational per the above reguirements.

[dentity Card (CNIC), or original passport at
the time of attending the mesting. (il The proxy form shall be witnesssd by two

persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
(i} In case of corporate entity, the Board of numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Dirsctors’ rezolution’ power of attormey with
specimen signature of the nominse shall be fiify Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the
produced {unless it has been provided =arlier) bensficial owners and the proxy shall be

the time of the meeting. furnizhed with the prosgy form

(hv} The proxy shall produce his-original CNIC or
original passport at the time of mesting.

(v} In cams of corporate entity, the Board of
Diractors' resaolution power of attomey with
specimen signaturs shall be submitted {unless
it has been provided earlier) along with prosy
form to the Company.

4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

If members holding ten percent of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the company shall provids the facility of
video-conferencing to such members for attending annual general meeting of the company, if so, required by such members in
writing to the company at lzast saven days (7) before the date of the mesting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venus of conference facility at least 5 days before the date of general mesting
along with complete informaticn necessary to enable them to access such facility.

Consent for Video-Conferancing Facility

1"'We, af , being a member of Hum Metworlk
Limited, holder of ordinary share (s} as per Register Folio/CDC Account
Mo hereby opt for video conference facility at ., for
participation at the Annual General Mesting to be held on October 18, 2023 or any adjournment
thersof

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changss in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar Mfs. FD. Registrar Services
{Pwt) Limited. 17th Floor, Saima Trade Towsr-A, L. Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000.

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs/NTN:

Members are requested to submit a copy of their valid CNICs/MNTMN Certificates along with the folio numbers to the Company's
Share Registrar, if not already provided, otherwize payment of dividend would be withheld in terms of section 243 of the
Companies Act, 2017 {'the Act'} and clause § of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 {the Regulations").

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The Annual Report of the Company for the yvear ended Junes 30, 2023 has been placed on the Company's website at the below
limk: httpdfwnanw humnetwork tw/Annual_Financial _Reports. html

Page 12
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8. Circulation of Annual Report 2023 and Notice of AGM
The Annual Beport 2023 and notice of AGM is being circulated fo members through COs/DVDs=.

In pursuance of SRO Na. 388(1V2023 dated March 21, 2023, in future members will access and download the audited financial
statements together with the reports through OR enabled code and the weblink shared through notice of the meeting.

The Company will provide hard copy of the Annual Report to any member, within 7 daye after the receipt of reguest by Company
under Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017

9. E-Dividend Mandate (Mandatory)

LUindersection 242 of Companies Act, 200 7(Act), every listed company is required to pay dividend if any to their members compul-
sorily through electronic mode by directly erediting the same in their bank account provided by them. In terms of SRO No.
114502017 dated 06 Movember 2017, it is mandatory for sharsholders to provide their bank account details to receive their cash
dividend directly into thelr bank accounts, failing which the company shall be bound to withheld dividend of thoss members who
do niot provide their bank details.

All members are required to provide to the Company's Share Registrar, particulars relating to name. folic number, bank account
rnumber (24 -digit [BAN), fitle of account, complete mailing address of the bank. COC account holders should submit their request
directly to their brolier (parficipant)/CDC. A Form iz available at the Registered Office of the Company and the same are also
piaced on the Company's website.

10. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company, which remain
unclaimed or unpaid for a perind of thres years from the dafe it became due and payable shall vest with the Federal Government
after compliance of procedures prescribad under the Companies Act, 2017.

All valued members. of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares, if any. are requested to contact
Company's Share Registrar, to file thair claims with Company's Share Registrar for any unclaimed dividend or shares outstanding
in their name.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure; all such dividend
outstanding for a period of 3 vears or more from the date dus and payable shall be deposited to the Federal Government in cass
of unclaimed dividend and in cass of shares, shall be delivered to the SECP

11. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2077 every existing company shall be required to replace itz physical shares with
book-entry form in & manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a perod not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to convert their physical shares into book-entry form by depositing

shares into Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by openming CDC sub-account with any broker or investor accounts
directly with COC.

12. Confirmation of “Filer” Status for Income Tax Withholding
on cash dividend

For cash dividend, the rates of deduction of income tax, under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance. 2001 ars as follows:

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax retums I 15%
b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax returns | 30%

In case of joint account, each holder 1= to be treated individually 2s either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted on the basiz
of sharsholding of each |oint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing to the Company / Share Registrar. If no
notification is received, each |oint holder shall be assumed to have an egual number of shares.

The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and Is reguired for checking the tax status as per the Active Taxpayers List {ATL)
issusd by the Federal Board of Revenus (FBR) from time to time

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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13. Exemption from deduction of income tax / zakat

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit
a valid tax withholding exemption cartificate or necessary documentary evidence for thiz purpose. Members desiring non-deduc-
tion of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for nen-deduction of zakat. CDC account holders are requested o
submit their declaration for non-deduction of zakat to the relevant member stock exchange erto COC if maintaining CDC investor
account.

14. E-voting and Postal Ballot

Pursuant to amendments in the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 201 8, notified vide SRO 21 92{/2022 dated Decembear 5,
2022 members will be allowed to exercize their right to vote for the special business in the AGM, in accordance with the
provisions the aforesaid regulations.

A. Procedure for e-voling

1. Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an &-mail with those members of the Company who have their valid
CNIC numbers, cell numbers |, and e-mail addresses available in the register of members of the Company by the close of
business on October 11,2023

2. The wsb address, login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will be
communicated fo members through SMS3 from the web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (being the e-voting
senics provider).

3. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or
authentication for login.

4. E-\oting lines will start from October 16, 2023, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on October 18, 2023 at 5:00 PM

5. Membears can cast their votes any time during this pericd. Onece the vote on 2 resolution is cast by a Member, he / she shall
not be allowed to change it subsequentty.

B. Procedure for voting through postal balloi

The mambers shall ensire that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized National ldentity Card
{CNIC), should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company's registered address at HUM TV, Plot No:
10411, Hassan Ali Street, Off. LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi — 74000 or e-mail at Mohsin.nasem@hum tv no later than one day
before the AGM on October 18, 2023, during working hours. The signature on the ballot paper shall match the signature on
CHIC. The postal ballot i= annexed with notice and also placed on the Company’s website, https:/fwww humnetwork b/
Sharzsholdzr may also uss the ballot paper published in the newspapsars.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS PERTAINING TO SPECIAL
BUSINESS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

AGENDA NO. 4
CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL REPORTS THROUGH QR ENABLED CODE
AND WEBLINK

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO No. 389(y2023 dated March 21, 2023, has allowed listed compa-
nies to circulate their Annual Audited Financial Statements and reports (Annual Reports) o members under section 223(6) of the
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) through OR enabled code and weblink sublect to approval of the members in general meating and
compliance with other requirements regarding circulation of notice of general meeting at the registered address of all members,
transmissicn of Annual Beports by email to all those members who have provided their email addresses and provision of a hard
copy of the Annual Report within one week of receiving any demand from a member on the standard reguest form available on
the company's website.

The approval is hereby sought from members by way of an ordinary resolution to-authorize the company for the circulation of
Annual Audited Financial Statements and Reports electronically through GR enabled code and web link.

The directors of the Company have no direct or indirect interest in this agenda.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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For polli/voting through post for the Special Business at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
Thursday, October 12, 2023 at 3:00 p.m: at Ground Floor, BRR Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi

Folio /COS Account Mumlber

Mame of Shareholder / Proxy Holder
Registered Address
MNumber of Sharss Held

CMNIC / Passport No. (in case of forsignen) (Copy to be attached)
Additional information and enclosures

{in.case of representative of body corpeorate, corporation,

and federal Government)

Mame of Authorized Signatory

CNIC § Paseport No. (in case of forsigner) (Copy to be attached)

Resolution for Apenda No. 4:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resclutions to enable the Company to circulate
the Annual Audited Financial Statements, to the members of the Company through OR enabled code and weblink, as regquired
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (*SECP"} vide its Notification S R.0. 388 (1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023,
instead of circulating the same through COVDVDAUSA.

RESOLVED THAT, the Company be and is hereby authonized to circulate its Annual Audited Financial Statements and reporis, to
the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance with 3.R.0. 389/2023 dated March 21,
2023, izsued by the SECP

FURTHER RESOIVED THAI, the Company be and is hemeby authorized fo discontinue the circulation of annual financial
statements through CO/OVD.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Company Secretary of the Company be and |z hereby authorised to do all acis, deeds and
things, taks or cause to be taken all necessary acticn to comply with all legal formalitias and requirements and file necessary
documents, as may be necessary or incidental for the purpose of implementing this resolution.

Instruction for Poll

1. Pleasze indicate your Vote by ticking (¢7) the relevant box.

2. In case if both the boxes are marked as (), vour poll shall be treated az “Rejected”™.

lwe hereby exercise myfour vote in respect of the above resolution through ballot b conveying myfour assent or dissent fo the
rezolution by placing tick (v") mark in the approprate box below

‘ Resolution | / We assent the Resolution (FOR) | / We aszent the Resolution [AGAINST)

| Resolution for Agenda No. 4

NOTES:

1. Duly filled ballot paper sheuld be sent to the Chairman at registersd office of the Company, HUM TV, Plot No. 10/11, Hassan
All Strest, Off. || Chundngar Road, Karachi — 74000 or e-mail at Mohsinnasem@hum.ty

2. Copy of CNIC / Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Ballot paper should reach the Chairman within business hours by or before October 18, 2023. Any postal ballot received after

this date, will not be considered for voting.

Signature on ballet paper should match with signature on CNIC / Passport.

Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written poll paper will be rejected.

In case of representative of a bedy corporate, corporation or Federal Govermment, the Ballot Paper Form must be

accompanied by a copy of the CNIC of an authorized person, an attested oopy of Board Resolution, Power of Attorney,

Airthorization Letter etc: in accordance with Saction(s) 138 or 139 of the Companiss Act, 2017 as applicablz. Incass of

foreign body corporate ete. all documents must be attested by the Counsel General of Pakistan having Jurisdiction cver the

member. Ballot Paper form has also been placed on the website of the company at tpsyifeeww humnetwork v/

e ke

Shareholder / Proxy holder Signature / Authorized Signatory
(in caze of corporate entity, please affic Company / Stamp) Date;

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



S B 220l 18

Fﬁiil,ﬂ:;h/ﬂ}; ‘:;.I.g E- ,.rld‘{.,. r.-'lta Id.dhﬂ*;f;rr‘ r'L,‘-‘g._P’:.._._.._'jxilJ *tr.r‘;:ﬂ H;.'.J ;;E-fffw“i,lf#ulr’#f*'q )__4.“_]/_“#_‘,('
ZL;:?:.;-j;.;al:{.:le-lwh-_1&;J%..-J*"_f.-_“'):q"t,rudfﬁf:‘¢n,_,..ﬁ'.;_,-"?

Z)l_,ub’b:fwls

-f/r:.:l a'i-";;g_..r:‘r.i.l.-' brijfglﬂ;ULfL,f stAg i Farf Hird !

LFuwl pe dd £ JdhdvinFhnrrpar o /ofadmie gopindintieo il Fde it

4-__;,?‘?..3,,!,&},&,:72_&,#«#';l,.:r'-x..la;.;_,si_-_gpjﬂm

4 o

o

Lndsestsd P T e S sTY 'JL-‘-":'P'MHJJEF LTEFL LU WL reropiars =
e Wy Erd L8 TS0 8 £ U nl ¥, f""ll'"-.f_r?F'Jﬁﬁ?u?ﬂﬁh?{_ﬂ!uf}, L3447

B
LA 'Fzr".l"{.ﬂ’b:.:ul.rrgL.J;‘:J}LJGLJUF;"’Jb'_ﬁ_-ry;r.lﬁ-'fxrrr;;[,-”.'w_'ngfﬁfJLJkuﬁgair;.U.sLl:G;r _r
d:|_..|u|.1.-lfu|_; ilas .rIc'JLr';‘;:’c__'..rLr .._.f.-*_.-rarl L';..'f n:_.i,}'.....am'n...i..f:.s""'l"[;-n i rnali) f‘*OJ!JJ |,,,,--|¢'.._ fél_ﬂj' ”

= UJ_J“”;U-*

&

Z.ﬁ;ﬁérr*rr B Pl PR e, T2l EQJur;ﬁﬁuHL.’f F‘u ,‘-.*; *-,;-C"n-_fm-ﬂ_a"m r'}.u.)_ ’

_ﬁ_,'_'Fp‘fl}"L_JIVﬁFL!ILJt.;UL'Lr_rl_rhIIJ!r JHQR;‘JJJ‘T_,I;"’
B A A i ] A A A

5‘ e )W ™ - = [ PR ol T Lo i A ad”
st & SESUr B G Bl s W bl St B B b ARG v AT S B il e L F by
Ul £ T fii e lib e e i SBI G A e ystnin A L sl Lty o SHoisi)

rabas 71

S :rl.gr"iuf.'_:'-:':..:.}:f'f.a:‘.‘/f: i
e L S L N AL E e FF e A AP 3L (PR rogs £ 14

"
o

drert A ._;-'_.'!-“Li"f &ﬁff

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

SHEEE
le'iu;i-‘{._g»"_-'j b i B S A R B '*"':f_._ L»s/“"l_.;J‘;__,_,-,-I:,L.--Jl_,huy'n},w; |q£JrfiEAJJ1|rff‘J|f"J£JJ

-fﬁjfiﬁ:ﬂﬁe_ﬂ_ﬁ‘{';ﬂdﬁffg ﬁ?.:ﬁ:u}p;ﬁ-':r'-ﬂ'-' fin e f'f"La_lf';_u_,-t;.m-,;_,lul;.-_u,t LiFlan )

B HL By b B P B 2 L

NS P e 2ot e Sus K e (P UEEL R fee T B 2l A L {1

Sl # L Byt e G ol e (U e A e Bt B a e A sl sk (1)

LS l‘-'f"hlrifai.‘r-*{_zlsz Urlymohsin.nasem@hum.tv

SEU  AudFelE| Ao ; LT s G AN | s g 174
ST Ul
LS

I" B = i 7 Lss {_frp PeFEy 1 gl ._.rq._,'ﬁ L_L:ij; = LL_--!"i‘ L:,. #’?‘E"Lﬂi o f._,l';lr ._,fii'.fjl,-i . 'I_r:ruﬂw:-‘lffl;i.‘-" -.J‘IJJ Al _.ﬁ'j J-} 3 ()
B 'ﬁ*d}"}"; L,fl;_ﬁlbwdlig J-_.[IL Bea Lr;_,F’;.
s T’H:'f.g.'l,e@hflj'ﬂllr.uﬁu [ ,w":i:_ O L}”"L,‘f (")

:dﬁbgﬂ_ﬁﬂ;bj"h’lz’f!{ ¥ g

_.;_L;ﬁ 20 S NS (I £ ﬁ;.u*.i Wy ;.l:rr"':_.,.-ri:u AL S il S (0

S Sl FE b atng Soeukb L ALy e el O B A L S ShA ()
e att o dF

SEE A L,Limu. S AU N FL rfﬁéfﬂléfu"l,ml.dm_iim sl ;r’»ﬁd—ii’.}wat—s’u’fﬁ (r)

Ll E’rﬁﬁjﬁur LLisK /LfL-JHJ:Lﬁ f;.urr" J;*LI-;@,J:J"J'..-'"M insdl B Bt 2y -:-.Ji’r:“

J’Lr NG

e edu il (i ';J_w_r"f RSV Fah B FEHE 5 'l,-:fJHMJ_..:;;;E’ ()

L:.,-HJE_HLE::E ]:ntg‘&l_.jﬁ’g’l:ﬁ,-_,""r%_ I::J;;_;_E_ag-"i;'l_ﬁ e .;n:':cﬁlj.,{ﬂ;::‘r;ﬂ#u#r t T .,j.fj-;sd_.-'-':'_f'}:} AN 1 ()
St e EﬁJyai;Es‘f_’_-f}*u:_c’l: Eul

S rpebud it sregsriaa s Eon L g i RN R T TR )

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

tﬁ{"_ dfb;_}:\_ﬁ"‘ 2 Cac )
= - i PR y O A & ; i -t H
Wby i) e #L-':.:.lb_-ﬁ"-'ur;,’-’j ] L:nru,'l_u L Lo 38 T:.r_;cu 7] L,r;,“{b"'u:.i.,.-'_:s Lalrrat g Lk 38 e .:ur“’ur:ﬂf' L}
Dy e SN (U [ N T U 8 B (Ui N RAEAR g W oy s

o " H L x % ! i - o
FL L ‘_,"lj' BN _J:'v_;‘{ ” th"..‘-r}r‘:Jﬂ—_ 'l L,{:J"Lruﬁ_-’ Yo e Ll I"'if'"l" felagl _.-"JJ/LEI?!.!H-' b fuﬂ@;r‘hrﬂq;.l{ K ()

Iy ()

e i kel o] (5 L - -...Eik'l.f,)}f,-ggbr- -.,,".‘:L Ialidlre 25K LAt 3K A e fa ()
LSO sl 2

S Pene L Pl wse cpduplageisl, (0

AU eIl i Ut O s\ el Site di5, (F)

_He f;’_?_f.;r:j; S K AL ..J.:':'-:J)T,; (")

W E AL rxﬁﬁ{fﬂkrl_._& g Ve e S F )i L A Tl bt A Tt e ¥ (2)
7

i ptite & JEGISKRGEE o ot Bttt b it Bee S Sde’y, O

Kk

ISP P B e e
U e bl el ma SEALE R s Pl de it N L JE Ll it
I PN JOTP P IS o g e TV

&L b ML Sl fah QAR AL b TN A S NE o e S PP o e el B

=z L;;-!.:. ;3,-‘15@'({_,{::. (B Iy

S ng =rfU) Py Ls
S e Auioissseipngp i i
L‘fr,;ﬂ.«_g wedyry Lf‘ur‘;.ﬁ;[:’té;_-i__'ij_ PR :f/";_,l’.._ﬁ.:‘ b F bl By i _[:_rf}-'rq 91/ P

L DFW e

dotunlosd o
é}.—jhuﬁi&’-a"l(h{‘.ﬁ’flf_”wi{iL#J};#-H‘.LL-:Jb;j—éHJ/'{JU’EJ ;-'.'i{Jii:{sz;!ptﬁgjﬁd’ﬁl‘&':'Lﬁlujycuﬁij-r‘f— .,:..-'Ir:'..J‘:..{.'..'L‘.""

Skt Lf"-“_(‘!;!'ﬁjzﬁzﬁide?u‘_Lﬂf

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

& -

/P KSenden K FEJS
el g & e i o WS Lpn AL b s ondep g Fedug hnle erine o
Lo b S EmSed Bl FECAE N Gt g3 STl ) B PR D o1z L1 58E,

L;_?‘Z‘Juji;';.-;..*-f bl UL -2
"?-LSFL"’{--*-’JL‘E-&!UFE-' wl I..'-':;‘:‘-J,f alle J’,"r‘:ﬂ_{: ,_,]L;.;:ihLJLL_!,.J_,nf's}lr-rr* S

hitp:fwww. humnetwork.tv/Annual_Financial_Reports. hitml

ué-‘!:f/u.f !}g F (f L)j L el lbstlnleterboodisile A

e el it s P el S RS e 3B A2I K et b P Pt 2

) & LT - = - ¥ ’ o
AL o8 3L B L 78 3L Bt Jai W A ST AR S B i A rorr A, A
-L 1_.-: ﬁ)‘t}'ﬂ,:.' 1l LL-JJLJ:JT:%)}G:J Leafie 7

Jl_’-f-—'h'uf];d{.‘L’LU-—-’J-‘H-'H!JL'IF’{L}*&F{.HIL L.'.H CJIJ‘I(C- ﬂ.—-"lu_h__,-].l' | ¥ ..,.rlp u“:_,.?‘i FFS.- "'JFE:,FH,;, i |

(d;!])a—cﬂ"ijud! =
L (B X Ty A PPRPURNY A W 1)1 ) S kdstnfe Sl L WL adaFl rory P e L5
Mot S pe e Kl fe Go d Ly ;-'-.‘:".. wF Pl s Ira(1) reie, Al Ja bt ﬁ.
JL::L,_,:l.;_,rwr'rﬂ;_wJ_m;;I.J_m-*ui,-f;ia .;_,..ma*.._,LL,rlf,_,» Jrﬂi..«._u-rtf._ﬂg__r(' K1 L e Ll l{.fu,;
.

b B i fer sy O TE sty )36 B b s B L .j’i‘:zf{_ Sasel oot
nlbd e Pt u" T2l ;-.,Gh"ﬁ_fuf q‘_f-._,rg L5 .,r.-"{.-,«:f:.-'_’? PRIy et il s 5K T/ J,f'

— 271 L,g;...- -.r...rs;.r

-~ “ -
:f!/iiﬁu/?.gf e
.*_.'fkﬁ z :I"J--Llr:f'?‘r q Adfdbgﬁ;b;flzﬂlh.ﬁls:wl.ﬁ_.u L,Ilj-"{k.n-'.!}l-il 1K, '”"""{,.""uf._.-ff_r-_f'l"l* "'J'Ff Fole s FF‘.E-;

L R O TP AP a0 ) O PR A i AT O

4.—LJ|L.I,+JJu1;rr£f,L-b:-'L.£.-&rJ-'—- f’}f"--l.., “f"--—‘-"ﬁ‘auu‘&fu-rﬂ ;5'_/.,-‘; iﬂﬁ—'f-—-m.-‘{u Lf""frx!r*lrfé .
-I-"J..II.-«F’UF{J:J U e

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

BBy e (PR g Juf 2 2 dhsih oty Ul a3 S L‘?Q Fied Rt n L L rud,.irrl*:f

-

_,fr_.fuﬂ U’J_..,.EL“:'.JIU‘;'IQ-._-J—"UU"}JJE JIJ&L; uh,,rf_,m‘!'(‘;;.:.iﬂ el

& -

SRR AL LS
E;_. s :chb'f__ A # 'ﬁﬁfu'{._-.-? =1 uri.'..-":.: & AL ruF e Vi Uﬁ 3 &2 'r'ir_:;?l:u?r‘;; =L r.,;,-‘g-'-:L yf:_li_u_*;.l '_'.ﬁ-“
Sttt ca§ s T oot e

e Uale S ST el F S s sl Tt g 1 P tnde eSOt 2 el s o S
A AL S AL s8ss

F A !‘ﬁﬁ’gijﬂmﬁﬁ{}wﬂ _Ir

LR e uf; ;!J ;fd" L.'J‘r;’ﬁ- =5 Iﬂ*;_;,j'?.{: ' ::_*_I]_.; =7 T.,’J‘.;Plfté.f_ Jehab

e A S iR (e
ad T LA oY J' A beand r,-:;u"‘:r‘f (¢

it -QIHJL?JJJL =24 Bl 2L e S e L Py J-l..m BERTPI I i OE [ U0 [ (NP

S oS fm L e singde Snireb w3 6 S s il FE

e G S ep Ser s BT s Bl (e s dSesres S B B e S TNy T g
el L Ll dF

Fe bl
LT I_J?’m,:.,f_m_f.-'_LJ.#Ulu.rL Mo st ;uj,_r,_,hf;_,f LA Lt e PRl S -r'i.;__ﬂr/-{,?
SIS VG Bren (i L8 L35S F ST MRS S A2l LSS Byl
A e, s A T s w"Lw;'JLfI—-'.m* 'flﬁlfux-u?@*h-fi;.-..lm,-._-_ iy 25K

Jg..ﬂ)é'."...zj"ﬂul.ﬁ::di [ 4
S oSl A s lid S e T EIL e rat(drert iUdE S umerein 2 (e Sy
_.JL__:"r":F,—’..:,IJEWIJJ;.JE(g_d:_E?!i;EJ/:"q’_.J;*‘jﬂ..:._.':_;li_{d_j:_,l.“”u F...'..ugl_.{:_nl;IJ'E&‘!"?h*I-"L:;_ﬂl_PL‘aHL-*

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

:;K..':n_l/!’b/\_gutfl (et

St enL T £ AL S ASI20h L Y N F g L Bebilsirred i el S Bt ()
Lot sl A ,E;ﬂ;gl,ﬁ',j ke 3 I

L(v L b sinitn i s S0 iy i) 2 S SR T Syt e S Rt Fandon s ()
-a’é_?kfb'h}_,i T g_rih aE‘I,;';rw'{_ oy ,ﬁg...;s

S o sl Yol S S 6 D st AeEin L e L gt ()

g aceeplbhirerrs T WotSusto fE e lorree T WALBS (1)

B¢ s eIl A e e b L2 HEPVRD eSS A bl 25 st £ AT PO P (2)

] 4P E'juz"_.ﬁi _‘.J.'nffg (l}
wIE ]uﬁ'u"'l.-d-’u‘f.f-‘.u'- 'Frk‘]:‘lel.;ﬂ__{fJ)l'LJ'jﬁ-udJ’-r;f Lcdff:.-'pJJUI.-_.Jr__.rr E s 3l ok J’;u«*‘ et
£ SH{MUHSJH.HEEEm@hIJHLI.!.!--Lﬂkémﬂ,i.l,’cu;,g:jguFu.‘n_.'I-.Lc_._fldﬁ:,ﬁlﬂ|b'f._".lJ;|'J_l|_}["':;_—__.l;,a—1’x£.-_;'#’w&{éb{,r{'l_fu'

ok Sy --.«'f’k O 1Y AT Y ﬁ._s,{:_u‘f};ri_ﬁbj:‘:’;;lffﬁﬁJIJ-?'-.-rF.-{.-fH.;aE/#GIJ‘;;HdJL.E:— rlerlelsild otore

_Ljfdb-rlﬂﬁ_,ki_hgfghufaub Lkl Ao F:fhttps:lffww.humnetwc:rk.tu&fla,gjb(ﬁ;jr{_ﬁfbijip

:ugu’jﬁruu&"’.:.xwu‘ﬁﬁﬁlrr(r)ﬁiﬁw -/

R {IE {Jrﬂr‘*ﬁi I Pl Tl L s h”;_f‘?s.f_ g’: e B e 1 __)j e e E' ha?u r.u'J"’:—_J 1 i ik

A

:uqt}u,ujiz J.-"u L"’é-x‘}'ﬁ 1—91—‘-4_' ,jj'j,{)l.‘.;;f(

J.I:‘Iﬂ-"&-'l-f.-!-'.-‘ﬂb'i'i__ft:f?ﬁ:mffﬁfkjﬁyﬁi4:::_!':"13-4I. Pl PAS()rerral T iz 1 {léﬁwuﬁg}wﬂ‘ﬁfféﬁ;ﬂ@{@
ks e SRt :—':Lr:l*t:hm; NP P ,-;é",frm B L s T e LS A S WL F e
L% e D iJ:'J""E-.f' Ufi__jru— ?Lruubift_.;}_-'L-J-ﬁ..Lj?;uv:‘rM‘{_ s Ubsst ufkfr"r,i‘_,dijru':;',_ﬂ_._-___j)ujj_;ﬁz:.;uq
Kl feing st s S S S e tPn i bl g At sl i e Lt TSt S S AS U G

L,ri.jrf J,-;.;; o .._-;J.ul.::ra,,H:i.- - { B Jrr,;ji{_mlk,,lj.; g .'j?_'-JLrJ:"n.‘-j T2Ul-o| .,:;‘J’ b J'. -'_,{.__.J&.:. ! ,-:‘:"f 2547 aly, I.r"r " $L§.-:5" :‘

- bl

e Al el e ks E L

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2023

Sl gt
NS (PR b T YT
G Ky TSt it b0 e £ B hrer e P10 Eu G s 02

ALggigi
“I:EL,-‘I‘{; Lt 7

i a

LA LA e

g E5) e arllsbiong
= Q P Sl s L IgU
Iﬁ

(v

{Lﬁ-’.‘-r-rfbrd.— HGRE -';-"‘JGI.'." 'd":d_'lg.'*;'g B J-_Ij-' FLE AL D alomn bl L,JPI::'!IL}I

ey

AL lnl ) femildin Fevd i
A CAN STy

:I‘)-}IEFILMJM}

e At S S Pt 2 P BT e S A S e e B it ST 2
Ju_,.f:r& FEN T bt LS e e SehaF L e R Pl NS frerr s, Tl s {q,_ml l'.h_,lrf...l "Ll
-rJ.,Pﬁ P sl f

r ol I -P.-u-"{ i
{Jéjﬁﬁ&d*ﬁirwﬁ;d "|j_u"ﬁ\'1'{|;|,l"lr!ﬂ"/:"};|..'Il_,"d.'.{_ (Lé[.jll.‘-'rl..-"l}l..-'l-"ﬁh-”u Ce I_,»'..-.IJ:_.- H-.rt’_LJ"'vJLA"L- u-f,__“‘ﬁ'_,

e A S P B AR
S L PSS O a2 S S S S s

S il £ ._,,_,rr'ud-:l;fl,u-l Gt S MBS A B i S P SHEFE L AT :+*_-.J§i...-;;£.,rﬁ%u’.k;
i L8 ST A e AL Bt S e 3N A L tirstinfan i Las L L e

A
(LY VP AV ION 1"
SR e BB ) 26 3 X

e MR L TR SR (V)6 _r

L L SISO LU s Lt BV E b L el S s A 3o g (A

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

u— :LE" PJ!'JI.';_; |E'¢£ L{:‘E,'.'J ﬁf‘L’: ""'I:.F:i" }LSJ]E:‘-;’[:‘JJ I}g“éru: .:{:'.-'_1__1(“?,-':_": J'L".IIJ.;

e

=1

s s Ihmm,’

ﬁdllér-“-i‘frr}n ‘g JTUf? n..‘.;;_',.-'-'-'lfu,"?rlf.ll -"‘...rJu dru[‘r‘_.ﬁ _,r-”Jé: ‘_," i ':‘r:-:r' “{{;ﬁ-.;nj.ﬁu}’{,-._;l‘;i_' JJJ‘J?L}L H
Ex ﬁJMuhsin.naeem@hum.w

Jrﬁ-z iLE( L,.lf._ﬂ-’JLruf }r_}_ E’J.__._v;fr..j o iy (4 gk P'; _t

L Brebck frl v st LEb e Lo e Bl Pl NG S it Aok fy _F
-z .n-f|_,.q.u. e

Al semdmavl temSinEH s mwnligsFaa sy sakfy o

3 i , i N
LS v S gkt ot pil L w2 GultetiB b Lo
SSETSE AL g st S OL P SirhFof s KSFL IR NP e 178 o
ST ‘?ﬂ:r._.-l_fslﬂ" L_.'-'.:.;:*'J ;-*:._4;.-U!TJ_}JLL;p:f,qr_u.i;'tr‘d"'Lﬂ_.LawaﬂJ T L b EF;JL'JFLJ;Ufjj_fILé{

.q_-.,gnuf; hitps:hwww. humnebwork. byle? L-._-:,-u e (VN A e o sty M;..u'.‘;f !

T J? |_f .L-‘ _.'J.-I"'-"P
(J gﬁ-u["w .lw;__ L:;vz:,;,_,fur‘h,l'_fl_':;{;&’]

'

o Y

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2023

Pattern of Shareholding

As At June 30, 2023

Number OF Shareholders ‘

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

From To
558 10 ; 100 18,298
516 101 - 500 161,330
751 501 ; 1000 513,270
2067 1001 - 5000 5,004,893
798 5001 - 10000 5,700,511
509 10001 E 15000 6,367,506
216 15001 : 20000 3,855,598
193 20001 E 25000 4464 731
137 25001 = 30000 3,865,754
' 40 30001 2 35000 1803140
86 35001 : 40000 3.188.903
B4 40001 = 45000 2 692,900
76 45001 - 50000 3675046
4 50001 - 55000 2158712
78 55001 - 60000 4,647,580
14 60001 = 65000 876,007
23 65001 - 70000 1,570,730
27 70001 = 75000 1,058,443
21 75001 - 80000 1,547,768
15 30001 - 85000 1,242 500
13 85001 5 30000 1147800
8 90001 . 35000 743,600
30 35001 E 100000 2971 800
7 100001 = 105000 709,200
12 105001 = 110000 1,295,600
11 110001 - 115000 1,247,300
57 145001 = 120000 6,797,508
8 120001 - 125000 974 560
7 125001 - 130000 886 600
‘ 3 130001 : 135000 395 400
8 135001 - 140000 1104 589
8 140001 - 145000 864 500
7 145001 S 150000 1,050,000
4 150001 - 155000 608,600
6 165001 : 160000 945,600
4 160001 5 185000 651,000
' 2 165001 = 170000 338,000
4 170001 - 175000 698.000
10 175001 = 180000 1,790,461
3 180001 E 185000 548,600
2 185001 = 180000 375,700
1 190001 = 195000 100,740
11 195001 - 200000 2193,000
N E 205001 - 210000 205 500

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Number Of Shareholders Sharehoiding Stab Total Shares Held

1 215001 5 220000 217,000

290001 - 225000 448 560

7 295001 5 230000 1,600,400

18 235001 - 240000 3,839 400

[ 4 ' 240001 - 245000 969,200
4 245001 E 2506000 892200

1 250001 - 255000 255,000

9 260001 E 265000 596,000

_ < 265001 = 270000 270,000
‘ 3 270001 = 275000 821 700
: 275001 s 280000 280,000

1 285001 2 290000 288,000

[ 1 280001 - 295000 291 600
7 295001 = 300000 2005 200

2 200001 - 305000 604.200

1 305001 = 310000 209,400

g 310001 - 315000 1,870,400

2 315001 5 320000 636,800

1 320001 - 325000 325,000

5 325001 - 330000 1,642,800

2 230001 E 335000 668,600

1 335001 - 340000 340,000

2 240001 E 345000 681 504

12 355001 = 360000 4318200

1 ' 365001 = 370000 366,000

. 370001 = 375000 370,500

1 380001 2 385000 385,000

1 385001 - 390000 387,200

" < 30000 = 385000 391 200
‘ 3 395001 : 400000 1195500
2 400001 = 405000 805,800

1 410001 - 415000 410,500

" 2 15001 5 420000 840,000
1 420001 - 425000 425,000

2 425001 - 430000 854,000

3 430001 E 435000 432 000

' 2 435001 = 440000 877,200
3 450001 : 465000 484,000

2 470001 = 475000 949,067

1 475001 = 480000 480,000

2 485001 = 490000 972 000

2 490001 = 495000 083400

5 495001 - 500000 2 496,000

. < 505001 = 510000 510,000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Number OF Shareholders

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

1 540001 515000 512,000
1 515001 520000 516,000
3 535001 540000 1,614,000
1 550001 555000 552,600
[ 2 555001 560000 1,116,600
3 570001 575000 572,000
1 575001 580000 577,200
. 500001 595000 533300
_ 6 595001 600000 3,600,000
' ; 625001 630000 623,880
2 530001 635000 1,262 800
3 640001 645000 1,929.200
[ B 655001 660000 660,000
2 660001 65000 1,325,000
1 680001 85000 680,100
1 705001 710000 710,000
1 745001 750000 750,000
1 755001 760000 759780
1 775001 780000 780,000
i 780001 785000 782 500
1 795001 200000 800,000
1 825001 830000 228,500
3 235001 40000 840,000
1 850001 855000 852.000
3 295001 900000 2 700,000
: 955001 960000 960,000
2 295001 1000000 2 000,000
1 1000001 1005000 1,000,600
’ 5 1015001 1020000 1,020,000
' 1 1025001 1030000 1,028,200
5 1045001 1050000 1,050,000
2 1075001 1080000 3160.000
" 1 1130001 1135000 132,800
1 1150001 1155000 1,153,800
i 1195001 1200000 1,200,000
3 1220001 1225000 2441 772
' 1 1355001 1360000 1,356,000
2 1395001 1400000 2 798,031
. 1795001 1800000 1,800,000
: 1825001 1830000 1,826,400
5 1915001 1920000 1,920,000
1 1980001 1985000 1,084 500
3 2245001 2350000 2 247 600
i. 5 2305001 2400000 2400000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

From To
2 2430001 ; 2435000 4,868,400
1 2485001 - 2490000 3489 598
1 3515001 ; 2520000 3 530,000
1 2715001 - 5720000 5.720.000
4 2995001 - 3000000 3,000,000
3 3235001 E 3340000 3,336,000
1 3600001 : 3605000 3.601.800
. 3650001 E 3655000 3,653.400
1 3900001 = 3905000 3,900,500
" 4295001 = 4230000 4,230,000
1 4315001 : 4320000 4,320,000
" 4835001 : 4840000 4,830 404
1 4995001 - 5000000 5,000,000
1 5420001 - 5435000 5,423 281
1 365001 - 6370000 6,367,200
1 8260001 = 8265000 8,263,820
1 11045001 - 11050000 11,045,100
1 11300001 = 11305000 11,300,400
1 11600001 - 14605000 11,604,000
4 12370001 - 12375000 12,370,500
1 13070001 5 13075000 13,072,200
1 15085001 : 15090000 15,090,000
3 17275001 - 17280000 17,280,000
1 18625001 = 18630000 18,629,715
1 30080001 = 20065000 20,061,000
. 1 20075001 = 20080000 20,073,001
‘ 21655001 = 21660000 21,656,209
5 23155001 - 23160000 23 160,000
1 58515001 - 58520000 58518744
‘ 1 112995001 - 113000000 113,000,000
1 243095001 - 243100000 243 096,000
1 575545001 - 575550000 275,546,388
- 6681 1,134,000,000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Page 27




Annual Report 2023

Additional Information
As of June 30, 2023

|' Shareholders' Category Shareholdersz | Shares Held Fercentage':
' Directors, heir Spouse(s) and Minor Children ]

Duraid Qureshi 3 518,642,400 45.74
Sultana Siddiqui 2 8,263,832 0.73
Mazhar Ul Hag Siddigqui 1 12 0.00
Mehtab Akbar Rashdi i 12 0.00
Asif Yasin Malik 1 12 0.00
Mrs. Khush Bakht Shujaat i 12 0.00
Sohail Ansar 1 1,200 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 2 81,038,744 5.38
Muhammad Ayub 1 12,000 0.00
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties = = =
Executives - - -
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds g 138,570,850 12.04
Mutual Funds

16 85,860,607 581
General Public
a. Local 8584 251,619,249 2219
b. Foreign 5 192,000 0.02
Foreign Companies 1 6,000 0.00
Others 53 91,783,070 8.09
Totals 8681 1,134,000,000 100.00

[ Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

Share Held

Percentage ]

Mr. Duraid Qurashi

518,842,400

45.74
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Corporate Calendar

Audit Committee Mesting to consider and approve the annual audited accounts of the

Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 Sep 19, 2022
Board of Directors Meeting to consider the annual audited accounts of the Company

for the year endad June 30, 2022 Sep 19, 2022
18th Annual General Mesting to consider accounts of the Company for the

year ended June 30, 2022 QOct 25, 2022
Audit Committee Mesting to consider accounts of the Company for the Quarter ended

September 30, 2022 Dct-26, 2022
Beard of Directors Mesting 1o consider accounts of the Company for the Quarter ended

September 30, 2022 Oct 26, 2022
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Meeting to consider and discuss

employees and remuneration matters Feb 28. 2023
Audit Committze Meeting to conzider accounts of the Company for the half year ended

December 31, 2022 Feb 28 2023

Board of Directors Mesting to consider accounts of the Company for the half year ended
December 31, 2022

Feb 28,2023

Corporate Briefing session for the year 2022 Mar a1, 2023
Audit Commitize Mesting to conzider accounts of the Company for the Quarter ended

March 31, 2023 Aprd7, 2023
Board of Directors: Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the Quartsr ended

March 31, 2023 Apr 27, 2023
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Six Years At A Glance

Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Fevsnue-hat 2 E00478 886 3970080128 3,670 268 528 4327326066 G012 060BRE8 6825586345
Cost of production (2853147800} (34052408480 (2756142547T) (2766007 550} (53.454.551 B87) (3.540 102628
Transmizsion Cost [M77878.025 (109223404  {120.080,10%) (00.436188) [0DAG50401  {126.606.002)
Gross profit 4578453 061 200,625,008 784056490 4 460.802810° D4B4251 081 31587E7.T18
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
{Lossl/Profit bafore tation 812 155 067 (454 795567) (1361200650 1107143407 45{4B30878 2430816 Ba5
Taxation (82,661,570 (81,157,536 20 BA1.574 (02.746.807) (150024885  {P00.57B.261)
Profit aftar taxation 720423 488 {535, 883,083) 113 ,238,494) 1.014,306685 1363805013 2140238572
Financial Ratios

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Current Ratios 468 225 2.85 3.20 a1 .43
Quick ratia 455 224 2.83 338 310 841
Dabt/ Equity Ratio 031 053 4 F] 01g 0.00 o.oe
Caszh avaizble par share- B2, (Re-stated)® 015 D43 042 031 374 0.2a
Return on equity - % 18,75 {16.07) @.71) o405 2678 2088
Share Prica par share - Bz 2.00 247 12.55 g0z T2 584
Break-up valus par share - Bs, (Fa-statedy” 226 278 2.69 258 440 6.38
Gross Profit / (Loss) 1o Saiss - %o 3422 720 2131 33.87 4084 48.28
Cost of Production To Sales- % 61.83 B7.85 748 53.94 57.30 5187
Administrative Expenses 1o Sales - % 1150 1284 1284 11.80 870 1287
Mat profit / (Loss) 1o Sales - % 1583 {1240 [2.08) 2g:44 22.66 3940
Interest Cover - number of times 2838 {227) 0.43 12.0% 21.85 53.07
Debtors Turnover (mumber of days) 138 181 173 155 127 132
Prica egming reto (Re-siated)” 1258 B.71) {12568} 887 582 3.08
Turn Cwer 1o Total Asset Ratio D85 07 077 0.82 HE S 0.8
EarningsALoss) por share Ra. (Re-stated)” 082 04Ty 4 0.88 1240 1.80

* Caicukated osing 1,134 000,000
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Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Break-up of Revenue Streams

0.4%
8% 1%
_ 21%
2%
2023 Y 5050
65% 749
B Advertisement revenus - net B Advertisement revenuse - net
E Production revenue - net # Production revenue - net

# Digital revenus - net » Diigital revenue - nat

& Subscription income - net B Subsorpiion inboms <o

& Film distribution revenue - net
& Other Income

B Othear Income

® Cost of production ® Cost of production

B Transmission cost B Transmission cost

® Distribution costs ® Distribution costs

© Administrative expenses E Administrative expenses
E Other expenses E Other expenses

E Finance costs E Finance costs

B Taxation = Taxation
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Met Revenue
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EPSvs Share Price
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditor's Review Report
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Comparnies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 {the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited (the Comipany) for the year
ended 30 Junes 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The rezponsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it doss not and to highlight any nen-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personne] and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

A= a partof our audit of the financial statements we are required to.obtain an understanding of the accounting and intermal contral
syetems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board
of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal
conirole, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Commitiee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Commities,
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We ars only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committes.

Basad on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliancs doas not
appropriately reflect the Company's complianes, in all matenal respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicabls to the Company for the vear ended 30 Juns 2023.

2 b0 U,

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: Sepiember 27, 2023

UDIN Number ; CR2023101200VAvTkgQ

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations”)

HUM Network Limited {“the Company™)
for the vear ended June 30, 2023

The Company has complisd with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner,

i. The total of number of directors are 09 as per the following (A= at June 30,2023

Female Three (3}

2. The composition of the board is as follows (4= at June 36, 2023):

Category Name

Independent director Mir. Schail Ansar
Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi

MNon-executive directors Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi

Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt Gen.(R) Asif Yasin Malik
Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat

Executive directors Ms. Sultana Siddiqui
Mr. Duraid Qureshi

Female directors Ms. Sultana Siddiqui
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat

o

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them s s=rving as a director on maore than saven listed companies, including this

Company;

4 The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate stéps have been iaken to disssminate it

throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedurss;
5 The Board has developed a vision/mission statemant, overall corporate strateqy and significant policies of the Company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or

updating is maintained by the Company;

5. Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have beesn taken by
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 {the Act) and these Regulations;

The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Beard has complied with the requirements of the Act
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and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparsnt procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the

Regulations;
8. The Company is compliant with the requirements of Directors” Training Program provided in these Regulations. All the
Directors except one have ether attended the required training in prior years or stand exempted, as per criteria mentioned

in the Code;

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with requirements of ihe Regulations;

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statement=s before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a  Audit Commities b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes
Mr. Sohail Ansar — Chairman (Indspendeant) Wr. Schail Ansar— Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi (Non-Executive) Ms. Sultana Siddigui (Executive)
Mr=_ Mahiab Akbar Rashdi (Non-BExecutive) Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Raszhdi (Non-Executive)

Lt. Gen. (H) Asif Yazsin Malik (Non-Executive)

13. The terms of referencs of the aforesaid commitiess have been formed, documented and advised io the commities for

compliance;
4. The frequency of the meetings of the committess were as follows:

g Audit Committes — Four [4] mestings during the financial year-ended June 30, 2023.

b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes — Two [2] meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2023.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function with the support of an cutsourced the internal audit function to Mfs.
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountani=s who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and

are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutery auditors of the company have cenfirmad that they have been given a satisfactory rating undsr the Cuality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Beard of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines an
code of ethics as adopted by the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the pariners of the firm
imvolved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company sscratary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other senvices sxcept in
accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have obsarved IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that afl requirements of regulations including 3, 6, 7. 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have besn complied with.

g2
DURAID QURESHI Date: September 25, 2023 MAZHAR-UL-HAGQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Place: Karachi Chairman & Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Chairman’s
Review
Report

Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui
=

| am pleased to present the annual review as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited for the year endsd
June 30, 2023.

During the ye=ar under review, the economy sustained a subdued performance. However, HUM NMNetworks unwavering
commitment to competence and financial digeipline aided us to gracefully navigate these most formidable chalienges. Inthe face
of adversiy, Your Company not only expenenced revenue growth but also achieved impressive profits. These remarkable
accomplishments stand as a testament that the Beard has performed their duties diligently while upholding the values and
interest of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board of dirsctors comprise of a rich mix of experience and expertize in the fisld of entertainment industry, finance and
comphance. BOD members are well aware of thewr responsibilities while ensunng adequate policies and measures are in place
which are in line with the vision of HML.

Furthermore, the BOD has ensured that the financial disclosures are accurate and truly represent the affaire of the company. This
accountability ig enforced by the Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS), Companies Act, 2017, Listing Regulations
and others relevant laws and regulations. We have designed cur corporate governance structure to ensure maxamum compliance
with legal and regulatory framework and mesting the information needs of cur stakeholders. The Board has fulfilled all of their
mandatory responszibilities including providing strategic direction tothe management and ensuring compliance with all legal and
requiatory requirements by the management of the Company.

The Board is constituted of Audit Committes and Human Resource and Remuneration Commities. These committees provided
valuable input and assistance to the Board. The Audit Committee particularly focused on detalled review of financial statements
and effectiveness of infernal controls. Further, an annual evaluation of the Board of Director's overall performance Is conducied
to ensure compliance with the requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017 On the basis of
the feedback received through this mechanism overall role of the Board has been found to be effective.

| would like to appreciate and thank my feliow board members, shareholders, all our employess, lenders and loyal viewers for
their continued efforts and support

LR

=

e ——
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddiqui
Chairman of the Board
Date: September 25, 2022
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hum Network Limited (HNL) are pleased io present the Annual Report together with the Company’s audited
financial statement for the vear endad 30 June 2023,

Financial Performance

The financial performance of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 is summarized below:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Particulars Unconsolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenue from 6,825,586,346 | 6,01 8.069 888 7.567 863,940 6,544 962 4432
operations |
Other income | 621,870,324 84,936,683 488,815,703 24 041 652
Total Income | 7.447,456,670 6,103,806.571 | 8,096,679,643 | 6,563004084
_Totalexpenses | (5.007,639,835) | (4589066693 | (5842,197,693) | (5.022,044.745)
Profitbeforstax | 2,439,816,835 1,514,839.878 2,214,481,850 | 1546,950.349
"~ Taxation | (200,578,261) {150,334 865 (296,715,144) | (151.853,694)
Profit after tax | 9,149,238,574 1,363, 935,013 1,917,766,806 | 1395105655
EPS 1.9 120 1.72 1.25
{restated) | (restated)

In our unwavering pursuit of comprehensive growth and the expansion of our entertainment, news and current affairs, we remain
committed to exceeding the expectations of our valued stakehelders. During the year, our net profits increased by staggering
58% from last year due to positive growth in all revenue streams especially in hum news and digital media sector revenues.

Throughout FY 2023, we made substantial investmentis in both our existing and novel ventures; driven by a robust diversification
strategy. This strategic direction 1= guided by our overarching vision, one that is committed to fortifying our position in the present
and harmessing the potential of future cpportunities.

Principal Activities

HML distinguishes itself as a leading media network in Pakistan, committedly providing entertainment for nearly two decades.
HUM, as a brand, has sarned unparalleled admiration in PaKistan's media landscape; touching the lives of millions through =
diverse range of channels and extensive distribution platforms worldwide, encompassing films, news, digital media, print, and
lve evenis.

Our broadcasting portfolic boasts an array of satellite channels, including HUM TV, HUM News, HUM Siaray, HUM Masala in
addition toour international channels; sach beaming #s captwvating content fo our audience globally. Amongst the most
promising additions during the year, the meost notable change inveolves the recent inclusion of Ten Sports, a renocwn sporis
channel, further diversitying our portfolio while broadening our range of content and offerings.

Beyond these stellar satellite channels, HNL places a strong emphasis on its diverse business divisions, encompassing Films,
Digital Media, and Print Media, to create an exciting and dynamic rangs of offenngs.

The External Environment

Our company thrives within a dynamic and fiercely competitive landscape, where innovation, constant change, and the allocation
of resources vary significantly among players in each business segment.

The landscape of the advertising industry is constantly evolving, presenting greater challenges as advertisers ssek ever more
innovative means to enhance their return on invesiment. Under current environment of financial pinch, the majority of
muitinational companies have diligently streamlined their advertising budgets. However, our network iz uniquely poizsed to not
only navigate this intensifying competitive arena but also sustain our markst share, a testament to our strategic prowess and
adaptability

Operational Performance

The network has managed to assat its dominancs inthe current year by entering into new business ventures, updated approach towards
changing economic landscape all while achisving growth in operational revenues, viewsrship, and Television Rating Points (TRPs).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Hum TV

Ohver the years, HUM TV has persistently besn at the forsfront of the entertainment industry, crafting compelling stories brought
to life by talented 2nsambles that seamlessly blend exceptional writing, direction, and performances. This unwavering dadication
has struck a deep chord with our viewers, drawing them into captivating narratives that illuminate the daily struggles of ordinary
people while shedding light on pressing societal issues of our time.

In the present year, HUM TV has once again gifted our audience a rich tapestry of Pakistani dramas, soaps, and engaging tales.
Motably, several dramas have taken the TRP charts by storm, including *Meesni," “Yurhi,* *Muhabbat Gumshuda Meri,* "Jhok
Sarkar." and "Fareb,” all of which have become prime-time sensations. With finesse, we address fals=hoods, religious duplicity,
feudalism, and infrastructure inadeguacies while shining a spotlight on stories of power, politics, and |ustice.

Amongst most notable addition to screen this year, the enchanting storytslling of "Fairy Tale® captured the hearts of our audience
to such an extent that we had to bring the cast back for a second s=azon. This decision is a testament to the profound impact
the show has hadon its devoted fan baze.

Hum News

In times when misinformation is rampant, the access to truth becomes an imperative, Hum Mews has risen amongst the ranks of
leading News channels for its steadfast dedication in providing impartial and evidence-bazed news. We prioritize data-driven
journalism to ensure our audisnce stays well-informed with accurate and essential information

Cur channel, committed to providing viewers with the latest and mest relevant information, has recently unveiled a lineup of new
shows hosted by some of the most respected and renowned anchorpersons in the industry. These seasoned Journalists bring 2
wealth of experience and expertise to the screen, offering viewers a fresh perspective on current events and in-dapth analysiz of
pressing issues.

Hum Sitaray

The channel s positioned as a hybnd channel offering both narative as well as format-based entertainment shows. The content
mix consists of Dramas, Soap operas, fashion festyle shows, Celebrity talk shows and international contents.

Hum Masala

Over the years HUM MASALA has truly become a housshold favorite, captivating audiences with their chenshed celsbnty chefs
all the while consistently presenting exciting new culinary creations. During the year, HUM Masala presented a number of new
cooking and informative shows while imtroducing new recipes, professional chefs, health consuftants that made the channel a
favonts of milions globally.

The "Masala Family Festival," the biggest family event in Pakistan, took place in Karachi and Lahore; serving as the focal point
for celebrating HUM MASALA's 16th anniversary as South Asia's premier 24-hour cooking channel. The festival showcased a
vibrant mix ‘of musical performances, comedy acts. live cooking demonstrations, dancing and =inging competitions, and a
chance for atiendees to interact with their beloved celebnty chefs.

Ten Sports

Ten sports, newest addition to HUM Network portfclio, boasts a diverse linsup of events, from high-ootans team competifions to
individual sporting showcases, ensuring there's something for every fan. We're excited to bring you closer to your favorite
athletes, coaches, and sports personalifies, providing unprecedented access and insights into their journeys.

Digital Media Division
The HUM Network's Digital Media division has diligently upheld our formidable presence across all Key social media platforms
including Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and Youtube, a testament to the company's highly targeted and effective Social Media

Strategy. We remain appreciative of all our digital partners for sponsoring our Awards shows and Dramas senials.

Direct sales (loca! web advertisers) have been another business avenue that has continued to grow significantly this year as we
have open opportunitiss for digital sponsorship.

During the year "Fairy Tale" emerged a= one of the most beloved shows, prompting trends and hashtags througheut social media
platforms:.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Hum Films

In the vibrant world of HUM Films, where the magic of storytelling unfolds on the grand canvas of the silver screen, our primary
mtission = to whizk you away into a captivating realm of namatives.

During the year HUM Films showcased multiple blockbusters, including "John® a twist to crime dramas whersas hit release of
Eid, "Monsy Back Guarantes." a riotous comedy that will have you laughing until your sides ache. Another notable blockbuster,
"Teri Meri Kahaniyazan® weaved together tales of destiny, love, and the complexitias of human relationships.

These mevies are our way of shaning relatable and captivating stories, ones that will leave an indelible mark on your cinematic
journey.

Bridal Couture Week (BCW)

HUM Bridal Couture Week, which has been held annually since 2010, is the nation's most lavish and high-profile bridal event.
This season's collection enveloped fans in the word of beauty, style, and pure couture magnificence, with its delicately
embroidered lehengas and painstakingly made sherwanis.

Forall the fashion lovers and brides-to-be s=eking inspiration, HUM Bridal Couture Wesk offers an unparalleled experience with
glamorous lineup of celebrities walked the ramp for numerous brands.

Hum Awards

During the month of September 2022, a glittering extravaganza unfolded as the 8th Hum Awards took center stage, a vibrant
celebration of excellence in music, fashion, and the captivating world of Hum Television Dramas throughout 2021-22. This
star-studded event unfolded on the international stage of Canada and was broadeasted on Hum TV in December 2022, bnnging
the magic to screens arcund the world.

However, the glamour wasn't the only highlight of the evening. In a heartfelt act of corporate social responsibility (CSH), a portion
of the awards' ticket revenue was devoted to aiding the victims of the devastating 2022 Pakiztan floods. demonstrating that the
power of art and entertainment can touch lives and make a difference.

Hum Women Leaders Awards

In February 2023, the illustrious Jinnah Conwvention Center in Islamabad was ablaze with the brilliance of the fourth edition of the
Hum Women Leaders Awards. This grand event celebrated the achievements of extraordinary women, both on a naticnal and
international stage, who have excelled in diplomacy, social work, education, healthcare, human rights, and |ournalism.

The ceremony was an enchanting gathering, graced by the presence of none other than President Dr. Arf Ahd himself, along with
a constellation of notable dignitariss and public figures from Pakistan. It was an evening that radiated inspiration and
empowerment.

Human Resource Management

The Metwork views its human rezource as the mast valusble asset and pays speacial attention towards developing an atmosphers
which fosters growth, high pedformance, adhersnce to organizational values and business sthics.

Core Values

HUM Metwork Limited is continuously striving fo provide an enabling corporate and social workl environment to iis employees as
this helps them to work in complete harmony in-a healthy and professional way.

Far this very purposs the HUM Network Family has developad the following core values.

Integrity & Honesty

Respect for All
CommitmentTedication’ Ownership
Accountability & Objectivity

Team Work

Discipline

Safety/Health & Hygiene

S b Lo D

We adhers to the above core values in all the initiatives that we undertake as this helps in promoting a culture of fairmess,
oblectivity and teamwork.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Our company beasts a reliable Risk Management framework designed not only to identify and assess potential risks but also to
recognize advancement opportunities. This comprehensive system iz meticulously crafted to enhance transparency, safequard
our business objectives, and fortify our competitive edge.

Risk Management

In the ever-evolving landscape of our industry, we recognize the significance of addressing not only internal but also external and
regulatory risks. Our risk framework plays a pivatal role in guantifying our exposurs and potential impact at a company-wids level.
This approach ensures that we are well-prepared to niavigate the challenges and capitalize on the opportunities that come our
way.

Industry Risk
Entertainment industry i= highly competitive with ever changing audience demands and trends creating an environment of

stiff competition with domestic as well as international players all competing for the audience time.

With increasing availability of affordable internat plans, smart phones and laptops, digital media s=ctor has balloonad to naw
heights piquing the interest of many new entrants in the industry along with ever increasing migration of media sponsors to
digital media from television. In respenss to raprd growth in digital sphere, the Company has developed a digital media
strategy to make most of this opportunity.

External Risk

The advertisemeant revenues of the media industry are inextricably linked to the economic growth of the country. Poor
macro-sconomic environment can adversely impact the advertising revenuss of the Company, which is the largest
componant of our revenues.

Higher inflation rates coupled with recard high monstary rates have severely increased the cost of doing business. Further
our country has a running Current Account Deficit (CAD) which heavily impacts PAK-USD currency disparity and fluctuation.
Any further disturbance in any of these factors will have a massive impact on cur declining economy, thus affecting our
revenues and exXpensss.

Regulatory Risk

Any changess in law and regulations could have a material impact on the revenues and cost of doing business for the
Company.

Cash Flow and Liquidity

The Company is constantly monitoring the cash flows to ensure overall liguidity. The Company was able to manage its operating
cash flows by ensuring tight credit controls and reduced indirect costs over the course of the year. The Company alzso managed
to reap interest and foreign exchange rates gains taking advantage of hedging cpportunities.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The board is committed to Corporate Soclal Respensibility (C5R} and integration of sound social practices in Company's
day-to-day business activities.

Thig year, our company has talien up on iteelf to make a meaningful contribution in the lives of underprivileged children by taking
rezponsibility of their education. Education 15 a powerful tool for breaking the cycle of poverty and providing hope for a-bnghter
future, unfortunatehy, many children in our community lack access fo gualty education dus to financial constraints.
Understanding the need, HUM Network has made a generous amount of donation in addition to committing a portion of each
year's annual net profits for the education of underprivileged children. The donations made shall be utiiized io support 15 schools
in Karachi, adepted by Momina & Duraid Feundationgs te provide quality education to underprivileged children.

In 2022 our country suffered one of the worst devastations caused by floods during the extended monecon ssasons. Along with
the tragic lozs of human life which was reporied to be over a thousand, the floods had swept away livestock, crops and
infrastructure worth biflions. HUM Metwork initiated a2 flood relisf campaign ‘HUMDard" in association with' Memina & Duraid
Foundation wheare we conductad a telethon on September 4, 2022 lve from Karachi and lslamabad to raise funds and ralief
goods for the flood affected. The management and the employees of HML also donated their one-day salanes for the relief efforts.

Az a part of our annual €S activity, HNL collaborated with Fatimid Foundation and conducted a blood donation drive. It proved
to be a great succass and HUM family members parficipated actively in the event.

This year on Independance Day, HUM Network Limited launched a campaign HUMSE PAKISTAN, sharing a compelling messags

of cptimism, coeperation and unity in overcoming challenges faced by our nation. This campaign aims to showcase the inspiring
narratives of ordinary Pakistaniz who have proactvely inftiated positive transformations within their communities.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Employee Training & Development

A=z part of our annual appraizal exencize, each employes is assessed and counssled on individual basis. Training sessions are
arranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opportunities for employees and provide us with highly motivated
and trained resource.

Status Of The Board During The Year

The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020. Since the number of eligible
candidates were equal to the numbier of directors fixed for election, the Company made the announcement on August 13, 2020
under section 159(4) of the Companias Act, 2017. The aforesaid election of directors was questionad by tha insligible candidates.
Consequently, the elected directors also filed a Suit: The Honcrable Sindh High Court threugh Order dated: 21.08.2020 has
directed the Company that the elections scheduled to be held on August 22, 2020 would be postponed and rescheduled subject

to the final decision by the leamed single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020 in Suit No. 368/2020. The final decision of the court s
still swaited.

However, upon clarfication from the SECP and after placing said clarification on record with the Honorable High Court-of Sindh,
the Company proceeded with the previous Board to camy out its statutony functions till the final decisionof the Honourable court
and appointment of their successors.

Future Prospects & Challenges

Paolitical instability and economic turmeil continue to ravage the seconomic growth in Pakistan. In addition, declining exports, a
balance of payments cnisis and sinking exchangs rate has discouraged foretgn investment while making it difficult for local

businesses to operate. We hope the expected slections will create 3 more stable and predictable economic environment for
businesses and investors.

We algo view that the future of the entertainment industry undeniably hinges on the transfermative power of digital media and
over-the-top (OTT) streaming services, These dynamic forces are reshaping the landscape, offering a tantalizing glimpse into
what lies ahead. As industry leaders, we recognize the boundless potential and are unwaveringly focused on hamessing it for
several compelling reasons

Through HUM News we have an opportunity to evelve and thrive in the digital age by embracing innovation, uphelding journalistic
standards, and responding to the changing needs and preferences of our audiences. As long as we continue to provide credible,
diverse, and engaging content, our future prospects remain positive.

In light of thess circumstances, our company's managament is diligently focusing ‘'on a multifaceted strateqy. This includes
diversifying our income scurces, optimizing cost structures, enhancing cperational efficiency, and ramping up our sales
endeavors. The recent acquisition of Ten sperts = a step towards achisving the diversification which presents an exciting
oppaortunity for significant revenue growth. With the everincreasing demand for sports content, we are optimistic that this
strategic move posifions us to tap into a thriving market

Our immense pride in HUM Network's esteemed status as a premier enteriainment provider, built through years of unwavering

dedication and hard work, fuels cur commitment: We are resolutely dedicated to delivering a premium entertainment expenence
that delights both our cherished viewers and valued stakeholders.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) maintained the long-term and short-termn entity ratings of Hum Metwork
Limited at "A+" and "A1", respectively. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit nsk and the network's established market
position.

Board Composition & Remuneration

Composition of the Board and the names of mémbers of Board Committess may be referred to Statement of Compliance with
CCG.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its directors in
accordance with Compariies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Govarnance) Regulations 2019

Pattern Of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2023 is annexed with the annual report

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Meeting Of The Directors

During the year, four [4] Board of Directors, four 4] Audit Committes and two [2] Human Resource & Remuneration (HR & R)
Committee maetings were held.

Attendance by sach Director wias as follows:

Name of Director Board of Directors | Audit Committee | Human Resource and
Attendance Attendance Remuneration
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigui 4 = -
Mz, Sultana Siddigui 2 - 1
M. Sohail Ansar 3 3 2
Mrs. Mahtah Akbar Rashdi 4 4 2
Mr. Shunaid Gureshi 1 1 g
Msz. Khusgh Bakht Shujat 4 = x
Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Malik 4 4 :
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 4 - _
Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi 3 - -

Auditors

The present auditors Messer BEY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants shall retire and may be considered for re-appointment for
the year 2073-74.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

=  The financial statements, preparsd by the management of the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in eguity.

*  Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

=  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments

= |Intermational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followsd in preparation of financial
statements.

=  Keyoperating and financial data for the last six years = annexed.

The valus af investmants of Provident Fund cpergted by the Company as at June 30, 2023 (unaudited) is Rs. 364 956,299

[Jun= 30, 2022 - [audited): Rs. 274 277 0G8]

The system of internal contral Is sound in‘design and has been sffectively implemented and monitorsd.

Ther= are ne significant doubts upen the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has besn no matenial departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

Outsianding taxes and levies are given in the Notes to the Financial Statement.

Trading of shares by the Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, their spouse and

minar children:

Acquisition Transfer
CED- =
Director — Ms. Sultana Siddigue 8,000,000 -
CED & Company Secretary - -
Spouses & Minor Children - -

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Dividend And Appropriations

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Company has not declared any cash dividend however bonus shares were issued
in proportion of 2 shares for every 10 shares held.

The Board i= not proposing a final payout to the sharsheldars with a resolve to utilize this growth in revenus and operations by
directing the funds available with the Company to materialize Board's plans of growth along with achieving our vision of

becoming the largest entertainment crganization.

September 25, 2023

Karachi
i
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQLUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behalf of the Beard of Directors, we are pleased fo submit the Annoal Consolidated Financial Statements along with the
Auditor's Report thereon for the vear ended June 30, 2023

The consolidated financial statements comprise of group companies consisting of;

Company Region Relationship Shareholding %
Skyline Publications (Private) Limited Pakiztan Subesidiary 100%:
HUM TV Inc. Pakiztan Subeidiary 100%
HUM MNetwork FZ LLC Dubai Subsidiary 100%
HUM Network UK Limited United Kingdom Subsidiary 100%
HUM Co. (Private) Limited Pakiztan Subesidiary 100%:
HUM Mart (Private] Limited Pakiztan Subsidiary T0%
Tower Sports {Private) Limited Pakiztan Subsidiary 100%

Far the financial vear ended June 30, 2023 the group recorded revenue of Rs. 7,568 million (June 30, 2022: Rs. 6,545 million) and
profit after tax of Bs_ 1,918 millicn {June 30, 2022: Rs_ 1,335 millicn). The results translate into eamings per ghare of Rs. 1.72 (FY

2022 — restated: Rz 1.25)

The Directors’ Report on HUM Metwork Limited for the year ended June 30, 2023 has been separataly presented in the annual

report

On behalf 6f the Board of Directors,

September 25, 2023
Karachi

”~

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDICUI
Chairman & Directer
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Code of ethics & business practices

1. Introduction

1.1 The provisions of this Code as set forth are mandatory, and full compliance is expected under all circumstances. The Code
affirms the Company’s commitment fo uphold high moral and ethical standards and specifies the basic norms of behavior
for those who are involved in representing the Company i.e. every director or every employee or other person{s) associated
or worlding with the Company (hereinafter coliectively referred to as “Members or We or Us or Our”).

1.2  Failure to comply with the Code can result in conseguences for both the individual and the Company. The Company can
imposs appropriate discipline which may include discharges for violations of the Code. Furthermore, conduct that violates
the Code may also viclate federal or provincial faw and could subject both the Company and the individual to prosecutions
and legal sanctions.

1.3 Al members are responsible for complying with the Code. Any director or employes who becomes aware of a violation or
possible violation of the Code must report that information immediately to hisfner superior or a =enior officer of the
Company or the audit committee of the Board of Dirsctors. It is a violation of the Code to discriminate or retaliate against
any person for repeorting such information.

2. Build Trust and Credibility

21  The success of our business iz dependent on the trust and confidence we sarn from our employees, directors and
sharsholders. We gain credibility by adhering to our commitments, displaying honesty and integrity and reaching Company
goale zolely through honorable conduct. It is sasy to say what we must do, but the prootis in our actions. Ultimately, we
will be judged on what we do.

3. Compliance with the Law

3.1 Company's commitment to integrity begins with complying with laws, rules and regulations where we do businass. Further,
each of us must have an understanding of the company policies, laws, nufes and regulations that apply to our specific roles.
[fwe are unsure of whether a contemplated action is permitted by law or Company policy orin case of any other ambiguity,
we should seek the advice from the HR Department™R & R Committee/ Company's Legal Counssl/ Audit Commities as
the case may be. We are responsible for preventing violations of law and for reporting to the appropriate person{s) if we =e=
possible violations.

32 Many of the Company's ‘activities: are ‘sublect fo complex and changing laws. lgnorance of the law is not a defense.
Accordingly, Members must diligently ensure that they are awars of, and that their conduct cannot be interpreted as being
in contravention of laws governing the affairs of the Company.

4. Confidential and Proprietary information

41  Integral to the Company’s business success iz our protection of confidential company information, as well as nonpublic
information entrusted to us by employess, customers and other business partners. Confidential and proprietary
information includes such things as pricing and financial data, customer names/addresses or nonpublic information about
other companies, Including current or potential supplier and vendors. We will not disclosse confidential and nonpublic
information without a valid business purpose and proper authorization.

42 Certain records, reports, papers. processes. plans and methods of the Company or to which the Company has been
pemmitted access are considered to be =ecret and confidential by the Company or the party who has permitted acoess
thereto, and employees and Directors are prohibited from revealing information conceming such matters without proper
authorization.

43 Directors, individuals, clisnts, agencies, investors and the public should have information about the Company as is
necessary for them adeguately to judge the Company and ite activities. The Comipany believes that full and complete
reporting to governmantal agencies and the provision of information to'the public as required constitufes a responsible and
workable approach to disclosure. However, the Company except as required by law, will not disciose information important
to its competitive effectiveness or which might viclate the private rights of individuals, enterprizses or institutions. Employes
and Directors are therefore prohibited from discussing er disclosing any secret or confidential information about the
Company or in the possessicn of the Company unless such disclosure has been authorized by the Board of Directors and
Far as required by the law.

44 Al member shall comply with Company's policies and procedures relating to the retention and orderly destruction of the
Company's documents.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

4.5 |t iz important that we respect the proprietary rights of cthers. We will not acquire or seek to acquire impropar means of a
competitor's trade sserets or other proprietary or confidential information. We will not engage in unauthorized use, copying,
distribution or alteration of software or other intellectual property.

5. Use of Company Resources/Property

51 Theemployees and directors will always maintain in good condition Company property/resources, which may be entrusted
to them for official use during the course of employment and shall retum all such property to the Company prior to
relinquishment of her'his charge, failing which the cost of the sams will be recovered by the Company:

52 Company resources, including but not limited to the materals, assets (moveable or immoveabls), intellectual property,
equipment, electronic devices, telephones, fax machines, emalls, WhatsApp, mobile/cell phones, mobile sims, computers,
laptops, internet connections/devices, social media accounts, digital platforms, data and information sic. ("Company
Property”) are provided for company business use only and no personal use is permissible

53 All employess and those who represent the Company are trusted to behave responsibly and uss geod judgment to
Conserve company resources and properties. Head of the departments {HOD) are responsible for the rescuces assigned
to their depariments and are empowered to resclve issues concerning their proper use.

54 No employee shall be allowed or permitted to use Company Property in the conduct of an outzide business or in support
of any religious, political or other outsids daily activity, except for company-reguested support to nonprofit organizations.
Compary will not =olicit contributions nor distribute non-work related materials.

53 In order to protect the interests of the Company andfor other employess or associated person or undertakings, the
Company reserves the nght to moniter or review all data and information contained on an employee’s company-issusd
computer or electronic device, the use of the Internet or Company's intranet, Company will not tolerate the use of Company
Property or other resources tocreate. acoess, store, print, solicit or send any materialz that are harassing, threatening,
abusive, sexually explicit or otherwiss offensive or inappropriate in any manner whatsosver,

6. Create a Culture of Open and Honest Communication

6.1 Atthe Company everyone should feel comfortable to speak his or her mind, particularly with respect 1o ethics concems.
Head of depariments have a responsiblity to create an open and supportive environment where employess feel
comfortabls raising such questions: We alt benafit tremendously when employess exercise thelr power to prevent mistales
or wrongdoing by asking the right questions at the right times:.

6.2 Emplcy=es are encouraged, in the first instance, to address such issues with thelr managers/superior, as most problems

can be resolved swiftly at this stage. If for any reason that is not possible or if an employee is not comfortable raising the
issue with his or her manager/HOD , HR does operate with an open-door policy.

7. Gifts and Entertainment

Members shall not on bshalf of the Company, furnish directly or indirectly, expensive gifts or provide excessive
entertainment or bensfits to other persons.

=]
i1}

72 Members whose dutieg permit them to do 2o, may furnish modest gifts, favors and enterfainment to perscns other than
public officials, provided all of the following criteria are met:

{a)  The gifis ar= not in form of cash, bonds or other negotiable secunties and are of limited value =0 as not fo be capable of
being interprated as a bribe, payoff or other improper payment,

(b} theyare made as a matter of general and accepted business practice and does not constitute unfair business inducements
that would violate law, regulation or policiss of the Company;

ic)  they do not contravene any laws and are made in accordance with generally accepted ethical practices; and

{d} if subsequently disclosed to the public, their provision would not in any way embarrass the Company or the recipients or
reflect negatively on Company's reputation

For example, reasorizble expenses of the entertainment of current or prospective businsss associates or customers ars
permissible by employess whose duties embrace the providing of such entertainment, provided pricr approval from the

CEQ are obtained and proper accounting s mads.

7.3 Members whoaward confracts or who can influence the allocation of business, who create specifications that result in the
placement of business or who' participate in negetiation of contracts must be particularly careful to aveid actions

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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that create the appearance of favoritism or that may adversely affect the Company's reputation for impartiality and fair
dealing. The prudent course iz to refuse a courtesy from a vendor when Company is involved in chioosing or reconfirming
a supplier or under circumstances that would create an impression that offering courtesies is the way to obtain Company
business.

8. Public Officials

81 Al dealings between employess or directors of the Company and public officials should be transparent.

82 Ewventhe appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials = improper and unacceptable. Any parficipation directly
or indirectly, in any bribes, kickibacks, illegal gratuities indirect contributions or similar payments is expressly forbidden,
whether or not they might furthar the businass inferest of the Compamy. Maintenance of a high standard of integrity is of
the utmost importance to the Company.

83 Since the furnishing, on behalf of the Company, of even an inexpensive gift or a modest entertainment or benefit to a public
official may be open to the interpretation that it was furnished illegally to secure the use of histher influence as public
official, no such gift, entertainment or benefit may be furnished by an employes or director

9. Political Contributions

9.1 The use of the Company's funds, goods or services as contributions to political parties, candidates or campaigns &2
specifically forbidden.

82 Contributions include money or anything having value, such as loans, services, entertainment, trips and the use of the
Company’s facilities or azsets.

10. Personal Gain

101 Directors or employees shall not uze their status to obtain personal gain from those doing or sesking to do business with
the Company.

10.2 Except as hercinafter provided, employess and directors should netther seek nor accept gifts, payments, services, fees,
special valuable privileges, pleasure or vacation trips or accommodations or loans from any persons {except, in the case
of loans, from persans in the business of lending and then only on conventional terms) or from any organization or group
that does or is seeking to do business with the Company ‘'or any of itz affiliates, or from a compestitor of the Company or
any of itz affiliates. However, employees and directors may accept modest gifis, favors or -entertainment up to the
maximum limits prescribed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time provided that doing so is consistent
with the tests relating to the furnishing of gifts ==t forth in section-7

11. Conflicts of Interest

11.1 Members should avoid situations in which their personal interssts conflict or might conflict with their responsibilitiee
towards the Company. All such conflicts must be fully disclosed to the employes’s superior or in the case of directors, to
the audit commitiee of the Board of directorz.

112 Members should seek to aveid acquiring any interest or participation in any activities that would tend fo:
a. Deprive the Company of the time or attention reguired to perform their duties properly; ar
b. Create an obligation or distraction which would affect their judgment or ability to act solely in the Company's best inferest.

11.3 All members are required to disclose in writing to their supervisors or to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors all
business, commercial or firancial interests or activities where such interests or activities might reasonably be regarded az
creating an actual or potential conflict with their duties fo the Company. Every employee of the Company who is chargaed
with executive, managerial or supervizory responsibility and avery Director is required fo =es that actions taken and
decision made within his/her jurisdiction are free from the influsnece of any interests that might reasonably be reqgardad as
conflicting with those of the Company.

11.4 If personal financial benefit is improperly gained by an employse or directar, directly or indirectly, or through a spouse or
child or a relative sharing the same residence as the employes or director, as a result of his / her employment or position
with the Company or by the use or misuse of the Company's property or of informafion that is confidential to the
Company's business, then the emplovee or director must account to the Company for any benefit recsived. Member must
do mare than merely act within the law: They must act in such a manner that their conduct will bear the clossst scrutiny
should circumstance demand that it be examined. Not only actual conflicts of imterest but the very appearance of conflict
should be avoided.
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11.8 Determining whether a conflict of interest exists is not always easy to do. Member with a conflict of interest question
should seek advice from management. Befors engaging in any activity, transaction or relationship that might giva rissto a
conflict of interest, employess must seeX review from their managers or the HR department/ Company's Legal
Counsslffudit Committes.

12. Inside Information

121 Méembers shall not uss for their own financial gain or disclaze for the use of others, inside information obtainad as a result
of their position within the Company.

12.2 Members may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information not generally known
to the public and either frade or induce others to trade in the stock of the Company or in the stock of another Company.
Specific confidential information would include but not fimited to financial information, information concerning acquisitions
or dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or mergers with other companies.

12.3 Confidential, price-sensitive information may only be acted on or passed on if the transfer of information is necessary for
legitimate business reasons ("MNe=d to Know-Principal®) or unless it s required by the law. Anyone who has such
information may not recommend or inifigte transactions with respect to any seourities or other financial instruments the
price of which may be affected by such information. The Company must be informed immediately it a member has reazon
to bedieve information is being or has been shared that viclates insider trading regulations.

13. Client Information and Advice

131 Members must not seak to mislead the market or clisnts in any manner. When working with a client, appropriata care shall
be taken that the clisnt receives information which is necessary for a2 reasonable decision by the client. This includes
information and advice given. Members shall not provide advice andfor recommendations regarding any service in which
they are not appropriately authorized.

14. Authorization and Recording of Transactions and safekeeping
of Assets

141 The Company’s books and records must reflect, in an accorate, fair and timaly manner, the transactions and disposition
of assets of the Company. Member responsible for the Company's books and records must ensure that this occurs.

142 All transactions must be-authorized and executed in accordance with the instructions of management and the Board of
Dirgctors. They must be recorded =0 as to permit the accurate preparation of financial statemeants in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and other generally acceptad laws applicable to such statements and to maintain
accountability for assets.

14.3 Access to asssiz is permitted only in accordance with the authorization of managsment

14.4 The u=e of Company funds or assets for any unlawful or improper purpose is strictly prohibited and thoss responsible for
the accounting and record Keeping functions are expected to be vigilant in ensuring enforcement of thiz prohibition. The
recorded accountability for assets will be compared with the existing assets at reascnabls intervals and appropriate action
will be taken with respect to any differences.

14.5 We must not improperly influence, manipulate or mislead any authorized audit, nor interfere with any auditor engaged to
perform an internal independent audit of Company books, records, processes or internal controls.

14.6 Safeguarding the company’s assets iz the responsibility of all members. Thaft, carslessness. and waste have a direct
impact on the company's profitability. Assets should be ussd efficiently and maintain such assets with care and respect,
while guarding against waste and abuse. Look for opportunities to improve performance while reducing costs. The use of
company time, matenals, asssts, or facilities for purposss unrelated to the company's business, or the removal or
borrowing of company property, is prohibited

15. Discrimination-Free Work Environment

131 The policy of the Company iz to provide a working environment free of discrimination and harassment in which individuals
are accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon ment and ability,

152 Discriminatory practices based an race, sex, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, mantal status, family status, ages or

disability will not be tolerated. Members are entitled to freedom from =exaal and all other forms of personal harassment in
the work placs.
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15.2 I is not a discriminatory practice fo make a distinction between persons based on bona fide ocoupational requirements.
Sinces bona fide occcupational requirements are narrowly defined, such distinctions should not be undertaken without first
obtaining express authorization.

16 Competition and Trade Practice Standards

161 The Company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business activities, but its efforts in the markstplace shall be
conductzd in a fair and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable competition and trads practice faws and
regulations.

16.2 Under no circumstances shall any employee or Director of the Company be a party 1o any collusion or concerted effort of
any type involying any competitor vendor, supplier, customer or other party, which isin restraint of trade or'violation of laws
and requlations designed to foster competition. Because laws relating to competition are complex, employses and
Directors should refer matters about what they are in doubt to their superior or should seek the advice of the HR
Department’ Company's Legal Counsel! Audit Committes’ HR&R Committes as the case may be:

17 Accountability

171 Each of us is rezponsible for knowing and adhering to the values and standards sst forth in the Code and for raizsing
guestions if we are unceriain about Company policy. If we are concerned whether the standards are being met or are aware
of viclations of the Code, we must contact the HR department/| egal Counsel/Audit Committee/HRER Committes:

17.2 Company takes ssriously the standards set forth in the Code, and violations are cause for digciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment.

18. Standards of Conduct

181 Although the various matters dealt with in this Code do not cover the full spectrum of employ=e or Director activities, they
are indicative of the Company’s commitment fo the behavior expected from employees and Directors in all circumstances.
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Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employees to disclose any malpractice or misconduct of which they become aware and to provide protection for
employses who report allegations of such malpractice or misconduct. The main purpose of this whistle blowing policy is to give
all employees an opporiunity to disclose matters thay feel need to be reporiad in the interest of fairplay and larger benefit of the
organization; high standard of corporate governance: compliance with legal reguirements and protection of the Company's
interest.

2. Policy

The whistle blowing policy is designed to encourage employess to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, to ensure that all
aflegations are thoroughly investigated and suttable action taken where necessary. Any whistle-blowing emplovee is protected
against adverse employment actions (dizcharge, demotion, suspension, harassment, or other forms of diserimination) for rarsing
allegations of business misconduct. An employee is protected even if the allegations prove to be incomect or unsubstantiated as
long as there is no evidence of willful misreporting. Employees who participate or assist in an investigation will also be protected.

3. Requirement of policy

This document thus sets out 2 formal whistle-blowing policy, consisting of safe and effective procedures for misconduct
disclosure or reporting so that appropriate remedial action can be taken. A written, formal policy is also a means of preventing
and dsterring misconduct that might be contemplated but has not yet taken place: |t is also a transparent method of addressing
issuas refating to whistle blowing, such as answering standard questions, giving assurances, providing information and offering
explanations.

4. On what should one blow the whistle
What is reportable misconduct?

Any s=rious concerms you may have about any aspect of the operations of the Hum Natwork Limited (the Company) and thoss
who workl in the Company can be reported under this policy. This may be a conduct that

. Iz again=t the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or established standards of practice of the Company. amounts to
improper, unethical, or unlawful conduct;

. Amounts to waste of company’'s resources; makes you fesl uncomfortable in terms of vour experience with the standards
you believe; or

. Amounts to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when it happens or when
it iz reazonably likely to cccur. Harm to the Company or to its integrity may occur when any of this conduet is unchecked
or unaddrezsed. Importantty, in determining whether to report conduct, harm is not only measured in terms of monitory loss
to the organization, or damage to a particular program or inifiative, but the harm may alsc be done to the integrity and
reputation of the Company itself, or its suriival and/or growth.

Reportable conduct falls into the Tallowing categories:

4.1 lilegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be illegal or unlawful in terms of the Rules and Regulations of the Company and other applicable aws. We all have
legal responsibilities, obligaticns or dutizs. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, corruption (for example, bribery}, or monay
laundering - are in breach of legal duties and therefore constihide reportable misconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since it viclates clearly communicated procedures {in the form of policies; regulations, or rules)
governing the operations of the Specific rules and processas, fogether with other best practice procedures, guide accounting
practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matters, the transfer of funds to recipients, approved recipient accounts, and
the like. Such procedures are imporiant for good governance and breaching them may expose the application of funds to risk of
loss or real Joss.
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undermines universal, core sthical values, such as integrity, respect. honesty, responsibility,
accountability, fairmess. For example one could exert undue pressure on a person in position of power in order to gain an
advantage. That would be unfair to ‘others and as such unsthical, although neither unlawful nor un-procadural. But not all
unethical conduct is reportable. For example, some kinds of conduct may be disrespectful and therefore undssirable, without
harming any senous interests other than personal feelings. This would not be reportable misconduct

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct consfituting 2 grose waste of resources is a reportable category in it own right since responsible stewardship of
resources is as crucial to the success of the Company as all employess have an obligation to engure that all rezcurces are used
prudently and efficiently. f resources are spent in a wasteful manner, and in breach of the public trust under which they ars
provided, and an employes Knows about this then thiz would be reportable under the whistie-blowing mechanism

5. Whistle-blower protection

HML shall take all necessany actions to safeguard the interests of the whistle-blower. Where an individual makltes a report under
this policy in good faith, reasonably believed to be true, thers will be no retaliation (pleass read detail below) against the reporter
should the disclosure turm cut to be misguided. Retaliation means any direct or indirect detrimental action recommended,
threatened or taken because an individual reported conduct described in Section 4 of this policy. When established, retaliation is
by itzaif misconduct which may be pursued under the appropriate mechaniems - for example, through disciplinary action initiated
through mechanisms of HR Policy or more broadly and as appropriate, throdgh other mechanisms of the company's rules.
Reporting under this policy, however, in no way immunizes of shiclds a whistle-blower against action following from his or her

own misconduct, which includes willfully making allegations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the individual knows to
be falze or makes with an imtent to misinform.

6. Whistle-blowing procedures

HML encourages all its employees to act responsibly at all times and protect themselves and the company against any ilegal or
immaoral acts (ses section 4) by immediately repording any such actions to the Designated Person.

Designated Persons (DPs)

The

. Company secretary, and
. Head of Internal Audit

Shall be the "Designated Persons® (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the whistle-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistle-blower shall have direct access to the Designated Persons at all times. This right of the whistle-blower shall be
upheld under all circumstances and respected by the management of the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reports to the Designated Persons can be made by: Official emall address of the Designated Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will inftiate an investigation and take any consequent action as deemed appropriate and will record the sams for
information of the Board of Directors, Keeping at- all times, the confidentiality of the Whistle Blower's identity.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Annual Report 2023 1 .

UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




: | Annual Report 2023

Building a better
waorking world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Wa have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of HUM Network Limited (the Company), which comprise the
unconsolidatad statement of financial pasition as at 30 June 2023, and the unconsolidatad statement of profit of loss, unconsolidated
statament of comprehensive Income, the unconsolfidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsaolidated statemant of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes 1o the unconsclidated financial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policles
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, o the best ol our
knowledge and bellet, were nacassary for the purposes of the audit.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations gliven to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial
position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement
of changes in equity and tha unconsolidated statement of cash fiows togather with the notes farming par thereof conform with the
accounting and reporling stancards as applicable in Pakistan and give the inlormation required by the Comparnlas Act, 2017 (R1X al
2017}, In the manner so raquired and respectively ghve a trus and talr view of tha state of the Company’s aHalrs as at 30 June 2023
and of the profit, the other comprehensive income. the ¢hanges in equily and its ¢ash flows for the year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAg) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further describad in the Auditor's Responsibililies lor the Audit of the Financial Statemants saction of our
report. W ara Independant of the Company in accardance with tha International Ethies Standards Board far Accountants’ Goda of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have lulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those matters that, in our professional |udgment, were of most significance In our audit of the financial statemants
of the current year. These matters wers addressed (n the context of cur audit of the unconsalidated financlal statements as a whole,
and in torming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

m HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of telavision program cosis

As of the year and, the batanca of telavision program costs
amounted to Fs, 483,447,376 (30 June 2022; 425.690,238)
which represents unameortized cost of completed tetevision
programs and telavision programs in production.

As per the accounting policy of the Company, lelevision program
costs and acquired 1elevision program licenses and righls are
charped o expansa based on the ratio of the revenues eamed
till date to total revenues to be earned from the program
including future estimatad revanues, less cost expensed in
prior years on an individual program basgis.

Allocation of television program costs over several accounting
periods based on estimates of revenus invalve significant
Judgement of the managsment which may have a significant
impact on the unconsolidated financial statements. For this
reason, we have identified this area as key audit matter,

Refer nates 3.4, 8 and 23 to the unconsalidated financial
sigements,

Chir gudit procedures amongst others, comprised reviewing
the appropnatenass ol the accounting policy of the Company
in aiccordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.
Further, we abtained undarstanding of the revanus estimation
and amotization process ol the Company.

In thiz regard, we selected & sample of lelevision programs
and consldered the factors used by the management for
revenue estimation and amorization of telsvision program

cost including:

. historic expanance of ravenps samed by similar
programs;

. ratings of the program from available svidances;

. rates Uused by the Company and its fluctuation based
an the trend analysis: and

. we dlso considerad subsequent events which may have
an impact on unamortized cost.

We also avaluated whather adequata disclosures have baan
made in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statamants
in accordanca with e appicable financlal raporting standards.,

2. Revenue recognition

Refar note 3.20 and 22 o the accompanying uncansolidated
financial statements)

The Company earns revenue from a varlety of sources among
tha differant business areas of which 6% partains to revenue
from advartisements and subscriplions.

As reported in the explanatory notes; revenues trom
advertisement are recognized at the time of the appearance
of the adverisement and subscnption income |5 recognized
in the month In which service |5 rendered.

We concluded that this area constitutes a key audit matter lor
the Company considering (he significance of the amount, il
being a key performance Indleator and also the increase of
8% and 28% in advertisemant and subscriplion income as
compared to the prior year respectively.

We obtainad an understanding of the Company's processas
in place for revenue recognition and tested key controls over
each significant revenue stream.

We inspacted a sampla of contracts to check that revenua
recognifion was in accordarice with the contract tarms and tha
Company's revenue recognition policias,

Wa parformed analytical review procedures and other 1est of
details aver revenue including cut-off procedures 1o check that
revanys has been recognised in the appropriate accounting
perind.

We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclozsures in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Managemeant is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Repor,
but does nof includa the unconsalidated finangial statemants and our auditor's repart therean.

Qur opinion an the unconsolidated financial statemants doas not cover tha other information and wea do not express any form of
assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is matedally inconsistant with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. I, hased on the work we have perormed, we conclude that
ihere is a matorial misstatement of this ethar information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Managemant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidatad financial statemants in accordance with
the accounling and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2007 (XIX of 2017) and
tor such intermal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements
that are fras from mataral misstatamant, whather dua to fraud or arror

In praparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management |s responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going conearn and using the going concarn basis of accounting unless
managemsnt aither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, ar has no realistic altarnative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Company's finansial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whather the Lnconsolidated financlal statements as a whole are free from
matarial misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
i= a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misslatements can arise Irom fraud or érror and are considered material If,
individually or in the aggregate, thay could reasonably be axpeciad to Influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsolidated financlal stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1S4s as applicable in Pakistan, we sxercise professional judgment and maintain protessional
skepticlsm throughout the audit, We also!

. Identify and assess the risks of malerlal misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and parform audil procecures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audil evidence that is sulliclent and appropriate
lo provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuliting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting lrom arror, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgary, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal gontrol,

. Oblain an undarstanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectivenass of the Company s internal control

. Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and relaled disclosures made by managemeanl.

. Corclude on the appropriateness of managemant's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, basad on the audit
avidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant deubt on
the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concemn. [f we conclude that a material uncartainty exisis, we ara required to
draw attention inour auditor's repor to the ralated disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements ar, if such disclosures
are inacequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our concluslons are based on the audit svidance obtalned up o the date of our auditor's
repart. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease [0 conlinue as a going concern.

. Evaluals the overall presentation, structure and conlent of the unconsclidated financial stalements, Including the disclosures,
and whether the unconsolidated financlal statements reprasent the underlying transactions and avants In a mannar that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Direclors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idemiify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Dirsctors with a statement that we have complisd with relevant ethical requirements regarding independencs,
and ta commurnicate with them all relatisnshipe and other matiers that may reasonably ba thought to baar an our indepeandence, and
whera applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of tha uncensalidated financial statemants of the currant yaar and ara tharefora the key audit mattars. Wa describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disciosure about the matiar or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we detarming that a maiter should not be communicated in our report because the adverss consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expecied {o outweigh the public Imerest benefits of such communication.

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
b) the unconsolidated Statament of Financlal Position, the unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the unconsolidated
Slatement of Comprehensive Income, the unconsalidated Statermant of Changas in Eguity and the unconsolidated
Statemant of Cash Flows thgether with tha notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2017 (20X ol 2017) and are in agreemant with the books of account and returns;

) investments made, axpendilure incurred and guarartess axtanded during the year were tor the purpose of the
Company's business: and
d) no fakat was deductibie at source undar the Fakat and Ushr Ordinance. 18380 (XVIIl of 1880).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independant auditor's report i Omer Chughtar.

2o B U,

EY Ford Rhodes

Ghartered Accountant

Place: Karachi

Date: September 27, 2023

UDIN Mumber: AR202310120g4NUGHFSI
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note e RUpges -———
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipmant 4 1.402.053,549 1,205,184, 777
Intangible assets 5 2,966,208 10,102,023
Long-term investmeanis =] 338.898.481 168,594 481
Long-term deposits and prepayments T 30,327,428 31,967,331
Television program costs 8 397,617,518 335,343,010
Defemred tax asset ) 131,016,868 158,969,133
2,302 880,052 1,860 464 764
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 16,715,587 16.627 261
Current portion of televisicn program costs 8 85,829,858 90347218
Trade debis 10 2,688,381,940 2,239, 728,745
Shon-temm invesiments 11 589,143,291 1,127 212,684
Advances 12 154,575,629 108,662,128
Trade deposits and shorl-term prepaymenls 13 28,904,298 25,160,453
Other receiveblies 14 1,742,173,997 166,202,807
Taxation — net 202,602,801 236,500,979
Cash and bank balances 15 447,796,769 833,498,560
5,956,124,170 4,843,940 836
TOTAL ASSETS 8,259,004,222 6,804 405,600
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Autharised capital
1.500.000.000 (2022: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs.1/- each 1,500.000,000 1.500.000.000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16 1,134,000,000 G945 000,000
Unappropriated prafit 6,111,864,380 4 151,625 806
7,245.864,380 5,096 625 BOA
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-temm lease llabilities 17 55,234,536 72,676,898
Long-tam financing 18 31,250,000 78,125,021
86,484,536 150,801,918
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 20 814,018,537 1,217 983,143
Advance from customers 26,724,620 14,579,805
Accrued mark-up 218,809 4,208,850
Unclaimead dividend 6,153,603 6.153,631
Unpaid dividend 1,374,738 2290 7a7
Curmrent poriion of deferred income - Government grant 19 - 478,147
Curren! portion of long-term lease liabilites 17 15,664,939 16,372,565
Current portion of long-term financing 18 62,500,000 2084 813 943
026,655,306 1,556,977 ,875
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES §,259,004,222 8,804 405,800
Tre annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsalidated financial statements.
L |
e ..'32' X
I"aﬁ—;" i3 [ :""' -:-1'
L - S
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABEAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Chief Executive Chairman
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Mote s RUpEES -

Revenue 22 6,825,586,346 6,018,060,888
Cost of production 23 (3.540,102.628) (3.454.551,287)
Transmission cost {126,696,002) (100,165,240,

(3,666,798,630) (3.554 717,227
Gross profit 3,158,787.716 2 4684 251 961
Distribution costs 24 (409,427.716) {343 265,091
Administrative expenses 25 {885,354 383) {583 616,663)
Other income 26 621,870,324 B4,936,683
Other expenses 27 - {258,112,800)
Operating profit 2,485,875041 1,588,194,020
Finance costs 28 (46,059,108) {73.3854,212)
Profit before taxation 2,439,816,835 1,514,830,878
Taxatan 29 (290,578,261) (150,824 BGS)
Profit for the year 2,149,238,574 1,363,905,013

[Restated)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupee) 30 1.90 1.20

The annaxed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsclidated financial statements.

A V.
o L

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUH&MMED ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
-------- RUPDES ceseemmnamane
Profit after taxation 2,149,238,574 1,363.905.013
Other comprehensive income -
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 2,149,238,574 1,363.905,013

The annexed notes from 1 1o 41 ferm an integral par of these unconsoclidated financial slalements

N V. ,G’é/’t
i_:f’_: *_ - 1 oo
a7 Sa iR

¥
DURAID OURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue Resarva

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capital profit Total
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2021 945,000,000 3,118.470,793 4.063,470,723
Profil for the year - 1,363.905,013 1,363.905,013
Ohthar comprahensive incomsa z B =
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.363.905,013 1,363,905,013
Interim cash dividend for the quarter ended
March 31, 2022 @ Re.D.35 per share - (330,750,000) (330,750,000)
Balance as at June 30, 2022 845,000,000 4,151 625,806 5,096.625,806
Praofit for the year - 2,149,238,574 2,149,238,574
Orther comprehensive income = i .
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,149,238,574 2,149,238,574
Issue of bonus shares @ 20% 189,000,000 (189,000,000} -

Balance as at June 30, 2023

1,134,000,000 6,111.864,380 7,245,864,380

The annexed notes lrom 1 1o 41 form an Integral part of Ihese unconsolidated Mnancial statermnents

f‘ﬁ' e --'fi - I-' I'-. J/
. il S =8

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generaled from operations

Taxes pald

Finance eosts paid

Profit received on deposit accounts

Long-lerm degosils

Television program costs

Met cash (used in) generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditurs

Shori-term investmen:s - net

Long-term investmeant

Dividend received

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed sssels

Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Laasa renlals paid

Long-term financing — nat

Net cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year

"‘_--"--"'_;“L - y bt
,,{::'ﬁ_”uf g e
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive Chairman
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MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI

3

17
18

The annexed notes from 1 1o 47 form an integral part of thesa unconsalidated financial statemants

2023 2022
—--——-- Rupees -
3,029,002 2,091,176,319
{198,727 818) (243,184, 625)
{39 141,385) {77.160,085)
56,453.532 28,038 591
1,639,903 (846, 776)
(62,274 499} 16,720,993
{239,021,265) 1,814,754 847
{314,570,888) {540,559 873)
558,408,961 (705 809 061)
{150,000,000) .
58,931,534 23,451,856
4,822,839 18.071,921
157,602,448 (754,845 167}
(925,077) {328,450 231)
{24,258,933) (25,726,588)
[279,188,964) (228,061 496)
(304,372.974) (582 238,715)
(385, 701,791) 477.670,975
B33 498 560 355 27 HBS
447 796.769 833408 560

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

11 HUM MNetwork Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on 25 February 2004
under the repealed Companles Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) now Companigs Act, 2017. The shares of the
Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2 The Company's principal business is o launch transnational satellite channels and aims at preseniing a wide variety of
cultural heritage and news. Its core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertalnmant and media
marketing. It covers a wide variety of programmes with respect to informaticn, entertalnment, current affairs, education,
health, food, music and society,

1.3 Geographical location and address of business units

Regislered office Plot Mo. 10/11, Hassan Ali Street. Of. LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.
City offices - Karachi Alfalah Court, 1.1 Chundrigar Read
City office — Islamabad 27, 1&T center, sector G-6/1
City office — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road
City office — Peshawar Plot Mo, 7-4, 25 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment
City office - Quetta House # 3, Phase |l, Shahbaz town
City office — Multan Ghous-a-Azam Road, Bismillah Colony
1.4 These are separale financial slalemenls of the Company in which investmenls in subsidianes are slaled al cost less

impalment, if any.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of;
- Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Buard (IASB) as nolified under the Companies Act 2017 (the Act): and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act

Where provisions of and direclives issued under the Acl differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act have been followed.

2.2 Accounting convention

2.2.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
otherwise specifically stated.

2.2.2 These unconsolidated financlal statements are presenied In Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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23.2

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to these unconsolidated financial statements

There are certain new and amended standards, issued by International Accounting Standards Board (|ASB),
interpretations and amendments that are mandatory Tor lhe Company's accounting periods beginning on or
after July 1. 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Amendments to approved accounting standards

IFRS 3 Reference to the Canceptual Framework (Amendments)
1AS 18 Froperty, Flant and Egupment: Proceeds before Intended Use {Amendments)
IAS 37 Onerous Cantracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to the accounting standards did not have any matenial effect on the
Company's financial statements.

The IASBE has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual
Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for
preparers of financial statements whio develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framewaork.
The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any
standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Cenceptual Framework is to assist IASB in
developing standards, to help preparers evelop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable
standard In place and to assisl all parties to understand and Interpret the standards.

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2018-2020 cycle)

IFRS & Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 percent’' tesl for derecognition of financial liabilities
IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements
IFRS 16 Leases; Lease incentives

The adoption of the above amendments to the approved accounting standards did not have any material
effect on the Company's financial statements,

Amendment or Improvement Effective dates
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracls (Amendments) 1-Jan-2023
IAS 1 and IFRS  Disclosure of Accounting Palicies (Amendments) 1-Jan-2023
Fraclice
Stalement 2
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimales (Amendments) 1-Jan-2023
1AS 12 Deferred Tax ralated to Assels and Liabilities arisingfrom a Single ™ 1-Jan-2023
1AS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Twa Model Rules (Amendments) 1-Jan-2023
IAS 1 Classificalion of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-curre 1-Jan-2024
IFRS 168 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leasaback (Amendments) 1-Jan-2024
IAS T /IFRS T Disclosures: Supplier Finahce Arrangements (Amendments) 1-Jan-2024
IFRS 10/1AS 28  Sale or Conlribution of Assals belween an Inveslor and its Assoc Nol yet finalised
{Amendments)

The above standards and amendmemts are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’'s
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new slandards have been issuad by |ASBE which are yel lo be nolified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan and are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Standard IASB effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023
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24  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with spproved accounting standards, as
applicable: in Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumplions that affect the
application of polices and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabiities and accompanying
disclosuras. Ungerainty about these |udgments. estimates and assumplions could result In outcomeas that require a
material adjustment to the camying amount of assels or liabilites affected in future periods.

The judgments, estimates and assumplions are based on higtorical experience and various other factors that are believed
1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments aboul the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that ara not readily apparent from othar sources

Judgments, estimates and assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the eslimate s revised if the revision affects only thal pericd, or in the penod of the
revision and future perods if the revision affects both current and future panods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, estimates and
assumptions which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Campany reviews appropriateness of the rale of depreciation / amaorisation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculabion of depreciation / amorlisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of lhe recoverable amount of assels =
made for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying
amount of respeclive item of propedy, plant and eguipment and inlangible assets, with comesponding effects on the
depreciation | amortisation charge and impalrmant

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company valua s investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, If any. The Company determines whather
objective evidence of impairment exisis for individual investments. The delermination of fair value of unguoled
subsidiaries involves inherenl subjectivity, key assumptions {such as future cash flow forecosts, discount and growth
rates and volatliity), and estimation relation to valuation inputs and lechnigues. Any change in these assumptions and
estimates may have slgnificant impact on the fair value of iInvestmeants with corresponding impact in statemeant of profit or
loss.

Television program costs

Television program cosis represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. In order to determine the amount to be charged to statement of profit or loss, the managsment estimates
future revanues from each program. Estimates of fulure revenues can change significantly due to a variaty of factors,
inciuding adverlising rates and the level of market acceptance of the production in different geographical locations.
Accordingly, revenug estimales are reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, IT necessary, Such adjustments
could have & matenzl effect on resulls of operabions in future periods.

Income faxes
In making the astimate for income 1ax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the applicable (ax aws
and the decision by appallate authorities on certain lssues in the past.

Deferred tax asseis are racognised for all unused tax losses and cred|ts to the extent that |t Is probable that taxable profit
will be avallable against which such |osses and credits can be ulilized. Significent managament judgment s reguired (o
detarmine the amount of defarred lax assels thal can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of Tulure
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assels
The Company Uusas a provision matrix o calculale ECLs for trade debts and other recelvablas. The provision ratles ars
based on days past due for Company's various customer that have simifar loss pattemns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical ohserved default rates. The Company will calibrate the
matrix {0 sdjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, If forecast economic
condilions are expecled lo delenorale over (he nexl year which can lead lo an increased number of defaulls in Lhe
manufacturing sector, the historical defaull rates are adjusted. Al every reporting date, the historical obzerved defzult
rates ara updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessmenl of the correlation between historical observed defauilt rates, forecast economic conditlons and ECLs is a
slanificant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensilive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions,
The Company's historical credil loss experence and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual defaull in the future. The Information about the ECLs on the Company's financial assets exposed to
credil risk s disclosed in nole 35,5,
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Conlingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherantly involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
events cannot be predicted with certainty, The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the
value of contingent assets and liabilites which may differ on the occurrance / non-ocourrence of the uncerain future
events,

Leases- Estimating the incremental berrowing rate

The Company cannol readily determine the interast rate implicit In the lease, therefore, It uses its incremental borrowing
rate ('IBR’) to measure leass liabilities. The IBR is the rale of Interest that the Company would have to pay 1o borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security. the funds necessary to obtain an assel of a similar value (o the right-of-use
asset in-a similar economic environment.

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Campany determines the lease lerm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any perlods coverad by
an option to extend the leasa f |t [s reasonably certain o be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to terminate
the lease, if it |s reasonably certain nol te be exerclsed.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination option. The Company applies judgemant in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers afl relavant factors that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise sither the renawal or termination. After
the commencemeant date, the Company reassesses the lease term If there Is a significant evenl or change in
circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Oparating fixed asssts

These are stated at cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation s charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as o wnte off the histoncal cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is
availabla to use and no depreciation is chargad for the manth in which assat was disposed of,

Maintenance and normal repairs arg charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incured. Major renewals and
improverments, if any, are capitalized when it is probable fhat respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An ltem of property, plant and sguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expecled from its use or disposal. Any gan or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net dispozal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) s included In statemant of profit or loss in the
vear the asset is derecognised.

The assets' residual values, useful llves and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted i appropriate, at sach
statement of financial pasition date,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises g nghl-of-use assels at the commencement date of the lzase (i.e. the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciabion and impaiment losses
and adusted Tor any remeasurement of lease liahilities. The cost of nghl-of-use assels includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, inltial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencemen! date less
any lease Incantlives recaived. Right-of-use assels are deprecisled on a straight-line basis over the shorler of lease term
or useful life, except for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assets transfer lo the lessee by the end of the
lease term or cost of right of use assets reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate
those righl of use assel over the wseful life of the underlying assel

Capital work-in-progress
These are staled al cost less accumulaled impairment and consist of expenditures mcurred and advances made in

respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred lo specific assets as and when assets are
availabla for use.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intanglble assets acquired in
2 husiness combination is fair value as at the dale of acquisition, Following initizl recognition, intangible assets are carried
al cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impamment losses.

3.2 Intangible assats

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever thers is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired, The amorisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible assat with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financlal year end The amoriisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives Is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the expense categaory consistant with the
function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

B Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary 13 a entity over which the: Company has control. Control is-achieved when the Company s exposed, or has
rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power
over ke invesiee, Generally, there is presumption that a majority of voling nghts resull in control. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are taken into sccount.

Investment In subsidiary s Initially recognised al cost. Al subsequenl reporting dales, the Company reviews the carmying
amounl of the investment lo assess whether there is any indicalion lhat such invesimenls have suffered an impairment
loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
lozs, if any, Such impaimment losses ar reversal of impairmant losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
These are classified as long-term investment’ In the unconsalidated financial statements.

3.4 Television program costs

Telavision program costs represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overbeads and are
stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated amortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRV is estimated by the
management an the basis of future revenue generation capacity of the program, Acquired lelevision program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license period begins and the program is available for use.

Telavision program costs and acqguired television program loenses and rights are charged (o expenss based on the rafio
of lhe revenues eamed bl dale to tolal revenues Lo be earned from the program including fulure estimaled revenues less
cost expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.

35 Inventories
These are valued on weighled average cost basis and are slated at the fower of cosl and NRVY,
3.6 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial Eability or aquity
insirument of anothar entity

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequantly maasured at following:

(a) at amorlised cosl
ib) gt fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), and
{c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financlal assel's contractual cash flow
characianstics and the business modal for managing them. With the exception of lrade receivables, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
fransaclion cosls, Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price deterrmined under IFRS 15.
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In erder for a nancial assel 1o be classified and measured al amortized cost or fair value through OC, il needs lo give
rise lo cash flows lhal are 'solely payments of principal and interast {SPPI) on the principal amounl oulstanding. This
assessmant s referred o as the SPP test and is parformed at an instrumant level. The Company's business modeal for
managing financial assets rafers to how it manages its financial assels in arder 1o generate cash flows. The busingss
maodal determines whether cash fiows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial azsets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the irade date, L.e. the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sl the asset.

(=) At amoriised cost
A financial asset is measured at amoriised if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial assat is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets n ofder to collect
contraciual cash fliows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments af
principal and interast on the prncipal amount outstanding.

(b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of princlpal and Interest are classified and measurad at fair
valus through profit or loss, irrespeactive of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily reqguired to be measursd at fair value, the Company may irevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the reguiraments to be measured at amortised cost or at FVYOC] as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mlsmatch that would otherwlse arise.

A financial assel {unless it Is a lrade receivable without a significant financing compaonent that is initially measured at the
transaction price) Is initlally measured at falr value plus, for an item nat at FVYTPL, transacticn costs that are directly
attributable to ils acquisition,

{e) AL fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt Instruments Is measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are mel:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding o collect contractual cash flows
and salling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash Nows that are solely payments of
principal and interast on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon Initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify imevocably its equily investments 8s equity instruments
designated at FYOCI when they meetl lhe definiion of equity under 1AS 32 Financlal Instruments. Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an Instrument-by-instrument basis.

Subseguent measuremant
For purposes of subsequent measuremenl, inancial assels are classified into following categories:

- Financial assets af amortised cost (debt Instruments)

- Flnancial assetz designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upan
deracognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assels al amortised cost are subsequently measurad using the effective interast (EIR) meathod and are subject
o impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assel is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL Iinclude financial assels held for trading, financial assets dasignated upon initial recognition at
FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily requirad to be measured at fair value, Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financlal assets with cash flows
thal are not solely payments of principal and interest are dassified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt nstruments 1o be classified at amortized cost or
at FVOCI, as described above, debl instruments may be designated at FVPL an initial recognition if doing so aliminales,
ar significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Financial assets at FVPL are camied in the unconsolidated statemant of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in unconsalidated statement of profit or loas.

This category alse includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at FVOC!, Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at far value, Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
Iosses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured al amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes sre recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OC| is recycled to profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)
These assels are subseguently measured al Tair value. Gains and losses on these financlal assels are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, excepl when the Company benefils from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cosl of the financial
assed, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Eguity instruments designated al fair value through OCI are nol
subject to impaimment assessment,

As at the date of staterment of financial position, Company does not have any equity instrument designated at fair value
through CCI

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) s primarily
darecognised {i.e. removed from the Company's unconsolidated statament of financial position) when!

- The rights la recelve cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
recalved cash fiows in full without matenial delay to a third party undar a ‘pass-through’ arrangemsnt; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transfarred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, bul has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transfarred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered inlo a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retalned substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor lransferred contral
of tha assat, tha Company continues to recognise the transferred agset to the axtent of its continuing Invalvermeant. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associaled liabiily. The ransferred assel and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflecis the rights and cbligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing invalvernent that takes the form of a gusrantee over the ransferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of tha asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could he required to
rapay.

Impalrment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credi losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not hald at fair value
through profit or loes. ECLs are hased on the difference bebween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flaws that the Company expects io receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expectad cash flows will include cash Aows from the sale of collateral heid or other credit
enhancamenis that are inlagral o the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has nol been a significant increase in eredit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit |osses that result from default events that are possible within the
nexl 12-months (a 12-month ECL), For those eredil exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credil
rsk since initial recognition, a loss allowance s required for credit losses expecied over the remaining life of the
exposure, imespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, but Instead recognises a loss allowance based cn lifetime ECLs al each reporting date. The

Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the sconomic environment.
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The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past dus. However, In certain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset (o be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amaums in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Gompany A financial asset is written off whan there is no reasonabla expectation of
recavering the contractual cash flows.

if) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Fimancial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liahilities a1 fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrumeants in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All linancial fabilities ara recognisead imitially 2t far value and, in the case of loans and bomowings and payvables, nel of
directly attributable transaciion costs

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at lair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for bading and fmancial abilites
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Gains or Insses on liahiities held for trading are
recognised In the statement of profit or loss. Financial llabilifes designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated st the inttial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company
has not designaled any financial ability as at fair valus through profil or loss

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subseaquently measured at amaortised cost using the EIR mathod.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the lisbililies are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation prooess.,

Amartised cost is caleulated by taking inlo account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral pari of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costz in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current Habllities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the sattiameant of
the: liability for at lsast 12 months after the reporfing date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings In
foreign currency are added lo the camying amount ol the borrowings

Derccognition

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the lisbility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replacad by anathar from the same lander on substantiaily differant lerms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a8 new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recegnised in the
statemeant of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instrumeants

Fimancial assets and financial llabiliies are offset ahd the net amount is reported In the statement of financial position if
Ihere I8 a currently enforceabis l&gal right o affset the recognised amounts and thare |s an intention to seltle on & nat
basis. 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Advance from customers (Contract Liahility)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company lo transfer goods or services ta a customer for which the Company
has recaived consideration (or an amaount of consideralion s dus) from the customer. It a customar pays considaration
before the Company transfers goods or services 1o the custamer, a contract liabllity is recognised whean the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichaver is earlier). Contract liabilily are recognised as ravenue when the Company fulfilis
its performance obligation mentioned in the contract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Tha carrying amounts of non-financial assals are assessad at each reporting date to ascarain whether thare is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the assetl's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent
of iImpairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense In stalement ol profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assetl’s fair value less cost to disposal and value in
use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using 2 discount rate that reflects
current markel assessments of the tme value of money and the risk specific to the assets lor which the estimale of Tulure
cash flow have nol besn adjusted. For the purposa of assessing impairment, assals are grouped atl the lowest lavals for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units),
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3.10 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These ara Initlally recognised at cost, which s the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to Initial recognition
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to detarmine whether there is an indication that assets
may be impaired. If such indication exisls, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying value,

311 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presenis assats and liabilities in the unconsolidsled statemant of financial position based on currant/non-
current classification. An assel is current when il is:

= Expectad 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period

ar

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie 3 liability for at least twelve months
aftar the reparting pariod

All other assels are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

« It is expected to be saltled in the nommal operaling cycle

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

« |tis due 1o be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period

Or

* Thera is no unccnditional right 1o defer the setdemeant of the liability for at l=ast iwelve manths after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, result in its seftlement by the issus of equity
instruments do not affect itz olassification,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-curment.

Dafarred tax assats and liabilities are classified as nan-current assels and liabilities.

3.12 Taxation

Current
Provision Tor current tax is basad on tha taxable incomea in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Deferred

Defamead tax is recognised using the balance sheet lability method, on all major temporary differences arising at the
statement of financial position date between tax bases ol assets and liabilities and their camying amounts in the financial
statemenls.

Ceferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assels are recognised for all
deductible temporary diffarences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assels are reduced lo the extent that il is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

The camying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recognised.

Defamed (ax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply o the penod when the assel is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacled or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date.

313 Cash and cash equivalents

These ate camied at cost. For the purpose of slatement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents compnse of cash in
hand and bank balances

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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3.15

3151

a1e

Share capital and reserves

Crdinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremantal costs directly attributable (o the
Issue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds, Reserves comprise of
unapproprated proft.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, If the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an |dentified asset for a period of ime In exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognifion and measurement approach for all leases, exoept for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the Aght 10 use the underying assets,

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencemeant dale of the lease, tha Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expecied lo be pald under reésidusl value guaraniees:. The iease payments aslso include the exercise price of a purchase
aption reasonably cartain o be exercised by tha Company and paymants of penalties for terminating the lease. if the
termination option is reasonably certain to be exercised, Varable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurmed 0 produce inventories) in the perod in which the event or
condition thal triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of |lease payments at the |ease
cammancement data, the Company uses the interest rata implicit in the lease. In case where tha interast rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. the Company uses its Incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabiliies is increased 1o reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease pavments made. In
addition, the carmying amount ol lease liabilikes s remeasured il there 15 8 modification, & change in he lease term, a
change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset

i) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Company determines lhe lease lerm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together wilh sny perods covered by
an option (o extend the ease f i 15 reasonably cartain to ba axaercised, or any panods coverad by an option o terminate
the lease, If it = reasonably certain nol to be exércised,

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and fermination options. The Company applies
judgerment in evaluating whether it is reasonably cartain whether or not to exercise the option to renaw or terminate the
leasa, That is, it considers: all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination, Afler the commencement dale, the Company reassesses the (ease lerm il there is a significant event or
change in circumstances thal is within its control that affects s ability o exercise ar not 10 exercise the option 1o renew or
Io terminats (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased assat),

iii} Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit In the lease, therefors, | uses its incremental barrawing
rate (IBR) o measure lease liablliies. The IBR is the rate of interast that the Company wolld have 1o pay (o borrow over &
similar term, and with a similar gecurity. the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
In & similar economic environmeant,

iv] Shart-term leases
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to itz shori-term leases of ofiice premises (la., those

leases thal have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not conlain a purchase option),
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowings

Borrowings are Initially recognised at fair value. net of transaction costs Incurred and subseguently carmied at amortlzed
cost using the affective Interest methiod.

Borrowings are classified as current liagbilities unléss the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settiement of the lability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.
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Government grants are recoanised where there Is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. As the grant relates to an expense item, I is recognised as iIncome on a syslematic basis
over the perlods that the related costs, for which It is Inlended to compensale, are expensed.

317 Government Grant

318 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend
Dividend declared by the Company, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the statement

of financial posithon date is recognised as unpald dividend, Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding three
years from the statement of financial position date are recognised as unclaimed dividend.

313  Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, it
Is probable thal an outflow of resourcas will be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimata can be made of the

amaount of obligation. Pravisions are reviewed al each statement of financial position dale and adjusted to refllect the
current best estimate.

3.20 Revenue recognition

Adverlising revenues are recogrised at a point in lime when the related advertisemenl or commercial appears before
public i.e. ared.

Production revenue is recognised at a point in time when produclion work appears before public,

Digital revenue: Advertising revenues from digital properties are recognised on the basis of number of impressions on the
advertisemenrt alred on website.

Subscription income anses from the manthly billing to subscnbers for services provided by the Company and from digital
avenues based on number of views, Revenue is recognised in the month Lhe sarvice s rendered.

Film distribution revenua is recognised at a point in time upon receipt of related sales reports from cinemas.
Credit limits in contract with customers renges from 2 to 80 days.
3.21 Other income
Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interast method.
Dividend income is recognised when it is declared and right io receive is established.
Interest | markup income is recognised on acerual basis,
Other revenuas are accounted for on an accrual basis.
3.22 Sales tax
Hevenues, expenses and assets are recognised, net off amount of sales (ax except:
= where sales tax incumred on a purchase of asset or service i1s not recoverable from the taxaton authorities, in which
case lhe sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as parl of the expense item as applicable;
= recelvahles or payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax; and

= 1he net amount of sales tax recoverable from, ar payable to, the taxation autharities is included as par of receivables ar
payahles in the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

3.23 Expenses
Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administrative

expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations betwsen cost of
production, distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basls.
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1.24 Donations

Donations are recorded as an expense when they are approved by the Board of Directors or actually paid, whichever s
earlier.

3.25 Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution pian

The Company operates 8 funded and approved provident fund scheme for all s permanent employees. Equal maonthly
contrbutions are made, both by the Company and the employeas, 1o the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary,

3.26 Foreign currency translations and translations

Foreign curmency transactions are tmnsiated into Pakislani Rupees using Ihe axchange rates ruling at the dates af the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabiliies in foreign currencles are transtated into Pakistani Rupees using the
exchange rate at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabiliies are translated using
exchange rate that existed when the values were determined. Forelgn exchange pains and losses resulting from the
setilement of such transactions and from the lranslations al the year-end exchange rales of monelary assets and
liabiliies denominaled in foreign currencies are taken to unconsalidated statement of profil or loss cumently,

3,27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in
connection with the activities necessary fo prepare the asset for its intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost af
relatad assal

All ather borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the perod In which they are incurred.
3.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved,

3.29 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclesed when the Company has a possible obligation thal arses from past events and whose
existence will be conlirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerain future events not wholly
within the confrol of the antity or 8 present obligalion thal anses from past events but 1§ not recognised Decause il 15 nol
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation or the amount
af the obligation cannol be measured with sullicien] rellability,

3.30 Eamings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS |s calculated by
dividing the profil or loss stiibutable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighled average number of
ardinary shares outstanding during the period

331 Segment Reporting

Seqgmant reporting is based on the reporting operating (business) segmeants of the Company. An operating segment is a
campoanent of the Company thal engages In businass activitles fram which il may eam revenue and Incur expensas. An
aperating segment's aperating resulis are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Company to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrate financial
information is availabie.

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2023 2022
Note Rupees -=--a—---
Operating fixed assels 4.1 1,149,193, 211 1,018 504,815
Right of use assets 4.5 51,984,192 78,765,338
Capital work-in-progress 4.6 200,876,146 106,914 620

1,402, 053,549

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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4.2  Paricular of immovable assets in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Addressas Total Area
Karaohil Flot Mo. 10011 Hassan Al street, off L1 Chundrgar road. 2070 s yards
|slarmabad Plot Mo, 24, 1AT centre sactor G-611 JDG10sg Rt
|=tamabad 6-7 km, Kashmir Highway, ad@acent to Sector H-17 303 sq yards
2023 2022
Mote wmemeeens RUpEas

4.3  Depreciatlon for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of production 23 41,617,884 55 8935 854
Distribution costs 24 8,213,258 3,085,345
Administrative expenses a5 38,447 326 33,454 257

BB.2TBATE 136474556

4.4 The detals of operating fixed assets disposed § witten off, during the year-are as Toliows:

Accumulated Net book Sale Modes of

Descriplion Cost depreciation value proceeds Gain Diposals Particulars of Buyer
Uplinking equipment

3,200, 000 144,000 1,760,000 1,200,000 [S60,000)  Insurance Adamjes Insurance
Viehicles

As par

2,788,200 1,550,240 B35 880 1,088,100 252 240 Company Mr. Irfan Younus; Employee

2571,008 1,800,335 771,572 a78 100 106,528 Policy Mr, Omer Nasir; Employes
ltems having book
value of less tham
Rs. 500,000 5724,718 4 604 B0 616,310 1,756 639 1,137,320  Negaotiaiian Vanous
2023 13,782,226 9,785,484 3,986,742 4,922,839 836,087
2022 30,006,573 17 634 664 12,401,809 18,351,821 2600

2023 2022
Mote ——— Rupess
4.5 Right of use assets
Cipening ret book value T8.7T85.338 109,028,621
Addilions in legse Habillites 1,638,463 13426, 784
Change due 1o modiication (6,262,102) 29,106,604
Termination of leasa - {97,329,117)
Trarafar to operating fixed agseis- hook vaiue {1.807 ,432) {10458 880)
Less; Depreckaton charge for the year 452 %453 (20,550,075 (25.008.674)
Glosing ned book Yalue 481 51,984,192 78,765,338
A= at June 30
Cnst 163,666,550 164,772,957
Aceumidated dapraciation (101,682 358) (BE.007,610)
Metl book value 51,084,182 T8 765,238
4.5.1 Broakup of net book value of righi-of-use assets by class of underlying assat is as follows

Land and building 41,343,324 64,188,158
Viehicles 10,640,868 14576170

51,914,192 78,765,338
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The righl-of-use assels are depraciated on siraight line besis over the lease term, Depreciation charge for the vear on such assels has

2023 2022
MNote wmmmmrnnes RUEEE —me————
Cosl of produsction 23 15,605,265 14,203, 948
Distribufion costs 24 883,609 2464 115
Administrative expenses 25 4,061,201 8,430,611
20,550,075 25,098,674
4.5.3 Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:
Land and building 16,540,149 18,787 176
Vehicles 4,009,934 6,311,408
20,550,075 20,098 574
4.6 Capital work-in-progress
Leasehold land 162,327,930 106,914,620
Leasehold Improvements 38,548,216 >
200,876,146 106,914 620
481 Nowvement in capital work-ir-progress during the year
Balance &l beginning of the year 108,314,620 B7 420,489
Additions during the year 93,961,526 19,454 159
Balanca al end of tha year 200,876,146 106,814 620
] INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amaortisation Book value  Amortisation
As at Additions As at As ait For the As al as al rale
July 01,  duringthe June30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, %
2022 year 2023 2022 2023 2023 per annum
Computer sofrwaras 58,466,118 - 5B 466,118 51449489 5058365 56507854 1,058,264 20-33
Llcenss fes 10,500,000 - 10,500,000 10,034,600 200,100 10,234,700 265,300 6.67
Trade mark 33,883,500 . 33,883,500 31,263,506 1,877,350 33,140,856 742,644 20
102,849,618 . 102,849,618 92,747,595 7135515 99BE3410 2,966,208
Cost Accumulated amortisation Book value  Amortisation
Ag at Additions  As at As at For the As at as at rate
Juily 01, June 30, July 01, i June 30, Juna 30, %
20 2022 202 2022 2022 per annum
Computer softwares 58,466,118 = DB466,118 45200680 6,248808 574439480 7016629 20—-33
Licanza fiea 14,500,000 . 10,500,000 9.752.274 IB2.326 10,034,600 4G65.400 G667
Trade mark 33,683,500 - 33883500 27880127 3374384 31263506 2610904 20
102,848 618 - 102,840 678 B2B42078 9505519 62,747 585 10,102,023
2023 2022
5.1  Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows: Note seemnrens RUPEES —eramans
Gost of production 23 6,271,976 8,745,980
Adminislrative expenses I8 BE3,639 1,159,539
7,135,815 8,805,518
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6 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS - unguoted subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc

10,000 Common stock at § 0.01 (5 100)

Advance for fulure issue of shares [§ 200, 000)
HUM Network UK Ltd

653,677 Ordinary Shamz of 1 GBP (GBP 553,677)
Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited

3,595,997 Ordinary Shares of Rs, 10 each
Provision forimpaimment

HUM Network FZ LLC

2400 Drdinary Shares of AED 1000 each (AED
Advance for fulure issue of shares (AED 175,431)
HUMM Co. [Private) Limited

4 prdinary shares of Rs. 10 each

HUM Mart (Private) Limited

14,000,000 ordinary shames of Rs. 10 each
Provision for impairment

Tower Sports (Private) Limited
20,100 ordinary shares of Rz. 7462.69 each

Country of
incorporalion

United States of
America

Unated Kingdom

Pakistan

Lniied Arah
Emirates

Pakistan

Pakistan

Holding {
Nota

1005

100%

100%

8.1

100%

70%

6.2

2023 2022
e RUpEeS

8,603 8,603
18,716,750 18,716,750
25,35 18,725,383
85,023,751 095,823 751
39,999,970 39,999 970
(39,999, 970) (35.993.970)
62,802,371 69,802,371
4,446 966 4 446 966
74,249 337 74,248 337
40 a0
140,000,000 140,000,000
[140,000,000) {140,000,000)

450,000,000 E
338,808,481 188 898 481

6.1 The Company owns 100% shareholding of Sky Line Publication {(Private) Limited (Skyling) as at 30 June 2023 (2022: 100%). The
principle business of the subsidiary is publishing a manthly English magazine and production and sales of documentary films. In the
current vear, Skyding samed a profit after tax smounting 1o Rs. 2,261,541 (2022 Rs. 2,248.511), Skyline has accumulated nss
amounting lo Rs. 82 852521 (2022 Rs. 85,114:462). Since Skyline was not historically generating sufficient cashflows and profits
and there was no recoverability of investment in the foresessble future, the management decided to impair the full cost of investment

in the year 2020.

6.2 During the year, the Company acquired 100% shargholding of Towear Sports (Private) Limited (2. 20,100 ordinary shares having face
value of Rs. 1,000 each, issued at Rs. 7 462.6% each, at a cost of Rs. 150 million. Resultantly, Tower Sports (Private) Limited
becama a subsidiary of the Company effactivae 01 May 2023 Tower Spors (Frivate] Limited |5 engaged in the business of providing
specialised sports sarvices which Include but not limited 10 production, sales, marketing and distribution of sporis media comtent.

T LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposita
- Rent

- Trade

- Others

Prepayments
- Software development fee

2023 2022
——= Rupees

7.177,767 T B08, 234
15,975,435 15875 435

5,069,149 4173 504
28,222,351 27, 78T 173

2,105,077 4,210,158

a0 337 428 31,867,331

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



10

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Unreleased / released less amortisation
In production

Less: Curent portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unrestised exchange gain

Deductible temporary differences arising In respect of:
Provigions

Long-term iease kabililies - net
Unrealised loss on short-term investments - net
Arncelarated tax depreciation and amortisation

TRADE DEBTS — unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtiul

Less: Allowance for ECL

Allowance for ECL

Balance a; the beginning of the year
Provislon recognised during the year
Reversal during (he yvear

Baiance al the end ol the vear

Particulars of recelvable from fereign juradictions:

United Kingoom
Lnited States of America

Annual Report 2023 : _

MNate 2023 2022
Rupges ===
432,619,726 3590,229.924
50,827 650 35,460,250
483,447 376 425 650,238
(B5,829,858) (20,247,218)
397,617,518 335,343.019
{2,895.908)
123,957 122 124, 773,647
7,376,946 3,392,763
915,112 11,529,618
1,664,506 48 872105
133,913,776 186,569,133
131,016 888 186,969,133
2,688,381,940 2230728 745
36,221,115 88 966 B32
104 &10.5 2,724 803,055 2,328.685 377
10.1 (36,221,115) (BB 866,633)
256035361 IHD 2,238 728 745
BB,966,632 &0,853,832
" 26,112,800
(52,745,517)
35@;21.115 88 966,632
108,772,218 82345421
128,184,991 108 430,879
235.957& 280, 785,300

These recalvables are on contract hasls and there are no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

Inehide amount recevable fram the following related parties:

HUM TV Inc.
HUM Network UK Limited

The aging of rade debis from other than related parties is as follows:

Meither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

= 01 to 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Over 60 days

The aging of trade debis from related parties is as lollows;

Maither past dus nor impairad
Pasl due bul not impaired

- D1 to 30 days

- 31 to 80 days

= Dhver 60 days

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2023 2022
Mote Rupees
128,184,991 97,234 456
10B,772,218 2,345,421
236,957,208 178.570.877

2.124.111.656

1,649 492 868

116,852,035 241,089,350

43,268,747 SR, 746,187

203,413,408 159,787 085
2.487.645.846 _ 2149115500
236,957,209 179.579.877

10.6 236,957,209 179.579.877
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Te maximum amaun autsianding from related parbes ot 2ny dma during the year casculated by reterenca o month end balances Gre aa follows:

HLIM TV Ine
FHUM MNatwork LR Lirmided

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Al falr value through profit or loss

Terin Flnance Certificates (TFCs)

U hMigrelinance Bans Limited

8400 TFSs having face value of Rs 2 496 each (Fair Value 1.002663)

(2022 8400 TECs having face value of Rs.4,521 sach, Falr Valee: 1.082588)

Mutual Funds

AKD Oppartunity Fund

B2 24T units (2022 771,787 having MAV of Rs. 823.53353 (2022 Rs, 100.0845) par unit
AKD Istatnic ncome Fund

BE.981 units having MAY of Ra. 50 8004 (2022: Re. 51.0801) par unit

ARD Goldern ArTows Slock Fumd

3,000 BEE unites (2022: 7, 385.230) having NAY of Rs, 120312 (2022 e, 13.4231] parunit
NEP Menay Mariet Fund

2872535 units (2022; 2,509,042} having MAN of Rs: 8.8T787 {2022 Rs. 8.8311) per unit
UBL Ligusdity Plus Fund

228 544 units (2022 199 646) henang MNAV of Ris. 10118638 {2022 Ra. 101.0887] per unit
Faysal Cash Fund

B units {2022 2,01 T 44%2) having MAY of Rs. 1015897 (2022 Rs. 100.1818} perunil
Allalah lstarnle Copiad Preseneation Plan 4 Class &

8§ wnite (2022 MY having NAY of Re, 100, 5236 (2022: 80.7512) per unit

Aliplan GHP Maoney Market Fund

2,320, 747 urits {2022; 1,016,550} heving MANV of Ra. 98 65615 (2022 Rs. 88.3719) perunit
MOCH Pakiatan Cash Marsgemen! Fungd

2,088,618 units (2022; 405.421) having MAY of R, 50 3035 (2022 Rs. B0.4678] parunit
MCEB Pakistan Cash Managemen! Opbimizsr

Nil wnits (2022 087T,1659) having MAV of Rs. 101 8318 {2022: Ra. 101.2088) per uni

HEL Financiol Soctor Incomd Fund Bion |

NIl onits (2022 4,098,057 ) having MAY of Rls, 101112 (2022 Rs. 100,0454) par unit

HBL Cazh Fund

1,004 202 units (Z022: Nil) having MAY of Re. 102 1648 (Z022: 1012227 per wnlt

ABL Cash Funed

2,316, 350 unibts {2022: 2,023,957} having NAV of Ra, 10.2287 (2022 Re. 10.2015) par unit
Azkad High Yelld Schema

512 983 (2023 23 286) having Na\ af Rs. 103,872 (2022 103 4702) par unit

These carry interest ranging from 18:753% to 20032% (2022 11% o 14 96%) per annum
ADVANCES

- Unsecured, considerad good
imeresl fme advanoes o

- Producers

- Supplan

- Secured
Inter=s] free advanoes o
- Employesa

Tne aging of advances o retated paties |s s follmws:

Melther past cue nor impalned
Faat dus bul not impamred

= 01 1 30 days

- 31 o 60 days

= Crer 60 days

TRADE DEPDS|TS AND SHORT-TERM PREFAYMENTS

Deposits
= Rent

Prepayments
= InsiiFance

- Renl

- Othar

2023 2022
Note Rupaes
128,184,041 A7, 234 456
108, 772218 81,011.857
236 957.208 188,346 313

[———————— ———— - ———— ==}

111 21,148,158

48,170,607

5,087 356
46,531,758
20,668,997

23,125,669

B4B
120,208,874

105,131,135

102,584,118
23,693,247

53,284 537

45 385 788

TLERERT

3153100
ap.a17. 014
25,811,342
20,181,785

202.111,633

100,030,000
20,662 505
100,000,000

409,991 800

20647 500

2400 72X

SB%‘H!EEH‘I

1.127. 212 684

12.1 88,084,079 B4 183,888
49,164,845 16,161,080
147 253 524 103,344 078
7,216,705 B&417.180
154,575,629 108 562,120
29,108,714
29,108,714 7
1,364,500 514,500
232,501,130 16,730,045
2,711,983 66,923
2,331,678 T.B30 paz
27,539,788 24,845,853
28 004 208 25 160, 453
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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MNote
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax receivable 14.1
Due from related parties 14.2
Others
Provisian for impairment 14.8

2023 2022
Rupees -
128,835,895 124,140,222
1,659,654,904 548,916,587
10,288 417 751,217
1,799,779,216 223,808,026
{57,605,219) (57,605.,218)
1,742, 173,997 166,202,807

Ag par rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule 2074, reqistered persons as recipient of
adverisement senvices shall withhold sales tax applicable on the person providing advertisement senvices. Accordingly,
the Company s unable lo adjust its input tax deducted on purchases of taxable goods and services as 100% of the
gutpul tax on the Company's taxable sarvices are being withhelg by the recipient of thase services. However, tha
Company is In comespondence with Lhe relevant authorities through its legal advisor to resolve the matter,

Due from refated parties

HUM NETWORK FZ LLC

HUM TV, Inc.

HUM Marl {Privaie) Limited

Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited

The aging of receivables from related parties is as follows:

Meither past dua nor impaired
Past dua but nof impaired

- G} to 890 days

- oyer 90 days

2023 2022
RUpEES —-—e—eeeee
1,538,255,998 -

56,339,751 38,943,913
- 1,320,991
65,059,157 58,651,683
1,650,654,904 08,016,587
1,601,003,221 40,264 804
58,651,683 58,651,683
1,658,654,904 88 816,587

The maxmum amount outstanding from related parties at any time dunng the year calculated by reference to month end

balances are as follows:

Mote

HUM TV, Inc.

HLUM Mart {Privata) Limiled

Skyline Publications (Private) Limitad
HUMNETWORK FZ LLC

Provision for impairmenl
Balance al the beginning of the year

Provision made during the year
Balancae at tha and of the year

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash at banks
- In cument accounts

- in deposit accounts 151

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 12.5% to 18.75% per annum (2022

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2023 2022
Rupees

56,339,751 38,943,913
- 1,320,981
65,059,157 58 851 683

1,538,255,996 -
1,659,654 8904 08 816,587
(§7,605,219) (57,605,219}
(57.805,219) {57,605,218)
883126 561,806
128,796,622 126,555,158
318,117,021 706,381,528
446,913,643 832,836,754
447,796,769 533,498,560

+ 5.5% to 12.85%) per annum
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ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
(Number of shares) sasmeeees RUPEES =sesnsnses
Crdinary shares of Rs. 1/- each

500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
634,000,000 445 000,000 Issued as fully paid benus shares 634,000,000 445 000,000
1,134,000,000 245 000,000 1.134,000,000 245,000,000

Voling righls, board safection, right of first refusal and block voling are in proportion to the shareholding.

Bonus shares issued o directors of the Company are 98,657 902 shares (2022 : Nil).

2023 2022
——— RUpEES ——--—-

LONG-TERM LEASE LIAEBILITIES

Opening balance 89,049 467 121,616,252
Additicnz during the year 1,375,281 13,943,510
Change dus to termination . {49.463,171)
Change due to modification (6,262,102) 22 469,102
Mark up on lease liabilities 10,995,762 14,287,879
Less: Lease rentals pald (24,258,933) (33,804,105}
Closing balance 70,899,475 88,049,467
Less: Current portion of long-term lease liabilities (15,664,939) {16,372 569)
Long-tanm lease liabililies 55,234,536 72676898

Includes |lease finance facilly entered into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting o
Rs 115,000,000 (2022 Rs.115,000,000) out of which Rs.109 762,920 (2022: Rs.105,265,279) remains unutilized at
pericd end

2023 2022
LONG-TERM FINANCING - secured Mote wemmeeeeee  Rupees -
Islamic banks
Dirinshing Musharaka - | 181 . 128,853,318
Dirminehing Musharaka - 1| 18.2 - 69,975,325
Diminehing Musharaka - 1l 18.3 93,750,000 125,000,000
Salary Refinance Loan 18.4 - 49,110,321

83,750,000 372938 964
Less: current maturity (62,500,000) (254 813,943)

H !ESH!U'W 78,125,021
Represents Diminishing Musharaka facility carmying prafit at the rale of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2022: 6 months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing has been fully repaid by 24 May 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalmants
commencing after a grace penod of 12 months from the date of first disbursament i.e; from June 2018, The loan was:
secured by way of registared mortgage over the building on leasehold land,

Represents Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of & meonths KIBOR plus 1% (June 2022: § monihs KIBOR
plug 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after 3 grace period of 18
maonths from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017, In 2020, the Company has availed the prnncipal
deferment facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to dampen adverse effects of the
COVID-19 and to provide relief to the businesses, Financing Is secured by way of Equitable Morigage over registered
affice, firsl par| passu constructive mortgage charge over land and first hypoihecation charge over plant, machinery &
equipment. The loan has been fully repaid during the year

Represents Diminishing Musharaka facility secured during the last year carrying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR
plus 1% (June 2022: & months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 8 egual quarterly instalmenls
commencing after a grace period of 12 months from the date of disbursement i.e. December 2021. Financing |s secured
by way of Equitable Mortgage over registersd office, first hypothecation charge over glant, machinery & equipment, first
pan passu charge over receivables of the company and first pan passu charge by way of constructive mortgage charge
over |slamabad office.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Represents long-lerm financing of Rs. 200 million obtained from an Islamic bank in June 2020 under the refinance scheme
far the payment of wages and salaries as per the State Bank of Pakistan (58F) guidelines. The loan carmes an interest rate
of SBP rate + 3% However, the Inan has been recognised af its present value using the affective interest rates applicable
at the drawdown dales. The loan was scheduled Lo be repaid in 8 egual quarerly installments, commencing from Janary
2021, The differential markup has been recognised as a govemment grant, which will be amortized as inlerest income over
the loan pericd, The fadlity is secured by a registered equitable mortgage on land and property, with a 30% margin, The
lvan has baen fully repaid during the year

2023 2022
Deferred Income - Government grant Rupees -
Opening balance 478,147 5,066,265
Received during the year - .
Releasaed to the statement of profit or loss (478,147} (4.578.118)
Closing balance - 478,147
Less: Currant porticn - (478,147)

Man-current porion - -

Governmernt grant has been recorded pursuant to a -salary refinance scheme introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
(IH&SMEFD Circular Nos. OF &14) to provide loan to businesses al concessional rates to finance salary expanse during tha
COVID-12 outbreak. The grant has been provided to the Company as a relmbursement of average wages and salaries’ bill
foar the months of April, May and June 2020 subject o Company's undertaking thal no employees be laid off due 1o cash
fiow fimitations, for a penod of three months between April 01, 2020 to June 30, 2020

2023 2022
Note Rupees -——-—

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Credilors 201 362,775,566 B83B,147 526
Accrued liabiites 20.2 388,661,167 252,720,280
Due lo related party - HUM Network FZ2 LLC - 27215492
Withholding tax payable 17,186,303 22 224 840
Fayabie to provideni fund 20.3 - 1,031 524
Others 45,385,561 36,543,371

B14,018,587 1,217,983,143
Includes amount payable to the following ralated pariies:
M.D Production (Private) Limited - 382 304,729

Includes donalion amounting 1o Rs. 56,135,292/ accrued on the basis of Board's approval which will be paid lo Momina and
Duraid Foundation.

Investments in collective investment schemes listed equity and listed debt securittes out of provident funds have been madea
in accordance with the provisions of section 218 af the Act and (he rules formulated for this purpose.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

For tax related matters, refer note 29 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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21.2 Commitments

21.21  Purchase of lelevision programs commitments with M.D Production (Private) Limited - & relgled party 8s sl June 30, 2023
amountad to Rs. 258 962,000 (June 30 2022: Rs. 204 .378,000). Commitment for purchase of tefevision programs with other
than related parties as at June 30, 2023 amounted to Rs. 41,215,500 (June 30, 2022 Rs. 48,902,000).

2023 2022
Note e BUPEAE —emeeeee
22 REVEMUE - net
Advertisement revenue 4,844 229 306 4.480,516,784
Production revenus 221,648,886 126,681,090
Digital revenug 80,643,000 108,992,303
Subscription income 1,677,339,186 1,297 020,232
Film distibution revenue 1,725,968 5,749,479
22183923 6,825,586,346 6,018,963, BER
221 Revanue is nat off the following items:
Sales tax 722,681,112 671,884, 784
Discount to customers 508,870,841 4098 649 087

1,321,551,953 1,170,534 771

22.2 Represents revenue from the following gecgraphical reglons:

Asla 5,172,962,977 4.778,231.207
America 1,652,623,369 1,242.738,591
6,825 586,246 6,018, 960 B8B

23 COST OF PRODUCTION

Cost of outsourced programs 1,654, 864,608 1,717,633, 741
Cost of in-house programs 311,230,418 227 538,028
Cost of invantary consumiad 2,000,487 1.178.580
Salaries and benofits 231 1,075,741,256 851,372,089
Technical advisory lee 232 54,751,500 47 610,000
Depreciation 438452 57,223,158 114,143,802
Travellng and conveyance 138,335,274 ¥, 707,528
Litilities 14,869,487 14,312,520
Rent, rates and laxes 305,538 1,105,048
Insurance 27,315,856 26,068,116
Repair and manienance 26,034,116 47,245,595
Fee and subscriplion 23.3 4,514,981 266 575475
Communication 21,765,697 18,672,793
Security charges 438,350 180,200
Amaortisation 5.1 6,271,976 8,745 880
Consuttancy 1,188,586 5,886,311
Printing and stationery 1,008,477 1,815,108
3,597,859,766 3,427,792.414
In production television programs — opening 35,460,250 22,282,250
In production (elevision programs - closing (50,827.650) {35,460 250)
3,582,492,366 3474614414
Released [ unreleased programs - opening 390,229,988 430,167 561
Released / unréleaszed programs - closing {432,619,726) (390,229.088)

3,540,102.628 3.454 551,987

231 includes Rs. 20,765,902 {2022: Rs. 25,213,478} in respact of staff retirement benafits.

23.2 Represents fee paid lo & Direclor for lechnical advisory services rendered in terms of the technical advisory agreement duly
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company

233 includes Rs. Mil {2022 Rs. 230,350 ,586) in respect of fees for managing the digital subscriptions of the Campany.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Abveresemant and promotion
Salaries and benzfils
Travaling and conveyance
Rarit, rates and laxkps
Liles

Depreciation
Communicaton

Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Feas and subseriplon
Printing 2nd stationary

Thizs Inclucde Rs. ¥ 869 125 (2022 Rs 6462 264) In respoect of 2taif retirement banelits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benalils
Dapreciation

Amartsation

Repair and maintananos
Communication

Travaling end conveyance

Fen and subscriptian

Litilithes

Legal ard professional chames
Printing, siatinnery and paenodicals
Rent, rates and 18xes
Instirance

Auditors” remuneration
Security charges

DianAtians

Include Rs. 7,030 043 (2022 Rs. 5,712,115) In respect af stafl relirement benefils.
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee

Ead tar conacticatad inancial stalemants

Fee for hall yearly review

Tax and ather assurance sarvices
Oul of pocket éxpensas

Danation 1o followlrg parties éxcesds 10% of the Company's total donations ar R, 1 milllon, whichaver (2 highar:

Dhorall Youth Sendees Foundation
Sirdh Gradustes Asaociation
Mamina and Durald Founcation

2023 2022
Note Rupees
179,032,048 161,676 181
24.1 160,243,903 154, 710,507
28,138,827 15,185 327
532,297 120,225
2,890,633 3,343,001
438452 9,096,867 5,544 460
674,288 677 388
3,688,871 ZTITa12
2461 343 2,360 689
1,120,873 2 586 055
1,546,790 I5G.371
409 427,716 348 255@91
251 4T5.677,349 343 388,335
458452 42,508,527 41,884,669
51 BE3 838 1,158,539
53,463,407 44,104,271
7,262,392 7.FAD 443
66,565,840 30,057 434
14,579,225 25,286,082
47,703,555 33,095 048
28,071,062 17,820,006
11,145,315 0. 500, 407
9,081,102 5.090,315
7457, 7895 5674072
252 6,480,533 4,074,321
9,284,141 B213,236
2548 204 106 230,262 GO0, 0
BA5,354,383 553,516,663
2,187,000 1,887,500
B0, 900 618,750
656,100 506,250
2,200,000 1,757, B&T
£35.533 404,154
6.480.533 4.674 321
75,000 100,000
500,000 500,000
105,655,292 -
106,230,292 BO0,000

Reciplents of donations do ot Include any conga in which any director or his spouss had any interest except for donatlon paid to Momina and

Diiraid Foundaton, Follewing direclors aof the Company ara akso ustees of the said rust

« Mr. Duraid Gureshi
- Ms. Sultana Skddinqul

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial asssts - net

Prafit on deposit acoounts

Exchangs galn - net

Dividend incomea

Interast { markup income

Government grant

Urnraalised loss on revaluaton of iInvestmenis
Gan [ (loss) on redernplion | sale of investmenls

Incame from non financial asssts

Cipin on disposs] of operating fioed assets
Gain on Eminaton of right of use assel
Revarsal of ECL

Reversal of labulities - no longer payable
Sake of content and festival revenus

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2023 2022
Rupees
151 56,453,532 28,038,851
263 418,632 40,373 257
58,931,534 23,451 BSE
7,126,948 E,568, 434
i3 478147 4578 114
(7,320,895) (48.818.679)
27.680 485 {31,191 B55)
436,748,363 30996128
4.4 936,087 SATD012
- 12,134 055
52,745 517
98,671,515 -
32,768,832 36,133,488
185,121,961 53,837 HES
621 870 324 4 936 583

PR R R SR
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2023 2022
Rupees —
OTHER EXFPENSES
Allowance for ECL - 28,112,800
FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long-term financing 34,506,149 49 626 965
Mark-up on short-lerm borrowings 58,402 8,090,625
Finance lease charges 10,995,762 14,287 8749
Bank charges 458,793 1,348,742
46,059,106 73354212
TAXATION
Currant 228,073,182 218,840,554
Defered 37,952,265 {67.537.087)
Pricr 3,552,814 (1,477,602)
290,578,281 150,534,865
Relationship betweern tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before laxation 2,439,816,835 1,514,830 878
Tax at the applicable rales 707,546,882 438,303,565
Tax effects of:
Tax at reduced rate on dividend income (10,607.676) (4,221.334)
Income subject 1o final tax ragime (514,021,552) (415,030,747)
Tax effect of super tax 65,747 467 26,457,707
Prior year tax charge reversal 3,552,814 (1,477, 602)
Others 38,360,326 105,903,278
290,578,261 150,834,865
Effactive % 12% 10%

The Company has filed its return of income up to tax year 2022, The retums so filed are deemed to be an assessment order
izsued by the Taation Authorities on the date the compiete retumn is filed. The Company was mainly subject to minimum tax
during the year ended 30 June 2021 under section 153(1)(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, therelare, relationship
betwean incoma tax expense and accounting prafil has not been presented.

During the year 2017, Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue issued 8 how cause notice to the Company, for the tax year
2014, showing hig intenfion to disallow the deduction claimad on account of agancy commission on alleged non-deduction of
tax on such agency commission. The Company filed a sult before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showcause nolice.

Based on a recent judgement of the Hon'Dle Supreme Court of Pakistan, suils filed by taxpayers are nol to be maintained
unless 50% of the tax due 15 deposited by the peliionegrs. In compliance 1o the abova order, the Company has deposited an
amount of Rs. 24385012 inlo the Governmenl treasury. The decision in respect of the Sult filed by the Company s still
panding. The managemen!, based an the legal advice, is confident thal the ultimate oultome will be 0 favor of the Company
and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these unconsolidated financial staterments.

During the vear ended 30 Juns 2022, the Assistant Commissionar Inland Revenua (ACIR) pessed an order under section
122(1) of tha Ordinanca for tha tax yaar 2017 wherehy tax demand of Bs. 771 644 B57 was ralsed. The company challengad
the above arder before the Commissioner inland Revenue (Appeals). The CIR{A) pursuant 1o the above appeal has declded
majority af the ssues n favor of the company. Furthermore, issus of additions to fixed assets has been remanded back for
vernfication whereas disallowance In respect of unpaid creditors and accrued liabilities. loss on disposal of fiked assets and
levy of super tax under section 48 has been confirmed. The company has filed further appeal in respect of the confirmec
issues before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit for the year

Weighted average numbear of ordinary shares
autstanding during tha year

Eamings per share (Rupae)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

lssued ordinary shares al the beginning af the year

Effecl of bonus shares
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Note

301

Werghted average number of ardinary shares al the and of the year

Thare is no dilutive affact on tha basic earings par share of the Company.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxaton

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amaortigation

Finance cosls

Unrealized exchange gain

Profit on deposil accounts

Gain on disposal of oparating fixed assets
{Gain) / luss on redemplion / sale of invesiments
Dividend incoma

Govemnement grant amortized

Gain on ermination of right of use asse!
Provision for impairmaent

Unrealised loss on revalustion of investmenis

Increasel{decraase) in current assels
Inventories

Current portion of television program costs
Trade debis

Advancas

Trade deposils and short tarm prepayments
Other raceivabies

(Increase)/decrease in current liabilities
Trade and ather payables
Advance from customears

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2023 2022
e RUpBES
2,149,238,574 1, 363,905,013
{Restated)
1,134,000,000 1,134,000,000
1.90 1.20
945,000,000 G45,000,000
189,000,000 189,000,000
1,134,000,000 1,134,000,000
2,439,816.835 1,514 839,878
108,828,552 161.578.231
7,435,815 0005 510
48,059,106 74,584,212
(293 418,632) (48,373,257)
(56,453,532) 128,038,681)
(936,007) (5,670,012
(27,660.465) 31,181,855
(58,931.534) {23.451,B56)
(478,147} {4.578,118)
- (12,134,055)
- 28,112,800
7,320.855 49819679
{268,534,038) 230,716,006
(88.326) 33,640
4,517,361 10,038,580
(155,234,563) (281,177,084)
(45,913 501) 20,344 548
(3,743,845) 4.058.440)
{1,575,971,190) (21,586,295
(1,776,434 064) {276.404,830)
(403,964.546) 636,038,766
12,144 B15 (14,013,401)
3,029,002 2,081,176,318
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2023 2oz
Chilel Exccutlve  Maon - Execulive Chiel Executive Mon - Executive

Executive Dirsctor Directors EraOI Exscutive Director Directors LI
Manegadal remuncratis 432,035,300 . - 07 685,725 36,903.970 238,473,580
Tachnice! sdvisory fes - 54,751,500 - - - 47,610,000 - -
Fen - . 3,900,000 . - - 375,000
Bonus 164 358, 314 164,398 314 - - 104,560 245 104 560, 210 - -
Rriliretrmaent banmhte - = - 18 850 BdE . TH, 106,157
House rent 17,133,642 . . 94,164, 260 15,775,403 - - FH 62 003
Litiitien 3,807,520 . . 22,036,508 35056545 . 17,569,340
Car allowanoe 10,767 188 3,500,000 - - 20,128,072 23,600,000 - -
Fuml nd consesyanem 2875351 2,704 411 TATE 44T 30,302,101 183,538 1,548,827 BT0 28T 16,A37.903

AAMT%05 265304225 G197 AIR04T70 1GRUTNTE, (MILIRITE  AMGZT _ J65390013,
Mumbuar 1 1 B 1] 1 1 [ 53

The Chiaf Evacutive: and cerisin Executives ora also provided wih free usa of Company maniained cars in accordance with the Company's poficy Bnd

rebmbirsamant of axpenses ralated to buldlness trevel.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

FHelsted panies of e Company compriss subsidiaries. associated compenes, efemenl lunds, draciors and key rearagement pesonnel, Detals of bansaclions
with redated ponics dionng fhe year, sther Bhan those which have been disclosed eliewhers in these Tinancial Statements o as fllowi

Ralationship Matwre of transactions

Subsidinries Ewnpenags pusd on behod! of the Cormpany
Ewpenses nard nn bahalf of the subsidiary
Fayarianl receivad on bishall af subsafary
Paymant recalved on behall af the Company
Manspement fee

Amourt paid an behalf of the Company
Profassional of promohonal sasvices acauinad
Bunscriphon incoma

Asaociated

Somwanies Pirchases of televison programs nghts.

Exponses padd on bahal of the associate
Payment made dunng the yesdr

Dthars Coninbulicn 1o lhe prosvident fung

2023 2023
Rupees
33,561, 483 &0 162 558
76,624,132 42,387 834
TO.993 275 55,185 231
1,435,683,704 853,612
T.511 10 f,400, 000
39,624,001 e
3,845,000 3,235,600
34,019,083 53,765,500
1,572,300, 800 1,522,837 BG4
. 11,182 630
1893744343 120,810,343
44,865,150 37,387 857

Al fransaciions with relaled paries are entered inlo al agreed tenms duly aoproved by the Board of Dirsclors of the Company. The oulslanding recesvabls and
|.1"r|':ll.iu Ealmrusag of thin eslabad poetion m digssed in thise moopacive nolae 5 thass o Bl Goence siinmania

Faliawing are the related parties with whomn ihe Company had entered into transacilons ar have arrangement ! agresment In place

S No, Company Mame

Skyline Publications (Private) Limitsd
HLIM TV g

HUM MNetwark FZ LLC

HLIM Metwark LK Limited

HUMM Co: (Private) Lamiled

Trwar Sparis (Private) Limited

HUM Mari (Private) Limited

MO Productions (Privale) Limiled
Moerang & Durasd Filmg {Privata} Limeled
Momina and Duraid Faundatian

Ms. Sultana Siddigul

Mr., Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui

hr. Duraid Chursshi

Mr. Shunaed Cliereshi

Mrs. Mahtal Akbar Rashdl

L1 Gen (R} Aaif Yasin Malik

M. Mubammad Ayab Younis Adhl
Mr. Sohall Ansar

s Khush Bakht Shuyaat

Sd3Ssstandsesvansuna

HUM Matwark Limiled- Emplowses’ Prowdenl Fund

33.7,7 Thiese entites une asyocinied companmes | undenoakings of the Compary under Comparssy Aol 2017

a2

Subsidiaries incorporated outside Pakistan:
Hama

HLUM TV, Inc.
HLIM Ketwark FZ LLG
HURM Metwark LK Limitad

Agpragate %
Basis of association of
sharehalding
Subsidiary 100%
Subsidiary 100%
Suhsaidiary 100%
Subsidiary 100%
Subsidiary 100%
Subsidiary 100%
Subsidisry TO%
Assechited comipany {(33.1.1) -
Associated company (33.1.1) -
Associaled company (331 1) -
Retirement Fund -
Dwrector 0.73%
Dérector -
Dieactor 45.74%
Derector 5.38%
Déirealor -
Chraclor -
Director -
Deactor =
Oaector -
Country of lncorporation

United States of Amenca
United Arab Emiralra
United Kingdom

133 Moreof the key management personnel had any Bmangements with the Company other than the employmeant cantrac

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2023 2022
Note Rupees
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statemant of financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Long-lerm deposils T 28,222,351 27,757,173
. Trada debts 10 2,688,381,940 2,238.728,745
- Trade deposits 13 1,364,500 514,500
- Other receivables 12 1.612,338,102 42,062,585
- Cash and bank balances 15 447 796,769 833,458,560
47781 ﬂS.EB; 3.,143,561,563
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
- Shorl-term invesimenis 11 589,143.291 1.127 212 6684
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabllities at amortised cost
- Long-term financing 18 31,250,000 78,126,021
- Trade and other payvables 20 796,822,294 1.195,7568.203
- Accrued mark-up 218,809 4. 298 850
- Current portion of long-term financing 18 62,500,000 294 813,943
Unclaimed dividend 6,153,603 6,153,631
Unpaid dividend 1,274,738 2,209 787
!BBEE'I 9!444 1,581 447 435

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activilias expose it 1o a varety of financial risks i.e. market risk {(including currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credil risk and liguiddy risk. The Company's overall risk managemanl programme locuges on the
unpradicishility of financial markets and sesks o minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial
performance.

The Company's senlar management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senlor managemeant
provides policies for ovarall risk managemant, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk.
interest rate risk and credit nsk, use of financial dervatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liguidity. it is
the Company's polioy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be underaken. |

The Board of Directors review and agree policias for managing sach of these nsks which are summarized bselow,

Market risk
Markeal risk is the nsk that fair value of future cash Nows will Muctuate because of changes it markel prices. Markel

prices comprisa three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as equity nsk.
Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk (hat the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial instrumeants will luctuate because of
changes in the market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long-term financing and finance lease
obligations and bank balances. The Company manages these nsks through nsk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The Tollowing figures demonsirate the sensitivity (o a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables
hedd constant, of the Company's profit hefore taxation:

dncresse! " Efiectonprof
g 5 before taxation
basis points
Rupees
June 30, 2023 +100 3_.244.'333
=100 {4.244.938)
June 30, 2022 +100 6,652 243
100 (6,652,243)

Page 101
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35.3 Currancy risk

Foreign currenicy risk is the risk thal the value of financial assels or linancial labilites will Muctuate due o & change in foreign
axchange rates. It anses mainly where recesvables and payables exist due o fransactions in foreign ourrencees. The Company's
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

smmmeeee June 30, 2023 —-e-ee —eeee Juinie 30, 2022 —--
US Doliar GBP AED Us Dollar GEP AED
Trade debls 454 406 298,689 - 072 2688 333,287
Other receivables 18,756,691 180,808 . - 190,808 -
Trage and other payables - (85,000) - {479.281] (87T, 562) *
[P — Rupﬂus [P RUWEE [P
Closing exchange rales T7.86 285.99 364.14 55.60 204.10 247.10

Sensitivity analysis:

The fallcwing tebie demonsirates the sansitlvity 1o 2 reasonahly possitie changea in the AED USD and GBP axchangs rales, with all
other variables held conslent. of the Company's profit before texation;

Effact on Effect on Effect on
Change in Change in US Change in GBP
AED rate (%) prafit before dollar rate (%) profit before rate (%) prafit before
fax tax tax

== Rupeegs - === Rupees == = Rupees —
Jume 30, 2023 +10 153!H: EE'E'IJI] +10 16 !]21!55!1 +10 1!1!3?& 461
=10 (153,825.600) =10 (16,021,560) =10 {10,876,461)
June 30, 2022 +10 (2,562,406} +1dl 21,051,238 +10 B,234 533
-10 2662 408 -1 i?1 851 5!39| -10 jalmisaa]

354 Equily price risk

The GCompany's investments are susceplible o markel prce nsk arising from uncertainties about fulure values of investment
secunities. The Company manages ke equity price fsk through diversification and placing mits an indlvidual and total nvestments.
Reports an the investments portfolio are submitted o the Company's senior managament 00 a regular basis:

Az of the statement of inancial pasiton date, the exposure o investments at fair value through prolit or foss was Rs. 885,381 954 (30
June 2022: Rs, 1,127 212 684).

35.5 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk which anses with the possibility that one party fo & financial instrument will fail to discharge its obiigation and
cause the other pady to incur a financial loss. Concentration of credil risk arise when a number of counterparties am engaged In
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability o mast contraciual obligations 1o be
similarly affectad by changes in ecanomle, political or other condiflons. Concentrations of aredit rsk indicate the relative sensitivity of
the Company's parformance o developments affecting a parlicular industry,

Management of credit risk

The Company's policy is to enler info finandal contracts In gooordance with the quidslines s2t by the Board of Directors and ofhar
internal guideiines.

Credit risk & managed and controlled by ha managameant of the Comgany in (he lollowing manner:

- Credil rabing and / or credit warthinegss ol the counlarparty is taken inlo account along with the financial background so as 1o
minimize the risk of default

- The risk of counterparty exposure due o failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is miigated by a pariodic review of thair
cradit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information on 8 requiar bazis

= Gash is hald with reputable banks only,

Az of the unconsalidated stalement of financal positan date, Lthe Company 15 exposad 10 credil risk on the following assets:

2023 2022
-_ Rupees ——
- Long-tarm deposils 28,222 351 27757173
- Trade debis 2,688,381,940 2,239,728 745
- Short-term Investments 589,143,291 1,127, 212,684
- Trade deposits 1,364,500 514 500
- (Mhar recelvables 1,612,338,102 4.2 062 585
. Bank balances 446,913,643 832 936,754

5,366,363,827 4,270,212 441

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Quality of financial assets

Annual Report 2023 : |

The credil gualily of financlal assels can be assessed by reference lo exlernal credil ratings or o historeal information

about counterparty default rates:

Bank balances
Ay
AdE
LYY
A

Short-term invastments
Mitual funos

Term finance certificate

356 Liguidity risk

2023 2022
MNote messnemass QUPRES ——seeea-

2,382 575 1,112,428
211,048,650 561 515 556
218474972 270,308 554
15,007,446 2,216
15 446,913,643 R32 036, 754
Alf) 53,284 537 2408725
A{f) 5,087,356 413,144 BOG
AT 29,668,996 25.811,342
AAFT) 384,850,945 281,491,882
Man-raled 95,103,299 a7H,968,064
567,905,133 1,081 825 916
A 21,148,158 45,386,768

11

589,143,291

1,127 212 684

Liguidity risk is the rigk thal the Company will not be abls to meel its financial obligalions as they fall due. The Company
applies prudent risk managament policles by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping eommitted

cradit lines.

The: table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the following reparting dates:

2023

Long-term lease liabilifies
Long-term inanaing
Irads and other payshles
Accrued mark-up

2022

Long-term lease liabililiss
|_nng-term financing
Trada and other payables
Acoreed mark-up

35.6.1

Leng-term financing
Long-term lease liabilities

Lang=term financing
Long-term laase llabilitias

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Changes in liabilities from financing activities

On demand Lusethan 3 3to 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
months
Rupees
- 3,781,136 11,883,803 55,234,536 70,899,475
- 15,625,000 46,875,000 31,250,000 93,750,000
451,243,031 161,954,257 200,821,309 - 814,018,597
218,809 - - - 218,808
451 461,840 181,360,393 258 580,112 86,484 536 978,886,881
On demand Loui than 3 3 to 12 months 110 5 years Total
months
Rupess
- 3,032,131 13,340,438 T2.678,608 89,049 467
- 88,265 377 206.548 563 78,125,024 372938 064
251 369,738 61,458,135 A05,155,270 . 1,217.883,143
& 296 850 - - - 4 296,850
255 666 568 452 755643 B25,044 271 150,801,922 1,684 268 424
1-Jul-22 Cash Flows New |leases Othars 30-Jun-23
Rupees
372,038,964 (270 188 964) - - 93,750,000
89,049 467 (24,258 933) 1,375,281 4,733,660 70,899,475
1=Jul-21 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-22
Rupees
601000449 (228 061,485) - - 372938 964
121 616,252 (33,804,105) 12,843 510 36,756,081 89,049 467
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35.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

A5.7

358

The carming values of all financial assets and lablities reflected in the Unconsolidated financial statements appropriate
their fair values

Capital risk

The Company finances its operalions through eguity, bomowings and management of working capital with a view of
malinlaining an approprate mix between vanous sources of finance to minimize risk, The primary objective of the
Company s capital management is 1o ensure that It maintains healthy caphial ralios in order to suppeort its business sustain
future development of the business and maximize sharehelders value. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity
ratio as follows:

2023 2022
Naote Rupees

Long-term |=ase liabilitiss 17 55,234,536 2 676,698
Long-term financing 18 31,250,000 78,125,021
Trade and other payabile 20 814,018,597 1,217,8983,143
Accruad markup 218,809 4,286,850
Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 17 15,664,939 16,372,565
Current portion of long-term financing 18 62,500,000 294 813,843
Total debt 978,886,881 1, 684 268 424
Cash and bank balances 15 (447,796,769)  (833,498,560)
Net debt 531,000,112 850,769,864
Share capital 16 1,134,000,000 945,000,000
Unappropriated profit 6,111,864,380 || 4,151,625,806
Total equity 7,245 864,380 5,096, 625,606
Capital T.776,954 492 5047 395670
Gearing ratio 6.83% 14.30%

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the prica thal would be recaived 1o gell an assel or paid (o transler 3 liability in an arderly ransaction between
markel parlicipants al the measurement dale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected inthe financial statements approdmate fair values.
The followirig table shows assets recognised al fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on

Level 1 Quoted prices in acbive markets for identioal assels or habilities,

Level 2¢ Those invatving Inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset o liahiity,
cither directly {as prices) or indirectly {denved from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Assets measured at falr value

2023 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)
Short-term Investmeants u Wf - 589 :ﬂlﬁl Jl‘IE? 212.§ﬁ

Curing the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measuremeants, and no ransfers Into and
out of ievel 3 falr value measurement.

35.8 Financial instruments which are tradable in an open market are revalued at lhe market prices prevailing on the siatemeant
of financial position date.

38 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on the: basis of areas
of operations | e, entertainmeant and naws.

Entertsinment segment |5 engaged in adverisament, entertainment and media marketing.

MNews segments |5 engaged in broadcasting of news programs,

Entertainment Kews Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2033 2022

Revenue
Mt revands frm axtemal

custamer 5,622, 541,366 5417080742 1,203,044 280 B0 BER 146 6.B25 586 346 3,018,959 HER
Result
Segment proft [ loss) 2,324,897 472 2,288 554 361 424 462 528 (173,567 481]  2.740,360,000 2114 486 B7O
Tarabion [290.578,261) (150 934 BB5)
Urallocatad incomse [

(ENpENEES)
Administraiive axpenses [585,354,333} (L8B3 618, 6E3)
Oiher Expenses - (28,112 800)
Olhvar income 621,870,324 B4.936,683
1Gair on sabes of non-curment

asset hald lor zale - -
Finence cost {46,050,106) {73.354,212)
Profit | (lose) for tha year 2,148,238 574 1,3563.908.013
Other iInformation
Amarlation (3,584,024} (4,685 183) {3,551,791) {5.220,336) (7.135,815) (9,905,519)
Deprecistion (55,333,391} ldﬂé‘“i’ 1341 {53,485 162) (118.361.097] {1 ﬂ%ﬂ!.ﬁﬂ-} 1161.578.2311
Sagment aesels 565,805,921 309 607 938 839,213,836 B15 588 H12 1,405,098, 757 1,215, 286 B0
Unallecated Assets - - - - 6,853 984 465 5,589, 118,800

565 805,921 200 807 988 839,213,536 Bi5 580,852 B,259,004,222 B0 405 600

Caplital eupendiiuse 137,075,701 ﬁEI.IEII:"-}EII!:H 835?‘0.#?5 24 ﬁEE.T%?‘ EH.HEJTE ‘I:I}.'EB;gﬁ;
Segrmant Eablitias T35 716643 1.068 495 432 277.421.199 B3E.284 362 1,013,130, 842 1.707, 779,794

36.1  Revenus from three maps cusleners of the Company during the year constituled 57% [2022; 65%) of (he Wial revenus,
: ¥ NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employvees and average number of employees at yearend and during the year respactively sre ag follows

2023 2022

serm—ee Rupses
Total number of employeas 721 G76
Average number of amployess during Lthe yaar 696 [a]i3z]

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



. 1 Annual Report 2023

38 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

O July 26, 2023, our Company acquired 100% shareholding of M's. Sphere Venlures (Private) Limited against considersiion of Rs.
10,000,000 paid in full. Mis. Sphere Venturas (Frivate) Limited s engaged in the business of Kids contant.

39  GENERAL

39,1 For betler presentaticn, certain prior year figures have been reclassiied consequent o cerain changes In cument panad presentation.

However, there are no materal reclassifications 1o report.
38,2 Flguras have been rounded off o the nearest Rupes.

40  HONUS SHARES

During the year, the board of directors In the meeting held on Ootober 26, 2022 approved bonus dividend @& 20%,

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been aulhorisad forissue on September 25, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company

I I}
(% 2 R
e yﬂ*ﬁ: i
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGUI
Chief Executive Chairman

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023 -

)

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



_— Annual Report 2023

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidianes
{the Group), which comprise the consolidated statemenl of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the consolidated stalement of
profit or loes, conasolidated statemant of comprahensive incoma, the corsolidated statement of changes in aquity, tha consalidated
statement of cash flows for the year ther ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatery information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statemeants give a rue and fair view of ihe consolidated financial position of tha Group as at 30
June 2023, and of ts consolidated financial perdformance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then anded in accordance with
tha accounting and reporting standards as applicabla in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs] as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemeanis
saction of our report, We are independent of the Groun in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Bodrd for Accountants’
Coda of Ethics for Prafessional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartarad Accountants of Pakistan (the Coda), and we
have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Wa believe that the audil svidence wea have obtained is
sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ara those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were ol most significance in our audit of the conselidated
financial statements of the curmrent year. These matters ware addressed In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statemeants
as a whola, ‘and in lorming our apinion theraon, and wa do net provide a separate opimon on these mattars.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our aucdit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As of the year end, the balance of television program costs
amounted to Rs. 483,447,376 (30 June 2022 425.680,238)
which represents Uunamartized cost of completed talevision
programs and telewvision programs in produchion.

Az per the accaunting policy of the Holding Company, television
program costs and acquired television program licenses and
rights ars charged to expanse based on the ratio of the ravenuss
earnad till date to total revenues to be eamed from the program
including futura estimatad revanusas, less cost axpensad In
prior yaars on an individual program basis.

Allocation of elevision program costs over several accounting
periods based on estimates of revenus involve significant
judgement of the management which may have a significanl
impact on the consclidated financial statements. For this
reason, we have identified this area as key audil matter.

Rater notes 3.7, 8 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statemants.

Owr audit procaduras amongst othars, comprised raviewing
the appropriatenass of the accounting policy of the Holding
Company In accordance with the applicable financial reporting
standards. Furthar, we oblained undarstanding ol the revanus
eslimation and amartization process of the Holding Campary,

in this regard, we selected a sample of television programs
and considared the factars used by the management tor
revenue estimation and amortization of television program

cost including:

’ historic axperience of revenue sarned by similar
programs;

. ratings of the program from available avidences;

. rates Used by the Holding Company and its flustuation
based on the trend analysis; and

. we also consldered subsequent events which may

heve an impact on unamortized cost.

Wa also svaluated whethar adequate disclosuras have been
made in the accompanying cansolidaled financial statements
in azcordance with the applicable financlal reporting standards,

2. Revenue recognition

{Refer note 3,23 and 22 1o the accempanying consolidated
financial statemeants)

The Group sarns revenue from a varaty ol sources among
the different business areas of which 98% pertains to revenus
from advartisemants and subsoripions.

As raported in the explanatory notes, revenuses from
adverlisement ara recognized at the time of the appaarance
of the advertizsamant and subscription income |5 recognized
in the month in which ssrvica is renderead.

We concluded that this area constitites a key audit mattar for
the Group consldering the significance of the amount, it being
a key performance indicator and also the Increasa of 75 and
48% in advertisemeant and subscription income as compared
to the prior year raspactively,

We obtalned an understanding of the Group's processes in
place for ravenue recognition and tested key controls aver
each significant revenue stream.

We inspected 8 sample of contracts to chack that revenue
recognition was in accerdance with tha contract terms and the
Group's revenue recognition policies.

Wa pertormed analyfical reviaw proceduras and other test of
details over revenue including cut-off procadures 1o check that
revenus hae heen recognised in the appropriale accounting
period.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group's diszlosures in
accardance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Information Other than the Consalidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Managemant is responsible for the ather information, The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Repor,
bul does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report theraon,

Qur opinion on the consalidated financial statemeants does nol cover the ather information and wa do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audil of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the othar Information is matarally inconsistant with the consolidated financial statemants or olr Knowladge
obtained in the audit or otharwisa appears o be matenally misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
thare is a material misstatemant of this othar information, we are raquired 1o report that fact. Wa have nothing {o report in this ragard.

Responsibllities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of the consolidated financial statemeants in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such intemal control as managemsant
determines 1s necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolldated financlal statemants that are free from material misstatermnent,
whsther due to Iraud or error.

In preparing the consalidated financizl statemants, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concarn, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going congermn and using the going congern basis of accounting unloss managemant
aither Intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so0,

Tne Board of Directors are rasponsibla for oversesing (e Group's financial reparting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whather the consalidated financlal statemants as a whole are free from
malerial misstatement, whether dua bo fraud or error, and foissue an auditor's repart thatl includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but iz not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs a3s applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a malarial misstatement when it axists. Misstatemants can arse from fraud or error and are considered matanal i,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users 1aken on the basis
of thesa consolidated financial statemants,

Az part of an audit in accordanos with 1545 a5 applicabla in Pakistan, we exerciss professional judgment and mamitain professional
skepticism throughout the avdit. We also.

' Identify and assess tha risks of malerial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
dasign and parform audit proceduras responsive to thosa risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sulticiant and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrapresantations. or tha ovarrida
of internal contral,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auwdit in order to design audit procedures 1hat are appropriate In
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinlon on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

g Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude an the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continua as a going concern, || we conclude that a material unceriainly exists, we are required to draw
attention In our auditor's reporl to the redated disclosures in the consolidated financlal statements or, If such disclosures are
inadaquate, o modily aur opinion. Our condlusions are based on the audit evidence obitained up ta the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group lo cease 0 conlinue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated fimancial staterments, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represant the undarying transactions and events in a manner that achievas
fair presantation.

. Obtam sufficient appropriate audit avidence regarding tha tinancial information of the entities or business activies within the
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Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial stalenients. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain sclely responsible for our audit opinian.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we |dentify during our audit.

Wa also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we hava complied with relevant athical requirements regarding indepandsanca,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thaught 1o bear on our independence, and
whara applicable, related safeguards.

From the malters communicated with tha Board of Dirsctors, wa determing thoss matters that wera of most signilicance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We deserbe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the mattar or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected o cutweaigh the public interest benefits of euch communication.

The angagemsnt partner on the audit resulting in this Independent auditorg’ report is Omar Chughtai.

g B U,

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountani

Place: Karachi

Date: September 27, 2023

UDIN Number: ARZ023101201pK 1 JbwAd
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipmant
Intangible assets

Long-term investment

Long-term deposits and prepaymenis
Telavision program costs

Defered tax assal

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Current portion of talévision prograim costs
Trade dabts

Sharl-larm mvesiments

Advances

Trade deposils and shori-term prepayments
Cthar racaivablas

Taxation — net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ABSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital
1.500,000,000 (2022 1,500,000.000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each

lgsued, subscrbed and pald-up capital
Havenue iaserves

Attributable (o owners of (he Holding Company
Non-contralling inarast

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term lease labilities
Long-term linancing
Staff retirement bensfiis

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and ather payables

Advance from custemens

Accrued mark-up

Unclaimed dividend

Ungaid dwvidend

Currant portion of defamed income - Governmeant grant
Current porfion of leng-lerm lease liabilities

Currant porfion of long-term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Hote

D 0o~ & Ch &

10
1
12
13
14

15

1o

17
18

20

18
17
18

21

The annaxed notes from 110 41 fom an imegral part of these consolidated financial statements
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2023 2022
Rupees
1,468,308,459 1,213.806,080
208,193,768 68 T00,604
43,527,574 .
30,905,161 32,382,784
397 617,518 335343010
152,607,326 206,123,723
2,307,159, 806 1,856 356,180
16,715,587 16627261
85,829,858 80,347 218
3,100,542 350 2495 313,014
588,143,281 1127 212 684
217,960,460 116,367 406
87,363,141 54 B78.938
220,269 938 211,773,876
245,616,828 232,393,146
2,101,996,731 925 578,242
6,665,418,244 5.274.491,785

8,972,598.050

1.500,000.000

1,134,000,000
§,297 572,560

7130847 975

1,500.000.000

e

945,000,000
4 206 372 452

S

7431572560 5241 372452
(£8,581.465) (53,578,718)
7,342,991,005 5,187 793,734
55,234,536 72,676,088
58,765,328 101,461,145
94,199,346 48,070,804
208,199,210 222 208 847
1,192,647.473 |[ 1,307 502,946
137,005,058 B6,356,790
2,033,411 6111455
5,153,603 6,153,621
1,374,738 2 209 TA7
. 478,147
15 664 838 16,372 568
66,528 523 295 570,060
1421407745  1,720,845.304
__BOT2S98050 _ T1N0BATITS

MUHAMMED ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
Note Rupees
Hevenue 22 7.567,863,940 6,544 952 442
Cost of production 23 (3,7584,999,321) (3,462 463,856)
Transmission cosi {332,605,797) {250,797 .633)
{4,117,605,118) (3,713,261 489)
Gross profit 3.450,258,822 2,831,700,953
Distribution costs 24 {482,974,7449) {415,772,921)
Administrative expenses 25 (1,194,481,812) (790,332,088)
Other expenses 26 - {28,112 500}
Other incomea 27 488,815,703 24 041,652
Operating profit 2,261,617, 964 1,621,624 796
Finance cosls 28 (47,136.014) (74,565,447)
Profit before taxation 2,214,481,950 1,546,959,345
Taxation 29 (296,715,144) {151,853,684)
Profit after taxation 1.917,766,806 1,395,105,655
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Cempany 1.952,.769,553 1.416,178,509
Mon-controlling interasts {35,002,747) (21,072,854)
1,217,766,806 1,395,105,655
(Restatad)
Earnings per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) 30 1.72 1.25

The annexead noles from 1 te 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financlial statemenis.

A \ y
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI

MUHAMMED ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
e HUPE‘EE e
Profit after taxation 1.817, 766,806 1,385.105,855
Other comprehensive income for the year
items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
Effact of iransiation of net investmant In foreign subsidiary companles 237,430,555 112,753 585
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,155,197,361 1,507,855,240
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Comparry 2,190,200,108 1,528,032,084
Mon-controlling Interasts (35,002,747) (21,072 B54)
2,155,197 361 1,507 ,859,240
The annexed noles from 1 (o 4% Toom an integral part of these consolidated linancial stalements.
A ] 1
—_— ¥..os
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i '-:y o & = ——
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue Reserves

Izsued, Foreign
subscribed exchange Mon-
and paid-up translation Unappropriated controlling
capital reserve profit Sub-total interest Total

Balance as al June 30, 2021 Q45,000,000 166, 74,530 2937 485,528 3.008.190.358 [32.505.864) 4.010.684,484
Loas atirbuiahls to non-contmlfing infenests for the ]l "
year - b - (21,072 864) {21.072.864)

- - . = {27,072,854) {21.072.834)
PrafiL for the year - 1,416 178,500 1.416,178.500 1.418.178:508
Other comprebensive income - 112,753 585 - 112,753 545 . 112,753 585
Tolal comprahensve moome for (s year 112,753 686 1.414,178.500 1,528,032 004 - 1,528,832 004
Imterim Cash Dividend far the quarier andad [330,750.000) (330,750,000 - {300, 750,000
March 31, 2022 @ Rs.0.35 per shara
Balance as al June 30, 2022 945,000, 000 279 458,115 4,016,814, 337 4,205, 372 452 {53.578,718) 5,187,783,734
Loss atiributable io non-contralling interests far the ll
year (35,002,747} {35.002,747)

- - {35,002, 747) {35,002, 747)
Frodit for the year . 1.952.753,553“ 1,952,769,553 1,952,709,553
Dither comprohonsive Income 237,430,555 - 237,430,555 237,430,555
Tolal compeeteense iIncome lor he year - 237,430,555 1,852,766,553 2,190,200,108 - 2,190,200,108
lssu of bonus shanss G0 20% 189,000,000 - {189.000,000) (1E89,0:00,000) - -
Balance as al June 30, 2023 1,134, 000,000 516,888,670 5,780,633 B30 297 572 560 (BE 581 465) 7,342 991,045
The annexed notes from 1 47 foem an irfdegral part of these consolidatad fnancisl steemonts,

\ (] {”
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W .k:_‘, ol e — .—"f“
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Nole - Rupess -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations H 1.542,905,675 2,085 274,482
Taxes paid {249,585 741) (240, 804,038)
Firance costs paid (40,218,296) (62,073.412)
Profil received on deposit BoCounis 27 67,328,851 28562 426
Long-term deposis and prepayments [ 1477603 1,060,670
Televislon program cosls f (62,274.498) 16,720,893
Met cash flow generated in operating activities 1,259,633,583 1.826,641,121
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditurs (378,405,110} (86,449 ,802)
Acquisition of Towsr Sports {Private) Limited (30,434,566) -
Short-term investmants - net " 558,601,632 (703, 808,061)
Dividend recalved 21 58,931,534 23451856
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assats 4.4 4822 838 18,071,821
Met cash generated from [ (used in) investing activities 213,706,328 (750, 735,086)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lang-tarm financing - net 18 (271,737,363) [225.T66.984)
Dividend pald (925.077) [328,450,231)
Leasa rentals paid 17 (24,258,933) (33.804,105)
Net cash used in from finapcing activities (296,921.373) (GBH D21, 320)
MNet increase in cash and cash eqguivalents 1,176,418 549 487 BE4,715
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 925,578,242 437 653,527
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,104 996,791 825 578,242

Tha annaxed notes fram 1 o 41 form an integral part of these consolidatad inancial siatemants.

= ’3‘ Y= (ﬂ
L e P -
A= m _
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ sIDDIQWI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

141 HUM Network Limited (the Holding Company) was ncorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Heolding Company are quoted on Pakistan
Slock Exchange

1.2 The Holding Company's principal business is to launch transnational satallite channels and aims at presanting a wide
warlety of cultural heritage and news, Its core areas of operation are production, advertisemenl, entertainment and
media marketing. Il covers a wide varigly of programmes with respect o information, enterlainment, current affairs,
educatian, heallh, food, music and sogiety,

The ‘Group’ consists of;
Holding Company
HUM Network Limited

Subsidiary Companies

2023 2022
Percentage of holding

HUM TV, Inc. 100% 100%
HUM Natwork UK Limited 100%: 100%
Sky Line Pulbllications (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Metwork FZ LLC 100% 100%
HUMM Co. (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Mart (Private) Limited TO% 0%
Tower Spors (Private) Limiled 1005 ;

1.3 Mature of operations of subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc., HUM Netwark UK LTD and HUM Metwark FZ LLC have bean established with the purpose of providing
entertainment programs to the South Asian eommunity by increasing presence in the United States of America (USA),
Canada, UK and UAE respectively. HUM Network UK LTD has 100% equity In HUM News Limitad, which is engaged In
business of transmission of news for UK audience, The subsidiary companies will alse serve as a platform for the
Haoiding Company o explore avenues for greater distribution of the Holding Company's brands in USA, Canada, UK and
UAE and will establish refations with advertisers, as well as develop US-based media materials, such as dramas,
documentanes and other entertainment shows and events,

Skyline Publication (Private) Limited (SPL)is engaged in the publications of books and magazines.

HUMM Co. (Private) Limited has been eslablished with (he purpose of develoging and producing contents, shows and
programs. A scheme of merger, by way of amalgamation, of M.D Productons (Prvate) Limited, a related party with and
into Humm Co. (Private} Limiled was approved by the Board of Directors of Ihe Holding Company on Seplember 22,
2016. The petition for the scheme of arrangement has been withdrawn by the Helding Company on April 23, 2019 due
to inardinate delay in the matter proceeding with the High Courl.

HUM Mart (Private) Limited 15 engaged in the business of onling shopping for grocary, household items and consumer
goods,

During the year, the Holding Company acquired 100% shareholding of Tower Sports (Privale) Limited le. 20,100
ardinary shares having face value of Rs. 1,000 sach, Issued at Rs. 7.462.68 each at a cost of Rs. 150 millken through
purchase of 20,100 ordinary shares, Resultantly, Tower Sporis (Private) Limited became a subsldiary of the Holding
Company effective 01 May 2023, Tower Sports (Private) Limited |s engaged In the business of praviding specialised
sports services which Include bul are nol limited 1o production, sales, marketing and distribution of sparts media conlenl
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1.4

21

2.2

2.21

222

2.3

Geographical location and address of business units

Registered office Ploi Mo. 10/11, Hassan All Strast, Off. |1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

City offices — Karachi Alfalah Court, |1 Chungrigar Road

City office = Islamabad 2A 18T center, sector G-G1

City office - Lehore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

City office = Poshawar Plot No. 7-A, 29 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office = Quetta House # 3, Phassa ||, Shahbaz town

City office — hMultan Ghous-e-Azam Road, Bismillab Colany

HUM Metwork UK Limited 38-P Alum rock road, Birmingham, England. 2 Hamiaet Mews, Landan

HUM News Limited Evergreen House North Third Floor, Office Suite 311, Graflon Place,
Euslon Lendon, United Kingdom,

Skyline Publication (Private) Plot No, 10711, Hassan All Street, Off. 1.1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan,

Limited

Hum Mart {Private] Limited Plot # SR-7, Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Sector 7 A, Korangi Indusinal Area, Karachi

HUM TV, Inc, 6201 Bonhomme Road, 180N, Houslon Texas.

Tower Sparts (Private) Limited Office Numbear 113-114, st floor, Sidco Avenua Centra, opposite YMCA Saddar
Karachi, Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

These consolldated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of

International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board {|ASB) as
notified under the Companies Acl, 2017 (the Act):

- Provisions of and directives issued undar tha Act.

Where provistons of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act
nave bean followed.

Basis of measuremaent

Thesa consclidated financial stateaments hava been prepared on the basis of nistoncal cost convention, except othanviss
specifically stalad.

These consolidated financlal statements are presented in Pak Rupeess which s the Group's functional and presentstion
currengy

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to these consaolidated financial statements

Thare are certain new and amended standards. issued by Internatinnal Accounting Standards Board (IASR), interpretations
and amendments that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2022 but are considered
nol to be relevant or do nol have any significant effect on the Group's operations and therefore not detailed in hese
comsolidated financial statements.

Amendments to approved accounting standards

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments)
IAS 16 Praperty, Planl and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments)
1AS 37 Cnerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfiling a Contract {(Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendmants to the accounting standards did not have any material effect on the Group's financial
stalements,

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Repaorting (the Concaptual Framework) in March
2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler January 01, 2020 for preparers of consolidaled nancial
statements who develop accounting policles based on the Conceptual Framewaork. The revised Conceptual Framework is not
a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requiremants in a standard, The purpose of the
Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if
there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Improvements to Accounting Standards lssued by the IASB (2018-2020 cycle)

IFRS 8 Financial Insmuments — Fees in the 11 parcant’ test for deracognition of financial liabilities
A5 41 Agricullure — Taxation In fair value measurements
IFRS 16 Lesses: Lease incemtives

The adoption of the above amandments o the approved accounting slandards did nol have any malerial effect on the Group's

financial statements.

Amendment or Improvement Effective dates
IFRE 17 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) 1-Jan-2023
AS T and IFRS  Disclosure of Accaunting Policles (Amendments) 1-Jan-2021
Practice

Statement 2

IAS B Definition of Accounting Estimates {Amendmeanis) 1-Jdan-2023
AS 12 Deferred Tax related o Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 1-Jan-2023
AS 12 Intermational Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules [Amendmenis) 1-dan-2023
|45 1 Classification of Lizbilities as Cuwent or Mon-current and Non-current Liabilities 1-Jan-2024
IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback [Amendments) 1-Jan-2024
ABST/IFRSY Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangaments (Ameandmeants) 1-Jan-2024
IFRS 10 ( 1AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets bebween an Investor and its Associate ar Joint Mot yet finalised

Venlure {Amendments)

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any matenal impact on the Group's financial statemeants in

the period of initlal application,

Further, the following new standards have been issuad by IASE which are yel to be notified by the SECP

for the purpose of

applicakility in Pakistan and are not expected to hava any materia! impact an the Group's financial statemants In the period of

Initial application.

IASE effective date (annual perlods beginning

Siancard on or after)
IFRS 1 Firsl tima adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFR& 17 Insurance Contracts January (01, 2023

2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as spplicable in
Pakistan, requires the management o make judgment, estimates and assumplions thal sffect the application of policies and
the reported amounts of revenuas, expenses, asseis and liabiiities and accompanying disclosures. Uncerainty about these
assumptionz and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camying amount of assats or

liabilities sffecled in future penods.

The estimates and assoctated assumptions are based on hisloncal expertence and vanous other Taclars thal ara believed o
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results af which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of

assefs and |labiiities that are not readily apparent fram other sources.

Estimates, assumptions and judgmeants are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognized
In the period in which the estimale is revised Il the revision affects only thal period, ar in the period of the revision and fulure

pencds il the revision affects both curenl and Tulure pernods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, managemenl has made the folowing estimates and judgmenls which are

significant 1o the consalidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depraciation ! amorlisation, useful life and residual

valua used in the

calculation of depreciation  emorisation. Further, whers applicable, an estimats of the recoverahie amount of assels is made
Tor possible impalMment on an annual basis. Any ehange In the estimates In the future might affect the carrying amaunt of

respective item of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on
amorisation charge and impairment.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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KR |

Television program costs

Television program costs represent unamortised cost of completed television programs and television programs in production.
In oréer lo determing the amount o be charged o consolidalad stalement ol profil or loss, the mansgement estimates fulure
revanues from each program. Estimates of fulure revenuss can change significantly due o & varety of factors, Including
adveariising rates and the level of market acceplance of the production in dilferent geographical locations. Accordingly,
revanus estimales are reviewad periodically and amortisation Is adjusted, it necessary. Such adjustments could have a
material effect on resuits of operations in future periods.

Income taxes
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Group, the Group 1akes into account the apglicable fax laws and the
decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused lax losses and credits 1o the extent that [t Is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which such losses and credits can be ulilized. Significant management judgment is required 1o delerming
the amount of deferred tax assets that can he recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group uses & provision matrx (o calculate ECLs for rade debts and other receivables, The provision rales are based on
days past due for Group's various customer that have similar l0ss pattermns

The provisian malrix is initially besad on the Group's historical observed defaull rates. The Group will calibrate the malnx 1o
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-lnoking information. Far instance, Il forecast economic conditions are
expected 10 deteriorata over tha next year which can l2ad to an increased number of defaults in the manufactunng sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At avery reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The sasessment ol the correlalion belween historical observed deflaull rales, lorecast economic condilions and ECLs 15 a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLS Is sensitive to chanaes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss expenance and forecast of economic condifions may also not he represenialive of cuslomer's
actual default in the future, The information about the ECLs on the Group's financial assals exposed to credit risk is disclosed
in naie 35.5

Contingancies

The assessment of the conlingencies inheranily nvolves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
events cannal be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability of the iatest information, estimatas the value of
contingent assets and liabilites which may differ on the cocurrenca [ non-occurrence of the uncertain future events

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the interest rate implicit in the leass, tharsfors, it uses s iIncremental bomowing rate
{'IBR') to measure lzass liabllities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar securily, the funds necessary to obtain an assel of a similar value to the rAghl-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extansion and termination options

The Group determines the lease lerm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any penods covered by an
option to extend the |sase if it is reasonably certain to ba exercised, or any paricds covered by an option to tarminate the
lzase, if It is ressonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has leasaé contracls that include extension and lermination option. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether il is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That s, |t considers all
relevant factors thal create an econamic incentive for it to exercise aither the renewal or lermination. Afler the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
that affects its ability to exercise cr not o exercise the option to renew or lo lerminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation
Subsidlary is a entity over which the Group has control. Contral s achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to

varlable retums from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investes. Generally, there is presumption that a malority of vating rghls result in control
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The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there arg changes to one
or more glements of control,

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group ablains control, and conlinues to be consolidated until the date
whan such control ceases. Income and expanses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are includead in profit
or loss Trom the date the Group gains cantrol until the date the Group ceases (o contral the subsidiary,

The financial stalements of the Subsidiary Company are prapared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company,
using consistent accounting polices. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have been changed to conform with
accouniing policles of the Holding Company, where requirad.

If the business combination is achieved in stages; the acquisition date carmmying value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, any gains or lesses arising from such
remeasurament are recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acguisition method of accounting. Identifiable assets acouired, liabilities
aszumed and contingent liabilities assumed in 8 business combination are measured initlally &t their falr values al the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-contralling Intarest.

The eost of an acquisition 18 measured as the cash paid and the fair value of other assets given, equity instruments ssued
and liabilitles Incurred or assumed al the date of exchange, plus costs directly atinbutable o the acquisition. Identifiable
assals acquired, liabilities assumed and conbingenl iabilities assumed in 8 business combination ame measured initially al their
fair valuas at the acouisition date, imespective of the axtant of any non-controlling interest. The excess of cost of acquisition is
recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
diference is recognised direclly in the profit or loss,

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impalrmeant lasses. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Impaimment is determined by assessing the recoverabls amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Whera the recoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized.

All infre-group balances, ransactons and unrsalised gains and losses resuling lrom mtrasgroup ransactions and dividends
within the Group are eliminatad in full

Mon-controlling Interest (NC1) is that part of the nat resulls of operations and of net assets of subsidiary attributable interast
which are not owned by the Group. The Group measures NCI on proportionate basis of the net assets of subsidiary company,

A change in the ownership inlerest of a subsidiary, withoul 8 loss of contral, 5 accounted for as an eguity rsnsaction. If the
Group loses contnol ovar a subsidiary, It derecognises the assals (including goodwill} and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying
arnount of ahy NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprebensive income, and recognises fair value
of consideration received, any investrment retained, surplus or deficit in profit and loss, and reclassifies the Helding Company
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income o profil or loss account or retained earnings, as
appropnate.

Business combinations

On 1 May 2023, the Group acquired 100% of the voling shares of Tower Sports (Private) Limited, & non-listed company
engaged in the business of prowiding specialised sports services which include but are not limited to production, sales,
marketing-and distibution of sports media content.

Internationat Financizl Reporting Standard 3, (IFRS 3) "Business Combinations", requires that all identified assels and
liabilities acquired in & business combination should be carried at falr values in the acquirer's balance sheet and any intangible
assels acquired in the business combination are required 1o be separately recognisad and camed at fair valuas.

The acguisition has been accounted Tor by applying the acquisition method in acocordance with the requirements of IFRS 3
which allows the acquirer a maximum period of one year from the date of acguisibon 1o finalise the accounting Tar business
cembination. Identified assets acquired, liabilities assumed or incumed have to be carried at the fair value as at the acquisition
data. The fair valuaticn exercise is in progress and will be finalised within the period of ane year as allowed under IFRS 3. Any
adjustment arising at the time of finalization of thiz exercize will be incorporated with retrospective effect from the date of
acquisition.
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3.3

Assets acquired and labilities assumed
The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and liablities of Tower Sports (Pnvate) Limited as st the date of
acqulsition were

Amounts in PKR

Provisional fair values recognised on acquisition

Assels
Properly and equipments 7,038,747
Intangible assels 1
Long-term deposits 16,160
Long-tarm investment 40 244 048
Trade debls 3,192 387
Loans and advances 582,717
Shaort-tarm deposit and prepayments 1,BE6,826
Interest receivable 1,398,750
Ineome (ax refundable-net 42 757,564
Cash and bank batances 116,665,434
Total Assets 225 663,534
Liabilities
Advance against shares 1,670,000
Trade and othar payables 21,188,114
Payahle against sales - nel 178,003 6838
200,781,953
Total identifianle net asaets al fair valoe 24,901,581
Purchasa consideration transferred at acquisition date 150 000,000
Pravisianal fair value of net assets acquired 24 801 581
Goodwill arifim_; an acquisition 125,098,419
Cash paid on acquisition (150,000,000}
Cash acquired in subsidiary 118,565,434
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (30,434,566

Furthier, a5 noted above, the goodwill recorded in the consalidated finanaial statements 15 based on provisional figures and
does nof incorporate adjustmants which will ba recorded after complation of the fair value exercise of recorded assats and
lizbilities,

Investment in associate

Associates are all entities owver which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally represented by a
shareheiding of 20% or more but less than 50% of the vating rights. Significant influence is the power (o participale in the
financial and operating policies and decision of investees. Investments in asscciates are accounted for using the egquity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its assoclates’ post acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss and |ts share In assoclates’
post acguisilion other comprehensive income s recognised in the Group's other comprehensive income, Cumuiative post
acqguisilion movements are adjusted against the camying value of the Investments. Dividends recelved from associates reduce
the carrving amount of the invastment. When the Group's share of losses in associate equals or exceeds s Interast in the
associate Including any cther long-term unsecured receivable, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
Incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the aszsociate.

When FVOC] invesiment |s converted into associated company, the balance in the surplus on revaluation of related assel is
tranaferred to un-appropriated profit. Gain an Iransaction between the Group and its associate are eliminated (o the extent of

The carrying amaount of the investment |s tested for impairment, by comparing 15 recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its camying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in the profit or lass.
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3.4 Property, plant and eguipmeant
3.31 Operating fixed assets
These are slated at cost less accurmnulated depreclation and impairment. if any

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as lo write off the historical
cost of the assels over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the assst is
available to use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenanca and normal rapairs are charged o consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurrad. Major renawals
and improvements, |f any, are capitalised when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group.

An ilem of property, plant and equipmenl is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected
from s use or digposal. Any gain of loss arising on derecognilion of the asset (calculsted as the difference bhetwesn the net
disposal procesds and the carrying amaount of the asset) Is includad in consalidated slatemeant of profit or loss in the vear the
asse! s derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lves and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted If appropriale, al each
consolidated statement of financial position date,

3.3.2 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises a right-nf-use assets at the commencameant date of the lease (e the date the underlying assat is
availlable for use). Righl-of-use assets are measured at cosl less any accumulated deprectation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiliies. The cost of rght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabllities
recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al o beforg the commencement dsle less any lease
Incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depraciated on a straight-line basis over the shorer of lease term or useful iife,
excapt for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assets iransfer to the lessee by the end of the lsase term or cost of
right of use assets reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchasa oplion, the Group depreciate those right of use asset over
the usslul life of Ihe underlying asset.

3.3.3 Capital work-in-progress

These are sialed at cost less accumulated impairment losses and congizts ol expenditures incumred and advances made in
respect of specific asaels during the construction perod. These are transferred 1o specific assels as and when assels are
available for use.

3.6  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assels acquired in a
business combination s fair valua as al the date ol acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are cared al
cest less any accumulated amartisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangibie assets are amortised ovar the useful economic life and assessed for impaiment whanever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amartisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life is reviewed at least st each linancial year end. The amoriisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in consolidalad statemen of profl or loss in the expanse calegory consisiant with the funclion of the inlangibls
assal,

Gains ar losses arising from deracoanition of an Intangible assel are measured a5 the difference belween the nel disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in consolidated staterment of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

3.7  Televislon program costs

Television program costs represent upamaortised cosl of completed tefevision programs and television programs in production
These costs include direcl production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are stated al the
lower of cost, less accumulated amortisation and nal realizable vaiue [NRV). NRY s estimaled by the management on the
basis of future revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and rights are recorded
when the license pericd beglns and the program Is avallable for use.

Television program costs and acguired television program licenses and rights are charged to expense based on the ratio of

the revenues eamed bl date to total revenues to be eamead from the program including future estim:ated revenues less cost
expensad in prior years on an individusi program basis.
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3.9

Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cosl basis and are staled at the lower of cost and NRY,

Provision is made for chsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on managemeant's best estimate and is recognised in the
statement of profil or loss.

Financial instrumants

& fimancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or aguity
instrument of another ently.

i) Financial assels

Initial recognition and measurement
Under IFRS 2 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequantly measured at following:

{a) at amortised cost
(b} at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL); and
{e) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognilion depends on the financial assel's contractual cash flow charmctedstics
and the business modeal for managing them, With the excaption of trade receivables, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of & financial asset not al fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables are measured at lhe lransaction prce delermined under IFRS 15

In order for & financial asset 1o be classified and measured at amortised cost or @ir value through OCI, it nesds Lo give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of prncipal and inlerest (SPP1) on the principal amount oulstanding. This assessment is
refarred {o as tha SPPI test and s parformad at an instrument leval. Tha Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial azsets in order (o generate cash flows. The business model determines whethor
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assals, or both.

Purchasas or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame esfablished by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised gn the trade date, |.e, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell ihe asset,

{a) At amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if bath of the following conditions are met:

- The financial assel s held wilhin a business model with the objecthve to hold financial assets in order to callect
contraclual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(x) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assats with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and inlarest are classifisd and measured at fair value
through profit or |oss, irespective of the business model, Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designaled upon initial recognition at fair value through profil or loss, or financial
asssats mandalorily required to be measured at fair value, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset thal otherwise
meels the requirements o be measured st amortised cost or &t FVYOC! as at FVTPL il doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financlal asset (unless it is a trade recelvable without a significant finencing compenent that Iz initially measured at the
ransachion price) s initially measured al Tair valug plus, for an ilerm nol at FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly
atrributable to its acquisition

{c} At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt Ingtruments is measured at falr value through OCH If both of the following sonditions are mel:

- The financial assat |z held within 5 business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

- The contractual lerms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
prinzipal and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding.

Upan initial recognition, the Group can elect Lo classily irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at
FVOLC! when they mest the definition of eguity under |AS 32 Financlal Instruments; Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measureament, finrancial assets are classified ino following categories:

. Financial assats at amortised cost (debt instrumeants).

Financial assets designaled al fair value through OC| with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition [equity instrumennts)
- Financial assets at fair valua through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets sl amortsed cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) methed and are subject lo
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modifled or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets al FYPL inciude financial assets held for trading, financial assets designaled upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorlly required to be maasured at fair value. Financlal assets are classified as held for trading If they
are acguired for the purpose of sefling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solaly
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at falr value through profit or loss, irespeciive of the business
model, Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments (o he classifisd al amorlised cost ar a1 FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
geocounting mismatch.

Financial assets al FVPL are camed in the consclidated stalement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognisad in consalidated statement of prodit or l0ss.

Thiz eategory also Includes derivative Instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had nol imevocably elected
o classify at FWVOCI, Dividends on listed squity Investiments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has bean established

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and lossas (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, fareign exchange revaluation and impaiment losses
or reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assels measured al amortised cosl. The remaining fair valee changes are recogrised in OCI, Upon deracognition, the
cumillative fair value change recognisad in OCH s recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OC! with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled Lo profit
or loss, Dividends are recognised as other income [n the consolidated statement of profit or loss whan the right of payment
has bean established, except whan the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cost of the financial
assel, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Eguity instruments designated at Tair value through OC! are nol subject
to impairment assessment.

&g al the dale of consolidated statement of financial position, Group is nol having any eguity instrument designated at Fair
value through OCI

Derecognition
& financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial ssset or part of & group of simiar financial assets) is primarly
derecognised (e removed from the Group's consolidated stalement of inancial position) when:

The rights o receive cash flows from the gsset have expired; or
- The Group has transferred its rights 1o recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 1o pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either {2) the Group
has transferred substantially sl the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Group bhas neither transierred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,
When the Group has transferrsd its rights o receive cash flows from an assel or has entered Into 8 pass-through
amrangement, it evaluates if, and to whal extent, il has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has nalther transfermad nor retalned substantially all of the rsks and rewards of the asset, nor fransfamed control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset o the extent of its continuing involvement. |n that case, the
Group also recogrises an associated liability, The transferred assel and the associaled liability are measured on a basis that
refiects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,

Continuing Involvemant that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransfermed asset Is measured at the lower of the original
camying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for axpectad oradit losses (ECLs) for all debi instruments nat held al Tair value through
profit or loss, ECLs arp based on the difference batween the contractual eash flows due in accordance with the eontract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rale. The
expected cash flows will inciude cash Nows from the sale of collateral heid or other credit enhancemants that are integral to
the contractual temms.
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ECLs are recognised In two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credil risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are pravided for credil losses thal resull from defaull events that are possible within the next 12-
manths (a 12-month ECL). For those oredit exposuras for which there has been & significant increase in cradit fsk since inilial
recognition, a loss allowance s required for credit losses axpacted over the remaining life of the expasure, irrespactive of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade debis, the Group applies 8 simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowanca hasad on lifetime ECLs at each raporting date. The Group has established
a provision matnx that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
deblors and the economic envircnment,

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases.
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in defaull when internal or external informalion indicates thal the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before tsking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financisl assetis written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

ii} Financial fiabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classifed, al initial recognition. as financial fiabilities 2t fair value through prafit or logs, loans and
borrowings: payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging Instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial lisbilities ara recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and barrewings and payables, net of directly
attributable transachon cosis.

Financial liabilitios at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit o loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial labilities
designated upon iniial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial llabiities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit ar loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group
has not designated any financial liabilily as & fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, barrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. Gains
and losses ara recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derscognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amaortisad cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acqulsition and fees or costs that are an
irtegral parl of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consalidated statement of profil or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current lisbilities unless the Group has an uncanditional right to defer the selfement of the liability
for &1 least 12 meonths after the reporting dale. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings in forgign currency
are added o the carying ameunt of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lizhiiity is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liabflity and the recognition of a new liability. The difterence in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss

3.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financlal assets and financial liabllities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an inlention to selile on a
nel basis, to realise the assels and setlle the labiliies simultanecusly

311 Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer geods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a cuslomer pays consideration before the Group
transfers goods or sarvicas to the custonmear, a contract labllity s recognised when the payment is made or the payment |s due
{whichever is earlier). Contract hability are recognised as revenue when the Group pedorms under the conlracl.
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The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assaessed at each reporting date to azcertain whather there is any indication
of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment
loss, if any. An impaliment |pss is recognised, 8s an expense in consolidated sistement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's fair value less cost 1o disposal and value in use.
Value in use is ascertained Lhrovgh discounting of the esiimaled fulure cash flows using a discount rale thal reflects current
market assessmanls of the lima value of money and the risk spaciiic to the assals lor which the estimate of fulure cash flow
have not been adjustad. For the purpose of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

312  Impairment of non-financial assets

3.13 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

Thesza are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessment is made at each consclidated statement of inancial position date to determine whether there is an indication that
assete may be impaired. If such indication axists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying value.

3.14  Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current whan it is:

» Expected to be realised or ntended o be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expecled to be realised wilhin iwelve months afler the reporting period

Or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to ssettle a lability for at least twelve months aftar
the reporting perod

All other assels are classified as non-current.

A lahility s current when:

« It is expected o be settled in the normal oparating cycle

* |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* |t Is due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting period

ar

* Thera Is no uncanditional right 1o defer the setilement of the liability for at least twalve months after (he reporting period

The terms of the liability thal could, at the option of lhe counterparty, result in His settlemeant by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other labilities as non-current.

Deferred 1ax assets and labilties are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

3.15 Taxation

Current
Pravision for currenl tax is based on the taxable iIncome in accordance with the applicable taws,

Deferred

Deferad lax s recognised using the balance shee! llability method, on all major lemporary differences arising at the
consolidated statement of financial posiion date between tax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carrying amaunts in the
censolidated financial slalements,

Deferred tax liobilites are recognized for all lexsble temporary differences. Deferred lax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences 1o the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be avallable against which
the assets may ba wiilized. Defamred tax assats are reduced to the axtant that it is no longer probable that the related tax
tenefit will be realized,

The carmrying amount of deferred Lax asset is reviewed al each consalidaled statement of financial position date and reduced

o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profits will be available to allow all or part of the defemad lax
assel o be recognized,
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Deferred tax assels and llahbiliies are measured at the tax rale thal are expected lo apply lo the period when the assel is
realised or the liahility is setlled, based on lax rates {and lax [aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the
consalidated statement of financial posilion date

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

These are carrled at cost. For the purpose of consalidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivelents comprise of
cash In hand, bank balances and short-term running finance.

317 Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value, Incremeantal costs directly atinbutable to the issue
of new shares or opfions are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Reserves comprise of
unappropriated profit and share exchange reserve.

318 Leases

The Group assesses al contract inceplion whather a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is, iIf the contract conveys ihe right
o control the Use of an identified asset for a perod of ime in exchange for consideration.

3.18.1 Group as a lesses

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for gshort-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Gmup recognisas lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

I} Laasa liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lesse liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease Incentives recelvable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
cxpected to be pald under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the oxercise price of 8 purchase
option reasonably ceriain 1o be sxercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lamminalion
aption is reasonahly cerlain to be exercized. Vanable lease payments thal do notl depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred 10 produce inventonas) in the panoed in which (he event or condiion thal nggers the
payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease paymeants al the laase commeancement date, the Group uses Ihe
Interest rate implicit in the lease, In case where the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily detarminable, the Group
uses s incremental borrowing rale, Alter the commencemenl date, lhe amount of lease liabilities is increased o refiect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made In addition, the carmying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a2 change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlving assst.

it} Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Group determines the izass larm 85 the non-canceliable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
pption to extend the lease if i is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to erminate the
leasa, if i1 is reasonably certain nol to be exercised,

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options, The Group appiies judgement in
evaluating whethser It is reasonably certaln whether or nol to exercise the oplion to renew or lerminate the lease. Thal is, It
considers all relevant facters that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or lermination. After the
commencemeant date, the Group reassesses the lease term if thare s a significant event or change in circumstances thafi is
within its control that affects its ability to exerciee or not to exarcise the ophion to renaw or to tarminate (2.9, construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

lii} Estimating the Iincremenial borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit In the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
{IBR) tc measure |ease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have 1o pay 1o biorrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o oblain an assel of a similar value lo the right-of-use asset Ina similar
sconomic environmenl

v} Short-term leases
The Group applles the shor-term lease recognilion exemption o its short-lerm leases of office premises (Le.. those leases

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
paymants on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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Borrowings ara initially recognised at fair value, net of transaclion costs incurred and subsequently carmed at amorised cost
using the effective interest mathod.

3.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unlgss the Group has an unconditional ! contractual right Lo defer settlement of
the liability for &t least twelve months aftar the consalidated statement of financial position date,

3.20 Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where thers is reasonable assurance that the grant will be recelved, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. As the grant relates 1o an expense ilem, it s recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related casts, for which it is inlended o compensale, are expensed.

1.21 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Group, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the consolidated
statament of financial position date s recognized as unpaid dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding
three years from the consolidated statement of financial position dale are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

3.22 Provisions

Provistons are recognized when the Group has & present obligation (legal or constructive) as @ result of past events, It is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and a rellable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed gt each consolidated statement of financial position date and adjusted 1o reflect
the currenl best estimate.

1.23 Revenue recognition
Advertisement revenue js recognised when the related advertisement or commercial appears before the public i.e., aired.
Production revenue: Production revanue is recognised whan production work appears bafore public

Digital revenus: Advertising revenues from digital properties are recognized on the basis of number of iImpressions an the
advertiserment aired on website.

Subscription income arses from the menthly billing to subseribers for services provided by the Group and from digital avenues
based on number of views. Revenue |5 recognised in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution revenues: Revanua from film distribution is recognized at a point in fime upon receipt of related saies reporls
from cinemas.,

Sale ol goods are recognized when goods ane deliverad (o customsrs.
Sale of magazines: Revenue is recognised on dispatch of magazines.

Cradit limits in contract with customers mnges from 2 to 80 days.

3.24 Other income
Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.
Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective inferest meathod
Dividend income is recognized when it is declared and right to recalve is establishad
Interest { markup income is recognized on accrual basis:

Other revenues are accounted for on an acerual basis,
3.25 Expenses
Expenses are recorded when incummed based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administrative

expenses include direct and indirect cosls nol specifically part of cost of production. Allocalions between cost of production,
distribution and administrative expenses, when reguired, are made on a consistent basis

3.26 Donation

Daonations are racorded as an axpanse when they are approved by the Board of Directors or actually paid, whichever s sarller,
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.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.3

3.32

3.33

3.34

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Haolding Company operates 2 funded and approved provident fund schema for all i{s permanant employees. Equal
marnthly contribulions are made, bolh by the Helding Company and the employees, 1o the fund al \he rate of 8.33% of the
basic salary,

Foreign currancy translations and translations

Forsign curency lransaclions are lranslated into Pakistani Rupees using lhe exchange rales ruling al the dales of the
fransaclions, Monetary assets and labiliies in foreign currsncies are translaled inte Pakistanl Rupess using the exchange
rate al the consalidated statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and lossas rasulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the fransiations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are taken to consolidsted statement of profit or loss

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary companies are (ranslated 1o Pak rupees at exschange rates pravailing al the
consolidated statement of financial position date. The income and expenses of foreign subsidiary compariies are fransiated at
average rate of exchange for the year. Transtation gainz and lesses arlsing on the translation of netl investment in fareign
subsidiary companies are taken to equity under "Foreign Exchange Transiation Reserve” and on disposal are recognised in
the consolidated statemeant of profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable o the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the peried in
cannection with the aclivities necessary 1o prepare the asset for its intended use are capltalised as 2 part of the cost of related
asset,

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expansea in the pariod in which they are incurred
Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and approprialion to resarves are recognized in the consolidated financial stalements in the period In which Lhese
ara approved

Contingencies

Contingencies are disciosed whan the Group has a possibie obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by lhe ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure evenls nol wholly within the control of
thie entity or 3 present obligation that arises from pael events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an autfiow
of resources embodying economic benafits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obiigation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per shara (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS js calculatad by dividing the
prafit or loss sttributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
cutstanding during the perod,

Functional and presentation currency

These conschidatad financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's funchional and presentation
currency.

Segment Reporting

Segment reporling s based on the reporting operaling (business) segmeants of the Group. An operating segment is a
companent of the Group that engages In business activities from which It may eam revenue and Incur expenses. An opsrating
segment's operaling resulis ara reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Group (o make decisions about
resources 1o be allocated to the segment and assess its parformanice, and for which discrale financial information is available,
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4.2 Particulars of immovable assets In the name of the Group are as follows:

Location Addresscs Total Area
Karachi Flot Mo, 10411 Hassan All Strest, off ||, Chundrgar road, 2070 sq yerd
|stamabad  Piot No.2A, 18T Centre Sector G-6/1., 30,610 59 fi
|stamabad  B-7 km, Kashmir Highway, adjacent lo Sector H-17 303 aq yard
2023 2022
Mote Rupees
4.3 Depreciation for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
Cosl of productian 23 42,139,114 100,988,088
hstribution cogts 24 8,213,258 3,085,345
Adminisirative expenses 25 46,729,244 34 508,191
97,081,696 138,579,624
4.4 The detaile of operating fixed assets disposad | written off during the vear are as follows
Accumulated Net book Sale Modes of
Description Cost depreciation value procesds  Gain |/ (loss} MHsposals Particulars of Buyer
Uplinking equipme 3 200,000 1440000 1,7EOGOG 9,200,000 [560,000) Ingurancs Claim Adaimjoo Insurancs
Vehicles L 1 050,440 B35 360 1088100 252,240 As per Group's Policy M Irfan Youris, Employes
2,571,808 1,800,336 Tr.572 878,100 106628 MNegotiation bdr. Omar Nasir, Employea
Items having
than Rs. 500,000 6,224,178 4 G04 203 #18.310 4,756,638 1,137,328 Megotiation Various
2023 13,782,226 9. 795484 3986742 4822838 936,097
2022 A0.036,.573 17634864 12401008 18071.921 5670012
2023 2022
MNote RUDEREE ——=remme
4.5 Right of use assets
Year ended June 30
QOpening net book value 78,765,339 108 028622
Additions 1,638,463 13,426,784
Changa due to modification during the vear (6,262,103) 28,196,604
Termination of lease - (37.328117)
Transfer to operating fixed assats - book valug (1,607 ,432) (10,360,614)
Less: Depraciation charge for the year 4528453 (20550,075) (25,196.8940)
Clasing nat boak valle 51,984 192 T8, 765,330
As at June 30
Cosl 153,666,550 183987447
Accumulzied depreciglion {101,682 ,358) (105,222,108}
Met book valile 51,984,192 7B,765,339
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4.51 The right-of-use assats are depracialed an stralght line basiz over the remaining leasa term.

4.5.2 Depreciation for the year on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:

Cosl of production

Dismbution costs

Administrative expenses

Land and building
Vehicles

4.6 Capital work-in-progress

Leasahabd land

Leasshold Improvements

4,61 Movermant in capital work-ln-prograss during the year;

Balance dl beginning of the year

Additions during tha year
Balance atend of the year

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gadwll

Compuies sothwaras
Licensa fee

Trade mark

Goodwill

Compoier softweras
LG e

Trade mari

2023 2022
Note Rupees —ee—e-
23 15,605 265 14,203 948
24 BB3.609 2464116
25 4,061,201 8 528 B77
20,550,075 25,128,940
4.5.3 Breakup of depraciation of right-of-use ascets by class of underlying asset is as Tollows:
16,540,141 18,787 176
4,000,934 6,408, 764
20,550,075 25,126 940
162,327,930 106,914 620
38,548,216 -
200,876,146 106,914 620
106,914,620 87 420460
13 961 526 19484 151
200,876,146 106,914 620
Cost Accumulated amortisation Book valua Amortisation
As at As at As at Charge for the hs at as at rate
July 01 Additionn:/ J 0 Juty 01 o =i W 3 e
uby 01, t of DCIF une 30, uly 01, yoar umo 3, une 3,
2022 2023 202Z2 2023 2023 PET anmnum
13,848,339 125,098,419 138947758 11,803,791 - 11,803,779 127,143,867
79,036,067 - THO3E 06T 53, TBO3EZ 5,058,365 58 838,727 20,197, 340 20-233
52,286,428 52,786,458 14.328.972 200,100  14,529.072 37757426 6.67
41470477 26570263 ¢ GBO4DTED 38028652 6817053  44,045705 23,095,035 20
185,642,381 151,668,682 33831083 11T 941 777 12,175,618 130,117,295 208,193, 768
Cost Accumulated smortisslion Book valua Amortisation
As at As al As at Charge for the As at as at rate
July 01 Afdaes! J 30 Julby 01 d 30 J 30 %
uly 01, i t of QI une 30, uly 01, year une 30, une 30,
2021 2922 2021 2022 2022 per annum
13,848,338 13848338 11,803,781 11,803,791 2,045,548
ToOME DET 72036 06T 47,531 853 6248800 53,78 A82 25,255 TD5 20-33
5,266,458 52 286,493 14,046,641 282,328 14,328.972 37,957,526 B.67
_33.53_15&0 TS8687T = 41470477 _3&5?9.5-11 ?.349.51 38,028,652 E..itﬂ,fg_ il
173.055.404 T.5ERATT 186,642 387 104,061,031 13,8B0,746 117,841,777 68, 700,504

Rmjpreseils mlecis of reslmrmialionin Oiber Compesheidie Inoome (00
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51 Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:
2023 2022
Note RuUpees -s-m-m-em
Cost of production 23 6,350,640 B.B26 282
Administretive expenses 25 5,824,878 5,054 464
12175518 _ 13880746
6 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
Pakistan investmant bond 6.1 49,527.574 -
6.1 Thiz represents Pakistan Investment Bonds hald by Tower Sports (Private) Limited having face value of Rs. 20 millien and
Rs. 35 million maturing on July 12, 2023 and July 12, 2028 respectively. These cany markup at the rale of 8% - 8.75% (2022,
8% - B.73%).
2023 2022
Mote Rupess -
T LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREFPAYMENTS
Security deposits
- Rent TAT7. 767 7,608,234
- Trade 15,975,435 15,975.435
- Others 5,646,882 4 588,837
28,800,084 28,172 608
Prepayments
- Software developmant fee 2,105,077 4,210,158
ﬁﬂﬂﬁi:lﬂ 32&@2.?@
B TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Unreleased | released less amortisation 432,619,726 389,223,988
In production 50,827 650 35,460,250
483,447 376 425,690,238
Less; Curment portion (B5,829,858) (90, 347.219)
347,617,518 335,343,019
8 DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary differences arlsing in respect of:
Unrealissd exchangs gain (2,896,908) -
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Provisions 128,838,706 130,850 407
Long-term lease liabilities - net 7,376,946 3,393,763
Unabsorbed losses 16,901,525 11,158 858
Unrealised lose on short-larm Investments - net 414 837 11,829 618
Acceleratad tax depreciation and amortisation 1,972,220 48,781.076
155,504,234 206,123,723
152@7,3@ 2I:IE='I 23.723
10 TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 3,100,542,350 2488 313.014
Considered doubtful 47,592,291 114,254 344
10.3 3,148,134,641 2,613,547 358
Less; Allowance for ECL 10.2 (47,592,291) {114,234 344
—at80.313.014
101 Parbiculars of receivable from foreign junsdictions,
Jurisdiction
United Arab Emirates 359,671,228 142,213,680
United Kingdom 197,480,965 190,271,693
United Stales of Amerlca 86,760,665 345,600,009
— 643912868 678,004 382

These recelvables are on contract basis and there are no defaulling parties as ol June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022,
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2023 2022
Rupees
10.2 Allowance for ECL
Opening balance 114,234,344 78,285,137
Addition of subsidiary 3,485,486 -
Writtan off (28,835,0865) -
Charge for the year 6,215,306 28,112 800
Reversal of provision (52,745,517) -
Impact of translation 5,337,737 7,736,407
Balance as al the end of the vear ii'iﬂ'ggl 1 ‘Ii@ﬁlﬁi
2023 2022
Nate e 1T 1T
10.3  The agng of trade debis as &t June 30 15 a5 ollows:
MNalther pasl due nor Impalred 2,505,754, 553 2113924726
Past due bul not impaired
- 01 o 30 days 264,705 401 241,088,350
= 31 1o 60 days 147,839,419 123 072,429
- Owver 60 days 229 835228 134 460 A53
3,148 134 541 25613547 358
11 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Term Finance Cerlificales (TFCs)
L Microfinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Re 2 455 each (Fair Value: 1.008663)
(2022: B 400 TFCs having face valus of Rs.4,981 each, Fair Valus: 1.082585) 1.1 21,148,158 45 386, 768
Mutual Funds
AKD Cpportunity Fund
542,247 units (2022: 771,787 having NAY of Rs. B8.8353 (2022 Rs. 100.9845) per unit 48,170,681 T7.938,517
AKD Isiamic Income Fund
89,961 units having MAY of Rs, 508934 (2022 Rs. 51.0601) par unit 5,087,356 3,163,100
AKD Golden Arrow Slock Fund
3,800 836 units (2022 T,369,230) having NAY of Rs. 12.0312 (2022: R&. 13.4231) par unit 46,931,759 98,817 914
NBF Marey Market Fund
2,972 535 units {2022: 2.590,042) having NAVY of Re. 997087 [2022: Rs. 8:9311) par unit 29,668,997 25.811,342
LIBL Liguidity Plus Fund
228 544 units (2022: 189 A48} having NAY of Rs. 10118838 (2022 Ra. 101.0881) per unit 23,125 569 20,181,785
Faysal Cash Fund
Mil units {2022; 2,017 445) having NAY of Rs. 101 5887 (2022 Rs, 100.1818) per unit - 202,111,633
Alfalah Istamic Capilal Prasarvallon Plan 4 Class A
B units (2022: Nil) heving NAV of Rs. 100,5235 (2022; 99.7612) par unil B49 -
Alfalah GHP Maney Market Fund
1,320,747 unita {2022 1,016,550 having NAY af Rg. 988615 (2022: Rg; 88.3719) pat unit 130,306,874 100.000,000
MCE Pakisian Cash Management Fund
2,088 G1B units (2022 409.421) having NAV of Rs. 50,3835 (2022 Rs, 50.4678) per unil 105,131,135 20,682,508
MCE Pakistan Cash Managamant Gptinnizer
NIl Lrilts (2022: 887,165] having NAV of Rs, 101,5318 (2022 Re. 101.2998) per unil . 100,000,000
HBL Financial Sactor Incame Fund Pan |
Ml wriits (2022 4.098.057) having NAY of Rs. 101,112 (2022 Rs 100.0454} per unit - 409 921 800
HBL Cash Fund
1,004 202 unita (2022 Nil) havirg NAV of Rg. 102 1648 [2022: 101 .2227] per unil 102,594 119
ABL Cash Fund
2,316 350 imits {2022 2023967 having NAY of Rs. 102287 (2022° Rs, 10,2015} per unit 23,693,247 20 847 500
Agkari High Yield Scheme
512,963 (2022 23,286) having NAV of Rs. 103.872 (2022,103.4798) per unit 53,284,537 2.408,729

089,143,281 1127 212 684
111 These carry interest ranging fram 18.73% o 20.32% (2022 1% 1o 14.96%) per annum.
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12 ADVAMCES
- Unsecured, considered good
Interest free advances 1o
- Producears 88,084 079 B4, 183 888
- Suppllars 60,142 517 26, BRG, 368
158,236,586 111,050,750
- Bscurnd
Intzrest free advancas o)
- Employess 58,723 B64 5,417,150
217.960 460 116,367 406
12,1  The aging of advances to M.D Production (Private) Limited: a related partias s as fellows:
Meither pest due nor impaired 29,108,714
Past dus but mot impainad
- 01 15 30 days - -
- 41 o 60 days - -
- Owver 61 days ] =
29 108,714
2023 2022
Note enrreres RUPEES wemmmmen
13  TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Rent 357175 514,500
- Qither 1,373,639 -
1,730,814 514 500
Prepayments
- Insurance 22,862,965 16,739,048
- Rent 19,709,609 T48,365
- Other 43,059,753 36,877,025
85,632 327 54 364 438
87,363 141 54,878 938
14 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax rece/vable 14.1 129,235,857 124,140,222
Incomea! mark-up accrued 3,863,036 22,421 887
Chers 87,171,045 65211 766
220260838 211 773675
144 As per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule. 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertisement services shall withheld whole of sales tlax applicable on the person providing advertisement services.
Accordingly, the Holding company is unable to adjus! its input tax deducted on purchases of laxable goods and
sarvices as 100% of the output tax on the Holding Company's taxable services are baing withhe'd by the recipiant of
these services. However, Holding Company is in comespondence with the relevant authorities through ils legal advisor
to resolve the matter,
2023 2022
Note e [AUPEAS =mewrmmnan
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 391,123 562,018
Cash at banks
= in current accounts 1,522,252 443 208,934,944
- In deposit accounts 15.1 579,353,155 718,081,280
2,101,605,588 925,016,224
2,101,996 791 925 578,242
18.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 12.5% to 18.75% per annum {2022: 5.5% to 12.85%) per annum.
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2023 2022 2023 2022
{(Number of shares)

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs, 1/- each

500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
634,000,000 445 000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 634,000,000 445,000,000
1,134,000,000 945,000,000 1,134,000,000 945,000,000
16.1 Voling rights, board selection, right of firsl refusal and block voling are In proportion to the shareholding,
16.2 Bonus shares issued to directors of the Heolding Company are 86,657,902 shares (2022 : Nil).
2023 2022

Mote
17 LONG-TERM LEASE LIABILITIES

Dpening balance

Additions during the year

Change due to termination

Change due to modification during the year

Mark up on lease liabllities 28
Less: Leasa rentals paid

Closing halancea 171

Less: Current portion of long-term lease liabilities

Long-term |ease liahilities

cmmmeenees RUPEES cwsvnse—

89,049 467 121,616,252
1,375,281 13,843,510

- (49.463,171)
(6,262,102} 22 469,102
10,995,762 14 287 879
(24,258,933) (33,804,105}
70,899 475 89,049 467
{(15,664,939) (16,372,569)
55,234,536 72 676,808

174 Includes lease finance facility entered into by the Holding Company with commerclal banks for vehicles amounting
g to Rs, 115,000,000 (2022: Rs115000,000) out of which Rs. 108,752,820 (2022; Rs. 1056,265,279) remains

unutilized at year end.

18 LONG-TERM FINANCING Note

Islamic banks - secured

Diminishing Musharaka - | 18.1
Diminishing Musharaka - || 18.2
Diminishing Musharaka - 111 18.3
Salary Refinance Loan 18.4

Less: eurrent malurity

Conventional bank
Bounce back loan - unsecurad 18.5

Less: current malturity

2023 2022
——— Rupees ———
. 128,853,318
3 §9.975,325
93,750,000 125,000,000
5 49,110,321
93,750,000 372,938,964
(62,500,000)  (294.813,043)
31,250,000 78,125,021
31,543,851 24,082,250
31,543, 851 24,082,250
(4,028,523} (756,126)
27,515,328 23,336,124
58,765,328 101,461,145

18.1 Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rale of & months KIBOR plus 1% (Jung 2022: &
months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments
cammencing after a grace period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement |.e. from June 2018, The loan Is

sacurad by way of registered morigage over the building on leasehold land,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

19

19.1

20

Represent Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of & months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2022: & months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after a gracs
periocd of 18 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017. In 2020, the Holding Company had
availed the prnncipal defarment facilily for LTFF offered by the SBP throwgh BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to
dampen adverse effects of the COVID-18 and to provide relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable
by December 2022 now. Financing is secured by way of Equilable Morigage over registered office, first pan passu
constructive mortgage charge over land and first hypothecation charge over plant, machinery & eguipment.

Reprezenis Diminishing Musharaka facility secured In current year carrying profit ai the rate af & manths KIBOR plus
1% per annum. The financing is repayable in & equal quarterly instalments commencing afler a grace period of 12
months fram the date of disbursement |.e. December 2021. Financing Is secured by way aof Equitable Mortgage aver
registered office, first hypothecation charge over plant, machinery & equipment, first pari passu charge over
receivables of the Helding Company and first pari passu charge by way of construclive mortgage charge over
Istamakbad offica.

Represents long-term financing from an islamic bank of Rs 200 milllon obtained in June 2020 under the refinance
scheme for payment of wages and salanes by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) The loan carry markup rate at the rate
of SBP rate = 3% however, the lpan have been recognised at the present value, The lgan is repayable in 8 equal
quarterly installments commencing from January 2021 discounted at effective rale of interest. The differential
markup has been recognised as government granl which will be amaortisad to interest income over the period af
loan. The facility is secured by way of registered equitable morlgage over land and property with 30% margin,

Represents foreign currency loan amounting to £100.000 obtained by the Group from Barclays Bank UK PLC at the
rate of 2.5% per annum. The loan is repayable in B0 equal installments commencing after a grace pernod of 13
months from the date of disbursemeant. During the first 12 months, the UK government will pay interast dua on this
loan as Business Interruplion payment. The loan is supported by the Bounce Bank Loan Scheme (BELS) managed
by the British Business Bank on behalf of the Secretary of State for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy.

2023 2022

Deferred income - Government grant Note Rupees --—--—
Opening balance 478,147 5,056,265
Recaived during the year - -
Released to the statement of profit or loss 27 (478,147) (4,578,118}
Clasing balance 19.1 - 478,147
Current portion - (478.147)
Man-current portion - =

Governmeant grant was recorded pursuant to a salary refinance scheme introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
(IHESMEFD Circular Nos. 07 &14) to prowide loan to businesses at concessional rates to finance salary expensa
during the COVID-19 outbreak. The grant had been provided to the Company as a reimbursement of average wages
and salaries’ bill for the months of Aprl, May and June 2020 subject to Group's undertaking thal no employees be
lald off due to cash flow limitations, for a perod of three months between Aprl 01, 2020 to June 30, 2020,

2023 2022
Note seseweuee Rupees -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 201 408,564,969 806,282,074
Accrued liabilities 20.2 452,689,331 322 532 560
Withholding tax payable 19,144,897 26,638,648
Payable o provident fund - 1,031,524
Others 20.3 312,248,276 51,018,136

1,192 647,473 1,307 502,946
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M. Production (Private) Limited - 492,304,729
- 392,304,729

201  Include amount payable to following related party:

20.2 Includes donation amounting to Rs. 56,135,202/ accrued on the basis of Board's approval which will be paid to
Momina and Duraid Foundation.

20.3  Investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debl securities out of providant funds have
been made in accordance wilh the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules formulated for this purpose.

| CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

211 Contingencies

21.1.1  For tax related mattars, refer note 20 1o these consallidaled financial stalements

21.2  Commitments

21.2.1 Purchase of {elevision programs commitments with 8.0 Production (Privale) Limited - 8 related party as at Jung 30, 2023 amounterd

to Rs, 258,962,000 {June 30 2022, Rs. 204,378,000). Commitment for purchase of television programs with cther than refaled parties
as at June 30, 2023 amalnted to Rs. 41,215,500 {June 30, 2022: Rs_ 48 902 008,
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2023 2022
Note neees RUpees —--m-eee
22 REVENUE - net
Advertisement revenus 5,404,575,800 5,059 603,781
Froduction revenues 221,648,886 126,691,090
Digital revenue 80,643,000 108,992,303
Subscription Income 1,852,244,529 1,243,254,732
Fiirm distribubion revenue 7,437,607 5749479
Sale of magazines 1,314,018 671,057
221 & 22.2 7.567,863,940 6,544 562 442
221 Reverue is net off the following itams:
Sales tax 722,681,112 &71.884.784
Discount to customers 598,870,841 4099 258,813
1,321,551,953 1,171,143,597
22.2 Represents revenue from the following gecgraphical regions:
Asia 5,200,572,987 5,503 675,785
Middle East 392,696,047 244 244 528
United Kingdom 251,810,191 238,567,556
America 1,722,684,715 568 474,293
__ 7,567,863,940 6,544 962 442
23 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cost of culzourced programs 2,087,370,509 1,718,531,600
Cost of in-house programs 313,767,589 227,538,028
Cost ol inventory consumead 2,000,487 1,178,980
Salanes and benefits 2341 1,079,592,252 851,372,089
Technical adviscry fee 23.2 54,751,500 47,610,000
Depreciation 4.3 8452 57,744,379 115,192,036
Travaling and convayance 138,773,083 77707629
Litilities 14,869,487 14,312,520
Rant, rates and laxes 305,538 1,105,049
Insurance 27,396,601 26,215,684
Repair and maintenance 26,373,693 48 761,913
Fee and subscnption 233 4,914,981 266575476
Communication 21,791,486 18,702,150
Secunty charges 438,350 180,200
Amortisation 51 6,350,640 8,826,282
Consultancy 1,188,586 5,886,311
Printing and stationary 5,127,298 5,008 436
3,842, 756,459 3,435 704,263
In production television programs - apening 35,460,250 22,282,250
In production television programs - closing (50,827,650) (35,460.250)
3,827,389,059 3,422 526,283
Released | unreleased programs - opening 390,229,988 430,167,561
Released | unreleased programs - closing {432,619,726) (390,229,988)

3,784,999,321 3,462 483,456

231 Includes Rs. 29,765,982 (2022: Rs. 25,213 478) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

432 Represents fee pald to a Director for tachnical advisory services rendered in terms of the lechnical advisory agreement
duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Group.

23.3  Includes Rs. Nil (2022: Rs. 230,350,588) In respect of fees for managing the digital subscriptions of the Group.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Note
DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Advertisement and pramation

Salaries and banefits 241
Traveling and conveyanoe
Rant. rates and taxes
Utilities

Depreciation
Communication

Insurance

Repair and mainienance
Feos and subscriplion
Commission expense
Printing and stalionary

4.3 & 452

2023 2022

smsmmmmams RUpBES s——=cea
190,959,104 174,503,533
180,243,903 154,710,507
28,139,827 16,185 322
532,297 120,225
2,890,633 3,313,001
9,096,867 5,540 460
674,255 677,368
3,688,942 2,717,812
2,461,343 2 360 688
1,120,873 2,685,065
61,619,507 53 630,681
1,546,798 359,371
482974 749 415,772,921

e R

This includes Rs. 7,869,125 (2022: Rs. 6,462 264) |n respact of staff retiremant banefits:

Mate
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 251
Depreciaticn 434452
Amortisation 8.1
Repair and maintananca

Communication

Traveling and conveyanoe

Fee and subseriplion

LUtilities

Legsl and professionsl charges

Printing. stationery and perlodicals

Fent. rales and taxes

Insurance

Auditors’ remuneralion 3.2
Security charges

Donation 253

Includes Rs. 7,030,043 (2022 Fs. 5,712,115) In respeat of staff retirement bensfits.
Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for consalidated financial statements
Fee far hall yearly review

Tax and other assurance services

Oul of pocket expenses

Donation to following parties exceeds 10% of the Group's total donations or Rs, 1 million, whichever is higher:

Dharaji Youlh Services Foundation
Sindh Graduates Association
Momina and Duraid Faundation

20213 2022
wmemmmma RUPERS s———eeseen
695,850,663 504,884,156
50,790,445 43,035,068
5,824 878 5,054 464
57.443.583 45,323,409
7,381,876 7,831 276
74,825,501 34,783,307
20,581,887 25,532,735
52118169 36,941,244
59,051,941 31,013,462
11,181,125 9 5049 492
25,122,149 21,938,661
9,838 454 7,646 402
B.956,708 T.B15178
9,284,141 8,213,238
106,230,292 G000, 000
1194481812 __ 790,352,083
4,641,570 4 528 355
801,900 a16,750
656,100 506,250
2,200,000 1,707,667
657,138 404,154
8,956,708 7,815,176
2023 2022
sasammmaan Rupeges e
75,000 100,000
500,000 500,000
105,655,292 -
106,230,292 GO0, 000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Page 141



| Annual Report 2023

25.4 Reclpients of donations do not include any donee in which any director or his spouse had any interest exceplt for denation paid
1o Momina and Duraid Foundation. Follawing directors of the Group are also trustees of the sald trust:

26

27

293

- Mr. Durald Qureshi
- M=, Sultana Siddigul

OTHER EXPENSE
Provision for doubtful trade debts
OTHER INCOME

Income | (loss) from financial assets - net
Profit on bank accounts

Unrealised exchange gain / (loss)

Cividend income

Interest / markup income

Gaovammeant grant

Unraalised logs on revaluation of investiments
Gain ! (Loss) on redemplion { sale of investmants

Income from non financial assels
Gain on disposal of operating lixaed assels
Gain on termination of Aght of use assat

Sale of content end lestival revenue

Revarsal of provision far impalrmeant against in subsidiary
Ravarsal of ECL - net

Revaersal ol liabilities - no longer payable

Others

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on leng-tem financing
Mark-up an shorl-lerm bormowings
Interest on lease lighiiitias

Bank charges

TAXATION

Current
Dheferred
Prior

Relationship between tax expanse and accounting profit

Profit before taxation
Tax al the applicable rate

Tax effects af:

Tax at redurced rate on dividend incomea
Income subjact o final lex regime
Provision for super tax

Prior year tax charge reversal

Cthars

Page 142

2023 2022
Note Rupees
- 28 112,800
161 67,328,851 28,582 426
176,577,118 (22.456,497)
58,931,534 23,451,856
7,904,032 6,566,438
149 478,147 4 578,119
(7.320,853) {49 810.679)
27,943,002 {31,191,855)
331,841,924 (40,317,184)
4.4 836,097 5670012
- 12,134,055
25,290,719 30,733,489
1,776,832 7842811
30,298,619 -
98,671,515 -
- 7878376
156,973,782 64 358 843
—488.815703 24 041,653
34,506,148 48 764,168
a8 402 8,080 625
10,995,762 14 287 BE78
1,535,701 2,492,774
47,136,014 74,585 447
233,008,689 220,858,269
60,353,085 (67,537 .073)
3,263,370 (1,477 802)
286,715,144 151.853 694
2,214 481,950 1,546,959 349
642,199,766 445618211
{10,607 676} 4,221 ,334)
(514,021,552) (415,030, 747)
65,747 467 26,457,707
3,552,814 (1,477 602)
108,844,325 97,507 459
296,715,144 151,853,694
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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281 The Holding Company has filed its return of income up to tax year 2022. The retums so filed are deemed to be an assessment

order issued by the Taxafion Authoritles on the date the complale retum is filad, The Halding Company was mainly subject to
minimum tax during the year ended 30 June 2021 under section 153(1}(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, therefore,
relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit has not been presenled.

29.2 During the year 2017, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a show cause notice to the Holding Company, for the tax
year 2014, showing an intention to disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission on alleged non-deduction of
tax on such agency commission. The Holding Company filed a sult beforg the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showcause nolice.

Based on a recent judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Courl of Pakistan, suits filed by taxXpayers are not 1o be maintained unless
60% af the lax dua is deposited by the patitioners. In compliance o the above order, the Holding Company has deposited an
amount of Rs. 24,395,012 into the Government treasury. Thie decision in respact of the Suit filed by tha Holding Company is still
pending. The management, based on the legal advice, is confident that the ullimate culcome will be |n Tavor of the Holding
Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respeot in thase consolidaled financial statements.

29.3 During the yvear endied 30 June 2022, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenua (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1)
of the Ordinance for the tax year 2017 wheraby tax demand of Rs 771,644,957 was raised. The Holding Campany challengead the
above order before the Commissiener Inland Revenue (Appeals) The CIRLA) pursuant to the above appeal has decided majority
of the issues in favor of the Holding Company. Furthermore, issue of additions to fived assets has been remanded back for
varnficalion wharaas disallowance in respect of unpaid craditors and accrued Hahilities, loss on disposal of fixed assets and levy of
super tax under section 48 has baen confirmed. The Halding Caompany has filed further appaal in respact of the confirmed ssues
before the ATIR, which is pending adiudication.

29.4 The Group had received a notice dated October 26, 2016 for Tax Year 2014 issued ufs 122{5A) of Incoma Tax Ordirance, 2001
from Additional Cammissioner Inland Revenue (Addl.CIR) which had required the Group 1o provide Information/details. The Group
through ils AR provided all the required datafinformation/documents along with supporting reconciliation through various letters.

The Addl. CIR passed an order on June; 24 2020 making total additionsidisallowances of Rs. 842,168,79¢ under various heads,
which resulted into outstanding tax demand of Rs. 320,805 068

In contrast, the Group filed an appeal before the first Appeliate forum |.&. Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeal - |Il, Karachi who
after consideration deleted the additions amouniting o Rs. 2,217,579 whereas the remaining additions (o be remanded back to
Addl. CIR with mstructions 1o re-examinge the submission of AR and reconsider the facts of the case.

Still being apggreved from Appellate order the Group has filed an appeal before the Honourable Agpellate Trinunal Inland
Revenus which is pending far hearing date.

20.5 The Group recalved nollce undsr Section 227 of the Ordinance for the Tax Year 2019 by the Assistant/Deputy Commissionar
Intand Revenue, requiring the Group to provide an éxplanation In respect of adjustment of refunds daimed withoul delermination
of refunds under saction 170 of the Ordinance by passing an order under saction 221{1) of the Ordinance raising 2 demand of Ks.
147,382, Being aggrieved from the aforesaid order, the company fled an appeal before Cammissionear Inland Ravenus, Appeals
N, Karachi, which iz pending for adjudicetion till date.

29.6 The Group received a notice dated 23-04-2015 from Assistant commissioner Iniand Revenue (ACIR), Issued w's 161/205 read
wilh section 15301k} furher read with secbion 182{1)(15] of the Ordinance for the Tax Yeasr 2015 wherein ACIR has considered
the retrospective application of withholding tax rates enhanced far non-filar through 5.R.0. Mo. 1358(1)/2015 dated 13-02-2015 In
respect of Section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance and asked the Group to pay shor deduction of Rs. 246,144 and intended to lewvy
defaull surcharge of Rs. 35,0755 on aforesaid short deduction,

The Group through its AR's letier has contested that no statue shall be construed (o have retrospective operation. Mo further
correspandence has been received fram Tax Departmeant 1l date,

2023 2022
30 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted === RUpass ---r—
Frafit attributable to the cwners of the Holding Company 1,952,769,553 1.416,178.508
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Restated)
outstanding during the year 1.134,000.000 1,134,000.000
Earnings per share (Rupee) 1.72 1.25
10,1 Weighted average number of ardingry shares
Iszued ardinary shares at the Baqginning of the vear 945,000,000 345 000,000
Effect of banus shares 188,000,000 188,000,000
Weightad avarage number of srdinary shares al the and of the yaar 1.134,000,000 1,134,000,000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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30.2 Thereis no dilutive ¢fect on the basic earnings per share of the Holding Company.

M CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Prafit hefora taestion

M| pstrants for

Caprasialion

Amarisalion

Provision for emploves retirement benefits
Finance costs

Unreslised exchangs (gain) | kss

Prafit on deposi accounis

Gain on dispcsal of oparatirg fived assats
Dividend hcome

Amorisation of defered moome - goverrament granl
{Zain} | loss on redempiion [ sake of nvestmenis.
Unreslized s on revaluation of imvestments
Reversal of impaimsent in subsidary

Gain an terminatian of righl of use ssa8t
Reversal of Rabdities - no lopper pavable
{Reversal) / charge of provislon for ECL - nat

{increase) | decrease In current assets
lesvisntoras

Current poriion of 1elavision program costs
Trada debls

Advances

Trade depasiis and shorl-lerm prepayients
Other receivables

Increase | (decrease) in current liahilities
Trace and oiher pavables
Advance from Cusiomers

a2 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2023 2022
Note smeeeee Rupmes

2,214, 481,950 1 5450850 349

23, 24 325 117,631,691 163,776 064
21828 12,975,518 13,880,746
45,128,542 14,814 811

o8 AT136,014 T4 565447
7 (176.577.118) 22 466,497
27 {BT,328,851) {28 562 426
2t {936,087) (5.670,072)
¥ (58,931,534} {23451 B56)
1% (478,147} {4 5T8.118)
27 {27,943 002} 31 1941 BR5
27 7,320,853 49819 679
a7 {1,776.832) (7842 811)
. {12.134.055)

27 (98,671,515 -

a7 {30,208,618) 28,112 800
{£32,549,186) 16,3981

{83,328} 33 640

4,517.361 10.038.580
{335,347 .914% | | [245,589.373)
(101,583,054) 15.181.394
132,484,203} {31,285 853)
(8,496,083} ]| (100.349.711)
(473,401,399} (151 087 433)
{16,183.958) 624,316,858
50,648,268 {50,409 213

1.542 905 675 2 0BS5S 274 442

Thia agrngatn wnounts chargped in e ponsciidaled nancal slabomonls for ramuneraion, |r|r.hlﬁnr| wll Beniofits 1o the Chini® Exmculhws, Dimdlars and Espcutiees we oo

Totlcrws:
20213 2922
Chiet Exscutlve Hon-Exscutive  Executlves Chief Exscutive Nan-Exacutive Executives
Executive Diractor Direclors Executlve Director Diractors

Managoral remuneratior 151,104,889 - - 36T 084,064 114306, T : 312,800, 158
Techrical sdviory lee - 54,751,500 - - E 4810000 - =
Fen - - 1.900.000 - . : 3176000 -
Borus 184,308 314 164,388,314 - - 104 560, 245 104, 550, 245 - -
Retimmen benalitg = = - 18,658,646 - . 15,186,157
Hause rent 17,933 542 - - 88,184,290 15775403 79.06Z:033
Lti#liea 3,807 520 - - 22.036.508 3,505 Aeh - 17,560,340
Car allowsnce 20,767,188 23,500,000 - - 20,726,002 23,500,000 - -
Fuel and conveyvance 2475 351 2,704,411 1,478 447 30,302,101 {534 538 1,548 627 BT0.28T 15.837.503

380,187 104 #65, 354,225 5478447 537 445 600 SBi120,097 177 28ATh 4045, 287 &40 365 601
Murmbiss 1 5 65 1 1 5 =}

LF | The Chief Expcubnes, Direchors and certen Expcobves are also provided wih fee use of Groop mantsined cars in amooedanos wilh B Group’s pobcy and mimbursemant

ol eapenses relhed o business trivvel,
33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Ralated partes of the Group comprisa assnclsiad undecaking, eimemant benefite fnd and key mamagament personnal. Datails of tansachions wih mialed parties during
e year. gther than thosa which hawe been disclosed elsewhem i these consoidated financial siaterments s as follows

Rulslionship Harlure of rensactions

Azsocintns Purchases. of tolevvston program Aghts
Esparses pad on behall af e assocals
Payment rmaxde duniy) the o

Others Conlributkon 1o ihe proddent fund

03 2
smesce RUPHES —eoeme
1,57 2,300,900 1,588,637 694

= 11182630
1,993,714,243 1,72 E1R, 343

44 885,150 AT ART.ERY

All ransachans vk riialad paries mee arlaied 708 60 agiesd lermme duly Bpproved By 1he Deard of Dirsctadre of the Group. The sulstanding recelubls and payahle

balwnces of [he related pories bsire disclosed in \heie respacther noles o hess consohdisied Brancal shbrnenls

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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331 Falleing e the relatod parties with whom the Holding Compary had ontorod indo trenssciions or hawe srmanoemens | soreaman In olace

Aggregate % of
& Na, l.'.pmp.qnﬁr Mame Basis of atsociation sharsholding
1 0 Produicliong (Privatel Limiled AssocEalEd comgany [32.1.1) -
2 fiorninz f Curaid Films (Private) Limted Aseocitod company (32.1.1] *
i Meming emd Durgld Foundation Asgactated company (321.7) .
£ HiLk Mojwork Lmilod: Employpis’ Provssiont Fupd Relirement Fund E
J fifs, Sultana Siddicul Dwacir D.73%
& e Mazdiar ul Hag Slddigu Diecion =t
[} e Duraid Creshi Direcior A5, Td%
8 M. Shunaid Guresh Dimacior B389
9 e Mitiiah Akber Rashdl Diracior &
n LI G R AGiT Yasin Malik fal T =
" M Muhammad Avab Younus Adhl Dimacdnr -
12 M. Sohel Anear Crracior .
13 fks, Khush hakht Shulast Declor
3314 These entiliss ena associaled companies ¢ endetesings of the Grous under Compeniss Aot 2017
332 Mone of the key menagernent personnel had sny amangements with the Grouop other than the emplowment cantract
2023 2022
Mot mmmee RUPERES =am————
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
341 Flnancial ssssts 58 per slzterant of inanclal posltlon
Financial assets at amoriised cosl
- Lona-tenm deposlts T 26.6800.054 28,172,508
Trawde debits 10 1.100.542.350 2488313014
- Traida depoeis 13 357475 574,500
- Cher receleias 4 91.034.081 BT B33 4851
. Cesh g ek bolances 15 2.101.996.731 G925 578 242

532270 451 S 2t (G
Financial assets at fair vaius throuoh orofit o loss

- Lono-term invasimants L 45327574 +
- Snart-Lamm inwesimenta " 580143291 1.927. 212 B84

638, 670,865 1,127 215534

342 Financial liablities a5 per statement of financial position

Flnancial labiiities st amortissd cost

- Lona-tamn $nance 18 58765328 101,481 145
- Tride and clher payabies 20 1.173.502,578 1270832 T4

Agrering kb 2.033.411 111 456
- Current parton of long-demm finencing 13 66,528,523 285,470 069
= Unpigimed ghddend £.152.803 6,153 631
- Urnae dividand 1,374,738 2099 THET

],;EE;EJEE 1601 478 BA1
35 FINANCLAL RISH MANAGRFMENT DRIECTIVES AND RPOLICIES

The Group's acineies expose [ tooa vanety of Tinanclal risks e, markel rsk (including currency risk, ierest rale nsk and price risk), credil nsk and
Huidity risk. The Group's averall risk management grogramme loeuses on the unpredictability of fmanaial markets and seeks to minimise pobantlal
adverse effacts-.an the Group's financial performance.

The Group's sankr maragenant ovarsess tho manogemont of hese nsks: The Group's senior managemant grovides polices: for overall rsk
managamant, as weall Bs pdicies coyanng specdic areas such &5 fomegn exchange risk, inlares] rale rsk and credit risk, e of inencial dervatives,
financial Instremems and investment of escess lgquedity. |t is the Group's policy (hat no frading in dervatves for specustive purposes shall De
undertaken. The Board of Drediors review and agree policies for managng each of these reks which are summarized below:

KL Markat rek

Market risk is the risk thal far value of fulure cash fiows will fiucluale becawse o changes m market prces. Markel pnces comprse thrase lypes of
risk: interast rate risk. currenoy risk and enuibe orice nsk such s enuity rsk

5.2 Internst rate risk

Interest raie risk is the ngk thal the fair value o fulure cash fiows of inancial nstruments will fluctuate Dedsuse of changes in the market inlenss!
rates. The Group's imterest rate rlsk arises fram finance lease abligatons, shor-term borrowings and bank balances. The Group manages these ssks
ihrough risk management sirategies,

Rensitivite analvsis

The Tallowing figeres demonstrale the sensitinty toa reasonably possible change i imerest rate, with all Giher varahles hedd constant. of the Groog's
nrofit befone taaeon:

Increase | Effect an
decrease in prafit belfora
basis points taxation

June 30, 2023 +100
=100
June 30, 2022 +100
=100
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35.3

35.4

35.5

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabllities will fluctuate due to a change In forefgn
exchange rates. |l arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due o ransactions in foreign currencies. The Group's
exposura o foreiqn currenacy risk is as follows:

2023 2022
US Dollar GBP AED US Dollar GBP AED
Trade debis 303,635 542 806 4,623,915 742,774 785.143 3.425,233
Deposits and prepayments 1,250 105,569 232,918 1,250 115,745 13,550
Trade and othar payables (116,040) {88,545) (29,149) (107.495) {162,689) (138,960)

The follawing significant exchange rates have been applied at tha raporting dates:

it 1111 +1 =11 RuUpees =--ese=e=e--

Closing exchange rates 285.74 263.82 17.79 204,10 24719 55,85
Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In the US dollar and GBP exchange rale,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profil before taxation;

Change in  Effect on Change in Effect on Change in Effect on
US dollar  profit before GBP rate (%) profit before AED rate (%) profit before
rate (%) lax tax tax

- Rupees -- - Rupees -- - Rupees -
30 June 2023 +10 10 +10 %
10 f% 10 ﬂiﬁ ﬁgf%i -10 4]
30 June 2022 +10 12.991 556 10 18,24 7 +10 18,324 090
=10 2 =10 (18,240,857 =10 E.324,§E

Equity price risk

The Group's investments are susceptible to market prce nsk arsing from uncertainties about future values of investment
securifies. The Group manages the eguity price risk through diversification and placing: limits an individual and 1otz
invesimants, Reports on the Investment portiolio are submitled 1o the Group's senior managamsan! on a reqular basis.

As of the statement of financial position date, the exposure o investiments at fair value through profil or logz was Rs.
G3B,6T0.865 (2022 Rs. 1.127.212.684)

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the nisk which anses with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the olher parly (o incur a finanaial Inss, Concenlration ol oredil sk arlse when a number of counlarmparlies are
angaged in similar business activilies or have similar economic features thal would cause their ability to mesl contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, poliical or other conditions, Concentrations of credil risk indicate
the refalive sensitlvily of the Group's performance to deveiopments sffecting a particular industry.

The Group 5 mainly exposed to credit msk on trade debts and bank balances. The Group seeks to minimize the credit nsk
grpasure thraugh havng exposuras anly o customers considerad credil warthy and ablaining securilies where applicablsa,

Management of credit risk

The Group’s policy Is to enter Into financial contracts In accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and
other inlermal guidelines.

Cradit risk is managed and conlrolled by (he managemeant of the Group in the following manner:

- Gredit rating and | or credil worthiness of the couniemparty is taken into account along with the financial background so as to
minimiza the risk: of default

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to falled agreements causing s loss to the Group is mitigated by a periodic review of
their credit ratings, financial stalemeants, credil worlhiness and markel information on a regular basig

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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- Cash is held with reputable banks only.

A= of the consolidated statemant of financial position date, the Group is exposad to credil risk on tha following assets:

- Lang-tarm depasits
- Trade dehis

Long-ferm Investments
- Shor-tam Investmenls
- Trade deposits
- (Othar recelvables
- Bank balances

Quality of financlal assets

Mote

10

2023 2022

s RUPEES e
28.800.084 28,172,606
3.100.542.350 2,493 313.014

49,527 574 -
589.143.291 1,127 212 634
1.730.814 514 500
91 034.081 87,633,653
925016224
M —4.6067.002.601

Tha credil quality of financial assols can be assessad by reference to exiernal credit ratings or 1o historigal infarmation abaul

countarparty default rates:

Trade debts

Customers with no defaulls in the past one year
Customers with some defaulls in past one yaar

Bank balances
AdS

A+

Al

,a'

Shart-term investments
Putual funds

Term finance cerlificate

356 Liguidity risk

MNote
10
15
Afl
A+
AAIN
ALY
Mon-raled
A
1

2023 2022
remeeeaeee  RUpeEs
3,100,542,350 2.499.313,014
47,582,281 114,234 344
IENE N N SERS L.
275,943,937 1,112,423
417,173,167 653,565,028
919,037,535 270.308,554
488,450,859 23168
—2,101.605.508 925,016,224
53,284 537 2.408,729
5,087,356 413,144,855
29 668,996 25,811,342
384,850,946 261.491 882
95,103,298 378.968.054
567,995,133 1,081,825.416
21,148,158 45,386,768

589143201 _ 1127212684

Linuidity risk Is the rsk that the Group will not be shle to meet its financial abligations as they fall due. The Group applies prudent
rsk managemanl policies by maintaining sufficiant cash and bank balancas and by kseping committed credit lines Tha tahla balow
summarizes the maturily profile of the Group's financlal llabllites as &t the following reporting dates:

2023

Long-term leaze labllitias
Long-term financing
Trade and other payablas
Accrued mark-up

2022

Long-term lease liabilities
Long-term finencing
Trade and other payabies
Accrued mark-up

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Less than 3
On demand manths 3 o 12 manths 1 to S years Total
Rupeoas
. 3,781,136 11,883,803 55,234 536 70,899,475
- 16.632.130 493,896,393 58,765,328 125,293,851
492,911,715 235,393,385 445197 476 - 1,173,502,576
2,033 411 2033411
494945126 M M M& —1371.720.313
Less than 3
On demand months 310 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupees
- 5032131 22 823,132 61,304 204 85,049 487
88,950,624 208,604,305 09,476,285 297,031,214
246,570,024 417 BS7.TTT 615404973 - 1.279,832.,774
5,111,454 = & < 6,111.454
232 681478 _ G11.B40532 _ BAGEI2410 __ 1G0B704RT _ 1,772,024 308
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35.6.1 Changes in lizhilities from financing activities

01 July 2022 Cash flows Mew leases Others 30 June 2023
Rupees
Lang-term financing 397,031,214 {271,737 363} - - 1252 1
Lang-tarm lease labilitias 89,049 467 {24,258,8331 4 733 660 70,899,475
01 July 2021 Cash flows Mew leases Others 30 June 2022
Rupees
Long-term financing - -
Leng-term lease Ilabillies — 13043510 _ [12.706.1901 ﬁ%

35.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and llabilities reflacted in the consafidated financial siatements appropriate hedir

fair values.

357 Capital risk

The Group finances iis operations through equily, borrowings and management of working capital with a view of
rraintaining an appropriate mix belwesn various sources of finance 1o minimizae rigk. The primary abjective of the Group's
capial management is to ensure thal it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to suppor its business, sustain future

development, and maximize shareholders’ value. The Group monidors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

35.8

359

2023 2022
Nota = e -~ RUpBES ====ema-ee
Long-term lease liabilies 17 55,234,536 72,676,608
Long-term financing 18 58,765,328 101,461,145
Trade and other payable 20 1,192,647 473 1,307,502 046
Accried markup 2,033,411 6,111, 455
Gurrent portion of long-term leasa liabilities 17 15,664,939 16,372 569
Current portion of long-term financing 18 66,528,523 295,570,069
Total debt 1,300, 874,210 1,799 695,082
Cash and bank balances 15 {2,101,996,731) (925,578,242)
Net debt (711,122,581) 874,116,840
Shara capital 16 1,134,000,000 945,000,000
Unappropriated profit 6,297.572,560 4 6 372 452
Total equity 7.431,572,560 5,241.372.452
Capital 6.720.449.979 _ 6.115.480,232
Gearing ratio =10.58% 14.28%:

Fair value measuremeant

Fair value is the price thal would be received 1o sgll an ass81 or paid (o iransfer 3 liahility in an ordardy transaction belween
market participants at the measurement date,

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values,

The following lable shows assels recognised al fair value, analysed belwesan those whose far value is based on
Level 1: Quoled prces in active markets for identicel assets or lighillties,

Lewvel 2 Those invalving inpuls other than quoled prices included in Level 1 thal are ohservahle for the assel or liability,
eithar directly (as prices) ar indirectly (derived from prices), and

Lewval 3: Those whose Inputs for the assat or llability that are not based on observable market data (Unohsarvable inputs).

Assets measured at fair value

2023 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)
Long-term investments B - 49 527 574 49 527 574 s
Shart-tarm investments - 589,143,291 - 589,143,291 1,127,212 684

During the year, therg were no lransfers belween level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers inlo and
ot of lovel 3 fair value measurgment,

Financial instruments which are tradable in an open market ara revalued at the market prices pravailing on the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



40
40,1

&1

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Annual Report 2023

OPERATING SEGMENTS
For managemiant purposes; tha Graup has determined loliowing reportatle opovating segmants on the basis of areas of operations i a, ertarainment and news.

Entedainment ssoment i3 engaged in advertzameant, anterainmeant and media marketing.

MNewe sagment s engaced in broadcasting ! nses programs

Ertatainment News Ot Toml
“EZnza ¥0a2 FIT ) T Z022 B lE] 2022 w3 2022
e TRUPERS ) e
Revonus
Mal revariue from
SBME CUSDMEar 5248200838 SSMI0TR206 1203044980 5015325 15538022 T LIETEG3E40 8544865447
Result
Begment, profl | iops| 2,559, 882,997  2.607,586,600 424 482,528 (1TIATTEL (17.081,372) (70,242,847 2967284073 2475928032
Taxation (206,715,144) {151 BE3.E04)
Unalocated incomia |
{aapanses)

AdiminestiEive BIpanses {1.184,481,812) [T 332, 08E)
Odler Income ABEE15,703 24,044 B5Z
ey een posisams - (28,112,800)
Financa cost (47,136,014} (T4, 565247)
Profit for the yaar —ABILTERE0G 185 105500,
Ciher Information
Amcrisalion [B.571,349) (86604100 (3,551,791} 5,230, 336} 112378) . (12,175,518} (73.BED,T4E)
Deptesialian —A0LARSERY (42415400 . (SRA05043) ANBJSTRRT (el - . DILSILEEN _ (I TT0.504),
Eagrmenl aasals 830,550,023 220 175 620 830,292,836 10585331 158 6,738 368 1,676,502,227 | 2R 606 684
Unelocated Assets - - - - - - T 206,005,823 8 Bd8, 341,291

_B30,550023 _  22R.075529 BES.MGH36 1058391155 2 GTIEI6S - 0 8I9TIS9R0SD 7 NI0BITHTS

Seqment, fiabiiies 098535, 192 1 2REAE0RE 395611840 _ F51.533.508 327259814 _ GLITRESI __1629.808.955 _ 1843059241

FHeyanue thom hres msoar Coslamers of e Grr.'lup tunig the year constuled 5% (@02 &35 ) of e lolal evempa,

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The intal nurrber of amployess and mermpe numbear of smployeas at year end and during e year mepectively are sa folloes:

2023 o i

P ﬂum ik
Tatal rumber of employess FLES =
Average numbear of amploiees during the year 730 g

GENERAL

Certain coresponding figuras have been reamangad or reclassified whanever nacessary for the purpaes of compadson and betler presentaton Sovwever, no-significem
mslasdficalions have boan made durmg (ho v

Flgures nave been reunded off 1o the nearest Ruoea.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

O Agmst 78, 2023, Mis: HUM Nebtwork FZ2 LLC (8 Subsidiary Gompany) soquisd 1007, sharehatding of Mie TE3 FZ LLE, a company establishad in UAE fof Re. 130
milkzn paid in AED souivalent. Mis. TS3 FZ LLC ie enasosd in the business of spors cansuli@ncy, media | marketing consultancy and digitsl mediz services.

On July 282023 He Hodis) Comgany acquired 1005, sharehaiding of Mia_ Sphers Yenlures {Private) Limfed against consideron of Rs. 10 million pald in full. ks
Sphere Varileres (Privade] Lirmeted s engaged m he busdiess of Kde contend.

BONUS SHARES
Duiiirg e Year, the bobrd of direcions In the meeling beld oh Oelober 25 2042 spproved bomis dividend & 20%.
DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidatad inansial ERtemama have besn authorssd for lmsue on Sepember 25, 2023 by the Board of Diraclors af (he Holding Cormpeny.

e A s
A e

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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FORM OF PROXY

Tha Cormpany Secretary,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

19™ annual GENERAL MEETING

Harach

I, Sig. , holder of CHIC Ma. Resident of . being member of HUM NETYWORK
LIMITED, haolding ordlvary shares as par Registersd Folio [ CDS Account Mo. hersby  appolnt i
resident of or falling him/ her Mrihis,

af (full =cdress) who isfare aso

member(s) of the Company, as my ! our proxy to attend, act and vote for med us and on my [ sur behalf 5t Annual Genersl Meeting (AGM) of the
Company fo be held on Thursday, 197 day of Ociober, 2023 at 3:.00 pm at Ground Floor BRR Tower, Hasan Al Street off |1, Chundrigar Road Karachi

and | ar any Ad|oumrant thareol,

As witness my / our hand / seal this cay of 2023,
Slgned by In e presence of,
Wiiness
1 Marne:

Signature

Address:

CNIC: or Passoart No,,
2 Masna:

Signafure

Adldress:

CMIG ar Passpord Mo,
Mot

1. The prowy fomm, duly completed and signed, must be recelved at the Registerad Office of e Comparry, HUM Matweork Limited, Plot No. 10011, Haszan All Streed, OF. || Chundrigar
[, iarachl,

2. Af members are enliied o atkend and vobe at the mesting.

3, A muembar sligibls o attend and vobe at the Mesting may apeint ancther member a5 nisfher proxy 1o sttend, aro woln isstesd of himher.

4. An Instrument of prosy applicabie for the meeting s being privdded with the notice sent b membera, Further copies of fe instrument of prowy may be ohtained from the
registered office of the Company guring nomsd office hours

5. An instrumant of proxy and the power of atiormey o other authority (iFany), under which % ig-signed ora not aiily cerified copy of such power or authority masl, to be vald, be
depozited ai the regstered office nof l2s5 than 48 hours before the Bme of the meeling.

B. T8 member appoints more than one proxy and more than one Instruments of prowy amre deposited by 8 membser with the company, aif such Instruments of prooey shall be

rendered Imeaid.
. Mambers are requested ko notify any changes in fhelr addmeses immediatsly

| GOC account hodiders will furkher nave to fllow the under mentioned gusdelines as Bid down in croular 1, dated Jarusny 26, 2000 isusd by the Securitine & Exchangs Commssian
of Fakistan

|

For COC Accournt HoldersCorporate Entities:

I addition ta above, the fallowing reasnements have 1o be mek

11 The provy form shall be wiinessed by two (2) persons whose names, addresses and CHIC numbers shed be mentioned on e farm

Iy Atiested coples of CHIC or peseort of the benefickal owrners and the proxy shall be fumished with the praxy fom,

iify Trie prexy shall produce his original GHIC or original passoor al the lime of meeting,

Iv) In case of corporate enfity, the Board of Directors” resolution | power of stiomey wiih specimes signeture shall be submitted (unless it has bean proviged earier) along with
proy farm toihe Compary.
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